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MITCH NEEDELMAN 
CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT AND COUNTY COURTS 

BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
Clerk, Auditor and Accountant to the Brevard County Board of County Commissioners   

March 24, 2011 
 
Brevard County Board of County Commissioners 
         and 
Citizens of Brevard County, Florida 
 
 
The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of Brevard County, Florida, for the fiscal year 
ended September 30, 2010, is hereby submitted.  Chapter 218.39 of the Florida Statutes requires 
an independent certified public accountants financial audit of counties in the State.  This 
requirement has been met for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2010 and the report of the 
independent auditors has been included in the financial section of this report.  This report was 
prepared by the staff of the Finance Department, who report to the Clerk of the Circuit Court.  
Responsibility for the accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and fairness of the 
presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the Clerk of the Circuit Court. The enclosed data 
is accurate in all material respects and is presented in a manner designed to fairly set forth the 
financial position and the results of operations of the County. All disclosures necessary to enable 
the reader to gain an understanding of the County's financial activities are included.   

 
Governmental accounting and auditing principles require that management provide a narrative 
introduction, overview and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This transmittal letter is designed to 
complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The MD&A follows the 
independent auditors’ report.  
 
Brevard County operates under the constitution and laws of the State of Florida.  The Board of 
County Commissioners is the legislative body for Brevard County and is made up of five 
residents elected by voters in their respective districts. In addition to the County Commissioners, 
the voters elect five constitutional officers: Clerk of the Circuit Court, Tax Collector, Sheriff, 
Property Appraiser and Supervisor of Elections. 
 
The Brevard County Board of County Commissioners and the elected constitutional officers 
provide a comprehensive range of public services to the community.  These public services 
include law enforcement and detention/correction services, fire protection and rescue services, 
social services, health and welfare, recreation and parks, libraries, road maintenance and 
improvements, environmental protection, comprehensive planning, economic development, voter 
registration and elections, and court administration.  The County provides additional services to 
the community similar to private enterprise.  These include solid waste disposal, collection and 
recycling services, water/wastewater utility services, golf courses, a transportation system, and 
airport facilities.  Internal Service Funds have also been established to provide support services to 
County departments in the areas of information/communication systems and risk management. 

http://www.brevardclerk.us/�


The financial statements also include various other special taxing districts, an airport authority, a 
water control district and other entities for which Brevard County is financially accountable. 
These entities are described in the notes to the financial statements (Exhibit A-l3, Note 1). 

Fonnal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year. The 
Clerk of the Circuit Court and Supervisor of Elections submit their budgets to the Board by May 
1 of each year. The Property Appraiser and Sheriff submit their budgets to the Board by June 1 
and the Tax Collector submits their budget by August 1. After work sessions on departmental 
budgets and the constitutional officers' requests are conducted, a tentative budget is submitted to 
the public by Board resolution and public hearings are held to obtain taxpayer comments. A final 
public hearing is then held and the final budget is adopted. Budget to actual comparisons are 
presented in this report for each governmental fund for which an annual budget has been adopted. 
For the general fund and the major special revenue funds, these comparisons are included in the 
basic financial statement section. The nonmajor special revenue, debt service, and capital project 
funds budget to actual comparisons are included in the combining and individual statements and 
schedules section of this report. Brevard County follows the laws of Florida regarding the 
control, adoption and amendment of the budget during each fiscal year. 

ECONOMIC SUMMARY 

Brevard County encompasses approximately 1,300 square miles and is located in the middle of 
the state's east coast. The local diversified economy includes manufacturing of electronic 
equipment, the Space Shuttle Program at the Kennedy Space Center, citrus production, 
agriculture, and tourism. Major private employers include: Harris Corporation, Health First, Inc., 
United Space Alliance, Walmart, Publix Supennarkets, and WuesthoffHealth Systems, Inc. The 
County's unemployment rate as of December 2010 was 11.9%. 

The County is the tenth largest county in population among the 67 counties of the State of 
Florida. The county has experienced an average popUlation growth rate of 1.7% per year during 
the last decade. The development of the Space Center, peripheral services, aerospace and high 
technology industries, tourism services, and an influx of retired persons have contributed to the 
population growth. The County's popUlation is projected to be 587,900 in the year 2015 and 
625,200 in the year 2020. 

ACCOUNTING SYSTEM 

In developing and evaluating the accounting system, consideration is given to the adequacy of 
internal accounting controls. Internal accounting controls are designed to provide reasonable, but 
not absolute, assurance regarding: (1) the safeguarding of assets against loss from unauthorized 
use or disposition, and (2) the reliability of financial records for preparing financial statements 
and maintaining accountability for assets. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: 
(1) the cost of the control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived, and (2) the 
evaluation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management. All internal 
control evaluations occur within the above framework. 

GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 

Management's goals and objectives are to provide infrastructure for future growth, sound fiscal 
management and to maintain the quality of life citizens enjoy in Brevard County. This has been 
accomplished by providing economic incentives to improve commercial and industrial activity 
and improving accessibility of public infonnation. Examples of specific goals and 
accomplishments are as follows: 

The County continues to look at ways to become more energy efficient and promote 
conservation. The Solid Waste's Landfill Gas to Energy Facility is now generating green energy 
enough to power 9,000 homes, a 50% increase over the prior year. The County was awarded a 
$2.9 million Energy Efficiency and Conservation grant. This grant is being used to install 
photovoltaic roof panels to supplement electricity in buildings, low emittance windows to reduce 
solar heat, digital HV AC and lighting controls and replacing inefficient light fixtures. 
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In looking at the quality of life the County continues to assist 11 community-based and public 
service agencies which provide services such as adult day care, meals on wheels, mental health 
and substance abuse treatment, shelter and transitional housing and transportation for the 
disabled. Fixed route ridership for the County's transit system increased over 13% to over 1.6 
million passenger trips. 

Technological changes have also been made throughout the County. Mobile data terminals have 
been deployed in rescue vehicles to provide real-time access to the dispatch system. Libraries 
have implemented several new internet based services. Public Works has added 15 intersections 
to the Intelligent Transportation System and is completing plans to add an additional 12 
intersections to the system. 

Construction was completed on 8 major flood control and stormwater treatment projects. 
Engineering design and permitting continue for 15 additional flood control projects with 
construction beginning this coming year. The County has secured grants and intergovernmental 
partnerships totaling $7.7 million to construct 7 more projects in the following year. Grand 
openings occurred this year at 6 Parks & Recreation facilities. 

The unincorporated areas of Brevard County saw roughly 32 miles of roads resurfaced. The 
County acquired 83 parcels for roadway improvements and completed the Pineda Causeway 
Extension from USI to 1-95. An interchange connecting it to the interstate is expected to be 
complete in the next year. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS 

In compliance with the laws of the State of Florida, the County's independent Certified Public 
Accountants, Berman, Hopkins, Wright; & LaHam, CPAs and Associates, LLP have completed 
an audit of the accounts and financial statements, and their opinion is included herein. 

AWARDS 

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded 
a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to Brevard County, Florida, 
for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2009. The 
Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious national award recognizing conformance with the 
highest standards for preparation of state and local government financial reports. 

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a governmental unit must publish an easily 
readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report, whose contents 
conform to program standards. Such reports must satisfy both generally accepted accounting 
principles and applicable legal requirements. A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of 
one year only. Brevard County has received a Certificate of Achievement for the last twenty-nine 
consecutive years. We believe our current report continues to conform to Certificate of 
Achievement Program requirements and are submitting it to GFOA. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

The preparation of this report, on a timely basis, could not have been accomplished without the 
efficient and dedicated services of the entire staff of the Finance Department. Also appreciated 
are the efforts of elected officials and members of the County staff, for their interest and support 
in planning and conducting the fmandal operation of the County in a progressive and responsible 
manner. 

Sincerely, 

Mitch Needelman 
Clerk to the Board 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Board of County Commissioners 
Brevard County, Florida 

255 S. Orange Ava. Suite 745 
OrlanrJo, FL 32801 

Phone: 407-841-8841 
Fax: 407·841-8849 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund infonnation of Brevard County. Florida, as of and for the year 
ended September 30,2010, which collectively comprise Brevard County, Florida's basic financial 
statements as listed in the table of conlents. These financial statements are the responsibility of 
Brevard County, Florida's management. Our responsibility is to . express opinions on Ihese 
financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statemenls of the 
Titusville-Cocoa Airport Authority, Melbourne-Tillman Water Control District, and Brevard County 
Housing Finance Authority, which cOllectively represent 95 percent, 95 percent and 78 percent, 
respectively, of the assets, net assets, and revenues of the aggregate discretely presented 
component units of Brevard County, Florida. Those financial statements were audited by other 
auditors whose reports have been furnished to us , and our opinions, insofar as it relales to the 
amounts included for the aggregate discretely presented component units is based on the 
reports of the other auditors. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United Stales. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test 
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit 
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that 
our audit and the reports of the other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinions. 

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of the other auditors, the financial statements 
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the 
govemmental activities, the business-type activities , the aggregate discretely presented 
component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Brevard 
County, Florida , as of September 30, 2010, and the respective changes in financial position, and 
cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the General, 
Emergency Services, Brevard County Transportation Trust, and Grants Fund for the year then 
ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

www.bermanhopkins.com 



In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
March 16, 2011, on our consideration of Brevard County, Florida's internal control over financial 
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe 
the scope of our testing of intemal control over financial reporting and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit perfOf"med in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our 
audit. 

Accounting prinCiples generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management's discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 11 be presented to supplement the 
basic financial statements. Such information, aHhough not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to 
be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economic, or historic context. We and the other auditors have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of 
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. 
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because Ihe limited 
procedures do not provide us with suffICient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise Brevard County, Florida's financial statements as a whole. The 
introductory section, combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and 
schedules, and statistical section, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not 
a required part of the financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards and state financial assistance is presented for purposes of addilional analysis as 
required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A·133, Audits of States, Local 
Govemments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and Chapter 10.550, Local Government Entity 
Audits, Rules of the Auditor General of the State of Florida and is also not a required part of the 
financial statements. The combining and individual non major fund financial statements and 
schedules and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance are 
the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has 
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and 
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to 
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the Uniled States of America. In our opinion, the information is 
fairly stated in all malerial respects in relation 10 the financial statements as a whole. The 
introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied 
in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or 
provide any assurance on them. 

March 16, 2011 
Melbourne, Florida 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis 

As Clerk of the Circuit Court for Brevard County, I offer readers of the Brevard County Financial Statements this 
namllive overview and analysis afthe financial activities of Brevard County for the fiscal year ended September 30, 
2010. We encour3ge readers 10 consider the infonnalion presented here in conjunction with additional infonnation 
thaI we have furnished in our letter of transminal of the repon. All amounts, unless otherwise indicated, are 
expressed in millions of dollars. 

Finandal Hlghli&hlS 

• Brevard County's assets exceeded its liabilities at September 30, 2010 by $945.7 million (nct assets). Of this 
amount, $68.8 million (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet the County's ongoing obligalions lo citizens 
and creditors. 

• The County's total net !iSseIS increased $6.9 million over the previous year with $],0 million of the increase 
resulting from governmental activi ties and $3.9 million resulting from business-type activi ties. 

• The General Fund reported a fund balance of $38 million, a decrease of $.6 million from the previous fiscal 
year. 

• Total bonded debt decreased $30.5 million in fiscal year 201 O. 

OvU"view of the Financial Statements 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction (0 the Brevard County's basic financial 
statements. The Brevard COWIty'S basic financial statements are comprised of three components: I) government­
wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the fmancial statements. This report also 
contains other supplementary infonnation in addition to the basic fi nancial statements themselves. 

Government-wide finan ci.1 statements. The government.wide financial statements are designed to provide 
readers with a broad overview of Brevard County's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. 

The statement of net assets presents infonnation on all of Brevard County's assets and liabilities, with the difference 
between the two reported as net assets. Increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of 
whether the financial position of Brevard County is improving or deteriorating. 

The statement of activi ties presents information showing how the government's net assets changed during the most 
recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change 
occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for 
some items that will result in cash flows in future fi scal periods (e,g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused 
vacation leave). 

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of Brevard County that are principally 
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other funct ions thaI are intended 
to recover all or a significant ponion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type act ivit ies). The 
governmental activities of Brevard County include general government, public safety, physical environment, 
transportation, economic environment, human services, and culturelrecreation. The business-type activities of 
Brevard County include waste collection/disposal, water resources, transit service and gol f courses. 

The government-wide financial statements include not only Brevard County itself (known as the primary 
government), but also a legally separate airport authority, water control disuici and other entities for which Brevard 
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County is financially accountable. Financial information for these component units is reponed separately from the 
financial information presented for the primary government itself. 

The government-wide financial statements can be found on Exbibits A-I and A-2 of this report. 

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that i ~i used to maintain control over resources 
that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. Brevard County, like other state and local 
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. 
All of the funds of Brevard County can be divided into three categories: gO'vernmental funds, proprietary funds, and 
fid~ciary funds. 

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reponed as 
governmental activities in the government·wide financ ial statements. However, unlike the government-wide 
financial st£llements, govenunental fund financial statements focus on near··tenn inflows and outflows of spendllble 
resources, as wel1 as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information 
may be useful in evaluat ing a government's near-term fmancing requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than 'that of the go~'emment -wide fmancial statements, it is 
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand 
the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet 
and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a 
reconciliat ion to facil itate th is comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. 

Brevard County maintains twenty-seven individual governmental funds. The general fund represents the chief 
operating fund. Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental 
fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances fc'r the general fund, emergency services, 
transportation trust, grants and parks/recreation facilities, each of which are considered to be major funds . Data 
from the other governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for 
each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements shown in E:d1ibits B-1 
to E-I of this repon. 

Brevard County adopts an annual appropriated budget fOT its governm>ental funds. A budgetary comparison 
statement has been provided for these funds to demonstrate compliance. 

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on Exhibits A-3 10. A-8 of this report. 

Proprietary funds. Brevard County maintains (WO different types ofproprititary funds. Enterprise funds are used to 
report the same functions presented as busmess-type activi ties in the government-wide financial statements. 
Brevard County uses enterprise funds to account for its waste collectionfdisposal system, water resources, transit 
service and golf courses. Internal service funds are an account ing devi«1 used to accumulate and allocate costs 
internally among Brevard County's various functions. Brevard County uses internal service funds to account for its 
information systems and risk management. Because both of these services predominantly benefit govemmental 
rather than business-type func1ions, they have been included within govemrnental activities in the government-wide 
financial statements. 

Proprietary funds provide the same type of infonnation as the government-wide financial statements. The 
proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the Solid Waste Management Department, 
Water Resources Department and Barefoot Bay Water & Sewer District, etlch of which are considered to be major 
funds of Brevard County. Individual fund data for the non-major enterprise and the internal service funds is 
provided in the form of co~bining statements shown in other Exhibits F- I to G-3 ofthis report. 

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on Exhibits A-9to A-II of this report. 

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the 
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide fmancial statement because the resources of 
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lliose funds are not available to support Brevard County's own programs. Individual fund data for each of these 
fiduciary funds is provided in the fonn of combining statements shown in Exhibits H-I and H-2 oflliis report. 

The basic fiduciary fund fmancial statements can be found on Exhibit A-12 oflliis report. 

Notes to finandllsta temenl$. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of 
the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to financial statements can be 
found on Exhibit A-13 of this report. 

.. 
Other information. In addition to the basic fmaneia l statements and accompanying notes, this report presents 
certain required supplementary infonnation concerning Brevard County'.1 progress in funding its obligation to 
provide other postemployment benefits to its employees. Required supplementary infonnation can be found on 
Exhibit A-[4 of this report. 

Government-wide Financill Anllysis 

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government' s fin ancial position. In the 
case of Brevard Counry, assets exceeded liabilities by $945.7 million at the close of the most recent fiscal year. 
Brevard Counry's increase in net assets for this fisca l year amounts to $6.9 million. 

The largest portion of Brevard Counry's net assets (68 percent) reflects its investment in capi tal assets (e.g., land, 
buildings, machinery, and equipment) less any re lated debt used to acquire those assets lbat are still outstanding. 
Brevard County uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; corlsequently, t~ese assets are not available 
for future spending. Although Brevard County's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it 
should be noted that the resources needed 10 repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since most of the 
capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

The government-wide fmanc ial analysis does not consider any legislative or spending restrictions within the 
governmental and business type activities. For example, gas ta,..:es are usually resnicted to road 
construction/maintenance. Property taxes levied for futlrescue would be restricted to frre/rescue purposes. The 
composition of ttle County's net assets can be used as an indication of overall fmancial condillon. The financial 
analysis of Brevard County's funds, which begins on page 8, will indicate how past policies have accumulated funds 
within specific functions as other functions experience fiscal challenges. 

Brevard County's Ntt Assets 
(in millions) 

Governmental Business.type 
d&tiviti~l 6!<liviti~1 Total 

lli!! ll!!!2 2010 2009 2010 2009 '"I, ~h8nr:t 

Current and other assets S 399.3 S 453.9 $112.7 $113 .2 S S12.0 S 567. 1 (9.7) 
Capital assets 1,12,12 ~ ~ ...lli.1 S!~8 " 92lU .l.! 

Total assets l.I.J.ru ll..1ill lliU lliU ~ 1 ,!i1Q,~ ~I,4s!M (LID 

Long-tenn liabi lities 
outstanding S 361.5 S 386.0 $ 72.4 S 77.0 S 433 .9 S 463.0 (6.3) 

Other liabilities 11,4 -= ---1ll ~ ----1M ~ ~ 
Total liabilities ! 4lH ~ UM UU Lill.l I ~~1.I.i = 

Net asselS 
Invested in capital assets, 
net of related debt S 457.5 S 414.8 S182.5 S179.9 S 640.0 S 594.7 7.6 

Restricted 203.1 232.S 33.8 32.1 236.9 264.6 (10.5) 

Unrestricted ;iM -----1.U ~ -1U -W ~ (LU) 

Total net assets I ~§Z g UW! = ilal I 2!l~ 2 UlU ....IIJ.. 
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The restricted portion of Brevard County's net assets (25 percent) represents resources that are subjC{,:t to external 
restrictions on how they may be used. The restrictions include acquiring land for preservation, capital 
il'!1provements to parks and road construction/resurfacing. The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets (S68.8 
million) may be used to meet the government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors within the respective 
governmental and bUSiness-type activities. 

At the end of the current fiscal year, Brevard County is able to report positive balances in all three categories of net 
assets as a whole and individually within the governmental and business·type act ivities. 

The Changes in Net Assets displayed below shows the governmental and business-type activities during the fiscal 
year. The increase in net assets resulted primarily from additional infrastructure added, user fees and unspent capital 
bond proceeds. 

Revenues 
Program revenues: 

Charges for services 
Operating grants and 

contributions ' 
Capital grants and 

contributions 

General revenues: 
Property taxes 
Other taxes 
State shared 
Inte rest 
011", 

Total revenues 

Expenses: 
General government 
PubliC; safety 
Physical environment 
Transportation 
Economic environment 
Human services 
Culture and recreat ion 
Interest on long·term debt 
Solid waste 
Water resources 
Transit service 
Golf courses 

Total expenses 
Increase in net assets before 
transfers 

Transfers 
Increase in net assets 

Net assets beginning 
Cumulative effect 

in prior years 
Net assets ending 

Brevard County's C banges in Net Assets 
(in millions) 

Governmental 
Activities 

S105.2 

46.3 

26.3 

192.5 
24.1 
27.9 

6.' 
....lJU 
S439.0 

S 99.5 
17 1.9 

12.9 
35.4 
17.5 
33.2 
50.3 
14.9 

• • • -----2 
lli>& 

$ 3.4 

---..W 
L.1J! 
$684.0 

$118.9 

38:0 

2.9 

223 .6 
24.5 
28.1 
10.9 

-..-ll.2 
$466.8 

$108.0 
172.0 

7.9 
40.0 
15.2 
23.9 
62.5 
17.4 

• • • 
-----2 
~ 

$ 19.9 
---1U) 

Uli 
$666.4 

Business.type 
Activities 

S 69.8 

7.9 

3.5 

• • • 1.8 
--.d 
UJ.d 

s 0 
o 
• o 
o 
o 
o 
o 

33.4 
30.8 
11.8 

--.1.,Q 
S 80.0 

$ 3.5 

~ 
L.1J! 
$254.8 

6 

S 70.4 

6.5 

5.5 

o 
o 
• 2.1 

__ .4 

i...B..4.2 

, 0 
o 
• o 
o 
o 
o 
o 

35.6 
32.8 
11.2 

~ 
Utl 

, .8 

--.U 
L.l.I 
$25 1.9 

$175.0 

54.2 

29.8 

192.5 
24.1 
27.9 

7.8 
---1.!.1 
mu 
$ 99.5 

111.9 
12.9 
35.4 
17.5 
33.2 
50.3 
14.9 
33.4 
30.8 
11.8 

~ 
illiJi 

$ 6.9 
_ _ 0 

Lil 
S938.8 

Total 

2009 ./~ C ha nge 

S189.3 

44.5 

8.4 

223.6 
24.5 
28.1 
13.0 

---'2.l. 
lli11 

S108.0 
172.0 

7.9 
40.0 
15.2 
23.9 
62.5 
17.4 
35.6 
32.8 
11.2 

~ 
llilJ! 

$ 20.7 

-----2 
UQJ 

S918.3 

(,2) 
W!J 

(7.6) 

21.8 

254.8 

(1l.9) 
(1.6) 
(0.7) 

(40.0) 
(44.8) 

~ 

(7.9) 
(0. 1) 
63.3 

(1 1.5) 
15.1 
38.9 

(19.5) 
(14.4) 
(6.2) 
(6. 1) 

5.' 
llLll . 
-"U) 

(66.7) 
__ 0 

~ 
2.2 



Financia l Analysis or Governmental Aclivities 

Governmental activities increased the County 's net assets by $3.0 million, compared to an increase of $17.6 million 
in the previous year. Public safety expenses, including the Sheriff's department and FireJRescue account for the 
largest percentage (39%) of program expenses. The chart comparing the major expenses of governmental activities 
for fiscal yean 2009 and 2010 is as fo llows: 

~ = 0 := = :;; 
'" 

Brevard County Comparison of Expenses -
Governmental Activities 

200 
ISO 
160 
140 
120 
100 

i!l2009 

80 132010 

60 

'0 
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0 

The charges for services program revenues for fiscal year 2010 were reduced by $13.7 million from fisc al year 
2009. Building related revenues declined $5.0 mill ion due to the reduction in construction activity. Court-related 
charges declined $7.3 million as a result of the State of Florida receiving the majority of court revenues. Taxable 
property values have continued to fall and the rates levied by the County Commission generated less ad valorem 
taxes than the preceding fiscal year. Grants and contributions revenue increased $3 1.7 million due to addit ional 
ARRA funds, Neighborhood Stabilization and beach restoration grants received during the fiscal year. 
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The chan comparing the major revenues of governmental act ivities for fiscal yeaB 2009 and 2010 is as follows: 

Brevard County Comparison of 
Revenues - Governmental Activities 

250 

200 

150 

100 

f;A 50 

o 

Finandal Analysis of Business· type Activities 

r:a2009 

112010 

Business type activities increased the County's net assets by $3.9 million, compared to $3 .1 million in the previous 
year. The County 's solid waste operations experienced the largest increue in net assets at $4.0 million, which is 
consistent with the results of the prior year. The County's water resolll'US operations reported a $320,000 increase 
in net assets. 

Financia l Analysis o r Brcn rd County's Fu nds 

As noted earlier, Brevard County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-re lated 
legal requirements. 

Govtrnmtntal Funds 

The focus of Brevard County governmental funds is to provide information on near·term inflows, outflows, and 
balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing Brevard County's financing requirements. 
In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure ofa government's net resources available for 
spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

As of September 30, 2010, Brevard County governmental funds Jeponed combined fund balances of $303.2 million, 
a decrease of $45.5 million from the prior year balances. The decrease is primarily attributable to the expenditures 
for projects in the CUJTellt year in the Brevard Couoty Transportation Trust, Parks and Recreation Facilities and 
Education Impact Fee funds which were funded by balances carried forward from prior years. In addition, the 
County utilized accumulated reserves to panially fund the refunding of outstanding bonds to effect an overall 
reduction in debt service. 

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the County. At September 30, 2010, total fund balance in the 
General Fund was $38.0 million, of which $34.0 million was unreserved as compared to a total fund balance of 
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$38.6 million and an unreserved fund balance of $34.2 million at September 30, 2009: Economic conditions 
continue to reduce revenues generated from sales tax and building development. Taxable property values fell and the 
rates levied by the County Commission generated S31.1 million less than the preceding fiscal year. As a measure of 
the General Fund's liquidity, the total and U/lIeserved fund balances compared to total fund expenditures and other 
financing uses shows percentages of 15.50/e and 13.9 % respectively, representing an increase from the 14.1% and 
12.5% levels in the preceding fiscal year. The General Funds annual fiscal panem is as fo llows: 

,~ 

,~ -
m 

* 
,~ 

'" 
~ 

• -

GENERAL FUND REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES BY YEAR 
. AND END OF YEAR UNRESERVEO FUND BALANCE 

aReve .... e a Eapendlture' OUnrnerv.clFundS.lan<. 

Emergency Services received $57.5 million of dedicated propeny taxes, fire assessment, ambulance fees and 
General Fund financial support during fiscal year 2QIO. The department expended $6\.4 million for personnel, 
operations and some capital renovations. The S27.7 million in fund balance is a reduction of $4.0 million from 
fi scal year 2009. 

Although expenditures reduced slightly in 2010, this was offset by a larger decrease in revenues, primarily a 
decrease of$5.4 million in General Fund support. 

The fund balance in the Brevard County Transportation Trust fund decreased by $7.4 million in fiscal year 2010 due 
to bond proceeds received in prior years being expended for road projects during fiscal year 2010. 

The Grants fund revenues and expenditures increased ~y SI I million and Sl2 million, respect ively over the previous 
year. Significant increases in grant expenditures for fiscal year 201 0 included $3.5 million in American Recovery 
and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) funds expended for road projects, $2.9 million in Neighborhood Stabilization 
program funds and $2.7 million of state grant funds expended for beach restoration. The Grants fund reponed a net 
decrease in fund balance of$I .9 mil lion, increasing the deficit fund balance to $3.8 million at year end, primarily as 
a result of grant reimbursements not received within the first 90 days of lhe subsequent fiscal year. 

The Parks and Recreation Facilities fund continues to expend proceeds or bonds issued in prior years. The fund 
balance of$46.4 million is.a reduction of $13.2 million from fisca l year 2009. 

Proprietary funds. Brevard County's proprietary funds provide the same type of infonnation found in the 
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail, and on a fund basis for the enterPrise funds and internal 
service funds. 

Enterprise Funds. At September 30, 2010, total net assets amounted to $256.3 million for enterprise funds as 
compared to $25 1.6 million at September 30, 2009. Net asset changes are a result of operations, investment earnings 
and capital contributions in the Solid Waste Management and Water Resources funds. 
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The Solid Waste Management Department reported a change in net assets of$4.1 million . The total current assets of 
$66.5 million include $24.6 million restricted for landfill closure. The unrestricted current assets of $41.5 million 
represent 2650/. of the $15.7 million disbursed to operate the department in fiscal year 2010. The department also 
disbursed $9.4 million to acquire, construct or improve capital assets during the fisca l year and is expecting to spend 
funds for future land fill preparation. The revenue bonds used to finance the· systems infrastructure was completely 
retired in April of20 I O. 

The Water Resources Department reported an increase in net assets for fiscal year 2010 of approximately $320,000, 
compared to the $800,000 increase in net assets in the preceding fiscal year. The net loss before contributions and 
transfers of $370,000 is offset by capital conttibutions from connection fees and assets donated by developers of 
$1.6 million. The total capi tal contributions of $ 1.6 million received in fiscal year 2010 declined from the $3.4 
million received in fiscal year 2009. The Water Resources Department is required by bond resolution to maintain 
user rates sufficient to pay for operations, debt services and all reserve requirements. The coverage for fiscal year 
2010 was 102%, an increase from the previous year which was at 100%. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

Budget to actual statement is provided for the General Fund. A budget column for both the original budget adopted 
for fisca l year 20 I 0 as well as the fmal budget is presented. 

A comparison of the original to the fina l operating revenue budget shows an increase of $4.0 million, primarily as a 
result of Federal grants appl ied to hurricanes re lief. Expenditures were $16.4 million less than final budgeted 
amounts. Spending levels for 20 10 were adjusted by County management during the fiscal year in recognition of 
declining general revenues. 

Capital Asset and Debt Adm inistration 

Capital asse ts. Brevard County's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of 
September 30, 2010, amounts to $958.2 million (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets 
includes land, buildings and structures, improvements, goodwill , machinery and equipment, and park facili ties. The 
roads, highways, bridges and other infrastructure are also included. The total increase in Brevard County's 
investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was 3.1 percent (a 4 .7 percent increase for governmental 
activities and a 1.6 percent decrease for business-type activities). 

Brevard County 's Capital Assets (Net) 
(in millions) 

Governmental BUSiness-type 
Act i v itie~ hctiviti!<~ Iotal 

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 

"',d $238.7 $234.3 $ 37.9 $ 37.9 $276.6 $272.2 
Buildings and structures 223.4 215.0 33.7 35.3 257.1 250.3 
Infrastructure 94.6 92.5 15.9 9.2 11 0.5 101.7 
Improvements to land 37.8 30.3 3.1 3.4 40.9 33.7 
Improvements other 
than buildings ,., 6.4 113.6 119.1 11 9 .1 125.5 

Goodwill 0 0 1.1 1.2 1.1 1.2 
Machinery and equipment 47.0 49.0 16.2 16.5 63.2 65.5 
Construclion in progress ---12.l! ~ ----1.QJ. --'.U ~ ~ 

Total ~ !W.I! ruJ.Ji ru.u = = 
Additional infonnation on Brevard County's capital assets can be found in notes to financial statements (Exhibit A-
13, Note 7). 
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Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, Brevard County had total bonded debt outstanding of$370.6 
million. Of this amount, $162.4 million comprises debt backed by voter approved propcrty taxes and $208.2 million 
is secured solely by specified revenue sources (i.e. , revenue bonds). 

Limited Ad valorem Tax 
Bonds 

Revenue bonds 

Total 

Brevard County 's Outstanding Debt 
(in millions) 

General Obligation and Revenue Bonds 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities 

2010 2009 2010 200. 

$162.4 $175.6 S 0 $ 0 
--1iU -11Qj ~ --.l.l..Q 

= ruu U!.> Ul.2 

$162.4 
208.2 

Total 

$175.6 
...lli.2 

Addit ional infonnation on Brevard County's long-tenn debt can be found in notes to financial statements (Exhibit 
A-I3, Note 13) 

Economic Factors and Next Yea r 's Bud gets and Ra tes 

o The unemployment rate for Brevard County is currently, 11.9 percent, which was a decrease from a rate of 12.1 
percent a year ago. The state's average unemployment rate is 11.6 percent and the national average rate is 9.4 
percent. The federal, state and local governments are addreSSing the transition of the space shuttle program; 
increased unemployment levels resulting from layoffs at the Kennedy Space Center and associated industries is 
expected. 

o Total property valuation decreased from $59.2 billion to $51.7 bill ion. Taxable property valuation decreased 
from $33.3 billion to $29.1 billion. The valuation of Save Our Homes exemptions is $1.9 billion, down from 
$4.3 billion in 2009. 

o Several debt restructurings are planned for fisca l year 201 1, including the defeasance of$30 million of 
outstanding Limited Ad Valorem Tax Bonds using unexpended bond proceeds within the Environmentally 
Endangered Lands and Parks and Recreation Facilities funds. 

Brevard County is experiencing a decline in sales tax and other general revenues dependent on economic activity, 
The number of building pennits issued during 201 0 was 9,866, a 3.2% increase over the prior year. 

All of these faclors were considered in preparing Brevard County's budget for the 2011 fiscal year. 

Requests for Inrormation 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Brevard County's finances for all those with an 
interest in the government's finances. Questions concerning the Basic Financial Statements or other accounting 
infonnation provided in this report should be addressed to the Finance Director, 400 South 51. Titusville, Florida 
32780. Questions concerning budgets, long-term financial planning, or the management of County operations 
should be addressed to the County Manager, 2725 Judge Fran Jamieson Way, Viera, Florida 32940. Complete 
financial statements for each of the individual componenl units may be obtained at the entity's administrative office, 
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A·I 
lOF2 

BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

Prjm~·Go\lernmtnl 

GO'llernmental Business-type Component 
Actrvities Aclivities Total Units 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 352,940,676 $ 61,176,386 $ 414, 117,062 S 16,244,447 

~h with escrow and paying agents 1,522,941 0 1,522,94 1 0 
Investments 0 0 0 613,576 
Receivables (net of allowance 

for uncol1eclibJcs) 10,750,214 935,455 11,685,669 169,081 
Taxes receivable 1,247,698 0 1,247,698 0 
Assessments receivable 248,374 0 248,374 0 
Accrued interest receivable 585,262 169,926 755, 188 6,580 
Internal balances (3,528,324) . 3,528,324 0 0 
Due from other funds 50,000 0 50,000 0 
Due from other governmental units 2],841,337 5,990,506 29,83 1,843 1,317,22 1 

Inventory of supplies 7,105,767 1,220,703 8,326,410 48,494 
Prepaid items 1,510,773 0 1,5 10,173 238,386 

Deferred charges 0 0 0 2,621 
Restricted assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 0 38,936,185 38,936,185 0 
Accrued interest receivable 0 1,415 1,415 0 
Due from other governmental units 0 424, 110 424 ,110 0 

Capital assets, net of accumulated 
depreciation: 

Lon' 238,692,991 31,909,6 11 216,602,6 14 14,482,639 
Buildings and structures 223,313,583 33,694,149 251,061,132 6,611,123 
Infrastructure 94,558,952 15,814,419 110,433,43 1 0 
Improvements to land 31,806,613 3,049,995 40,856,668 1,024,189 
Improvements other than buildings 5,519,151 113,628,255 11 9, 141,406 12,101,952 
Machinery and equipment 46,984,350 16,204,386 63, 188,136 1,616,269 
Goodwill 0 1,128, 156 1, 128,156 0 
Construction in progress 19,510,145 10,1 15,182 89,686,521 3,204,936 

Unamortized debt issue costs 31°86,409 3411°89 3,433,498 0 

Total assets $ 1, 125,8611518 , 34413351518 $ 1141°12031096 , 511154,120 

The accompanying notes to the ftnancial statements are an integral pan oftMs statement. 
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Governmental 
Activities 

LIABILITIES 
Vouchers and contracts payable , 21,085,658 
Accrued wages and benefits payable 8,206,430 
Accrued interest payable 3,098,28 1 
Advan<:e payments 0 
Due to other funds 99 
Due to other governmental units 2,763,990 
MaNred interest payable 0 
Unearned revenue 4,784,829 
Liabilities payable from restricted assets: 

Vouchers Payable 0 
Accrued interest payable 0 
Customer deposits 0 
Revenue bonds 0 

Noncurrcnlliabililies: 
Due within one year: 

Claims payable 9,833,850 
Compensated absences 2,702,52 1 
Arbitrage rebate 53,708 
Leases payable 86,488 
Notes payable 383,000 
Bonds payable 24,304,880 

Due in more than one year: 
Claims payable 11 ,101 ,981 
Landfill closure and postclosW"C care 0 
Compensated absences 26,455,981 
Arbitrage rebal~ 440,178 
Other postemp]oyment benefits 17,2 82,531 
Leases payable 10,171 
Notes payable 6,253,000 
Bonds payable (n~t of unamortized 

discounts and deferred 
amount on refunding) 300,05 1,324 

Total liabilities S 438,898!900 
NET ASSETS 

Invested in capital assets 
(net of related debt) S 457,5 14,538 

Restricted for: 
Debt Service 1,645,701 
General govemment 8,170,099 
Education 4,018,765 
Public safety 30,234,235 
Physical environment 9,417,898 
Transportation 72,57 1;792 
Economic envirorunent 13,281,716 
Human services 7,224,7 12 
C1Ilture and recreation 56,538,734 
Housing 0 
Renewal and replacement 0 

Unrestricted . 26,350,488 
Total nct assets , 686,968,678 

15 

Prima12 Government 
Business-type 

Activities 

, 3,944,050 , 
0 

91,487 
0 
0 

7,932 
4;108 

0 

37,852 
475,439 
884,594 

4,186,250 

0 
174,019 

0 
191,228 

0 
3,23 1,870 

0 
27,185,074 

1,7 17,130 
0 

1,966,090 
307,7 18 

0 

41,148,214 

S 85!553 ,655 , 
S 182,539,~;39 S 

7,891 ,020 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

25,887,154 
42,464, 150 , 258,78 1 !863 , 

= 

TOlal 

25,029,708 
8,206,430 
3,189,768 

0 
99 

2,711,922 
4,708 

4,784,829 

37,852 
475,439 
884,594 

4, 186,250 

9,833,850 
2,876,540 

53,708 
277,716 
383,000 

27,536,750 

11 , 101 ,98 1 
27, 185,074 
28, 173,11 1 

440,178 
19,248,621 

317,889 
6,253,000 

341,199,538 

524,452,555 

640,054,077 

9,536,72 1 
8,170,099 
4,018,765 

30,234,235 
9,417,898 

72,571,792 
13,281 ,716 
7,224,712 

56,538,734 
0 

25,887,154 
68,814!638 

945! 750,541 

, 

S 

, 

S 

A- I 
20F2 

Component 
UnilS 

480,338 
48,053 

0 
250,762 

0 
0 
0 

101,901 

0 
0 
0 
0 

0 
226,125 

0 
0 

168,958 
0 

0 
0 
0 
0 

306,582 
0 

1,386,889 

0 

2!969,608 

37,558,461 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

1,224,500 
0 

16,002!151 
54,785, 112 



A-2 

J OF2 

BREVARD COUNTY, FLORJDA 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

ProB.ram Revenues 
O~,(Jfing 

Cluugesfor Gran/sand 

FunctionsIPrognuns Expenses Services Contributions 

Primary government: 
Governmental activities: 

General government $ 99,522,358 $ 37,834,740 $ 15,987,991 
Public safety 171,888,560 44,735,910 2,&44,110 
Physical environment 12,880.096 4, 145,535 14,698,356 
Transportation 35,410,193 9,997,235 1,013,407 
Economic environment 17,537,958 0 5,957,258 
Human services 33,151,840 4,338,014 4,427,2 17 
Cu ltu~ and recreation 50,289,947 4,113,075 1,371,909 

Interest on long-term debt J4,894,374 0 0 

Total governmental activities S 435,575,326 $ 105,164,569 $ 46,300,248 

Business type activities: 

Solid WIlSIe $ 33,375,247 $ 36,202,719 $ 662,561 
Water Resources 30,762,3S2 29,457,339 0 
Transi t Service 11 ,793,629 1,287,257 7,259,797 

County·wide gol f courses 4,061,373 2,901,483 37,589 

Total business type activities $ 79,992,601 $ 69,S48,798 $ 7,959,947 
Total primary government $ 515,367,927 $ 175,013,367 $ 54,260,195 

Component units: 
North Brevard County 

Public Library District S 3,544 $ 2,771 $ 0 
Merrin Island Redevelopment Agenc)' 1,269,844 0 0 
TilUsvilJe-Cocoa Airport Authority 2,638,619 1,985,425 0 
Melbourne-Tillman Water Control District 2,890,175 1,779,251 0 
Housing Finance Authority 362,072 579, 172 0 

TOIal component units I 7,164,254 $ 4,346,619 $ 0 

General revenues: 

Taxes: 

Capital 

Gran/sand 

COlllribrJlions 

$ 12,434,214 

4,724,074 

2,689,452 
5,583,07.5 

0 
0 

840,398 

0 

$ 26,271 ,2 13 

$ 385,886 

1,597,072 
1,523,S85 

961 
$ 3,507,804 
$ 29,779,017 

$ 0 
596,500 

2,242,901 

0 
0 

$ 2,S39,401 

Ad valorem taxes, levied for general purposes 
Ad valorem taxes, levied for debt service 

Communication service tax 

Local option gas tax 
Tourist tax 

Other 
State shared revenues (unrestricted) 

Interest income 
Miscellaneous 

Transfers 

Tota l general revenues., and transfers 

Change in net assets 

Net assets - beginning 

Net assets - ending 

The accompan),ins notes to the financial statements arc an integral part of this statement. 
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Gowrl1l1lflllal 

A,("'Ulu 

, (33,265,413) 
( 119,584,406) 

8,6S3,247 

(1 8,816,476) 
(1 1,580,700) 
(24,386,609) 
(43,964,565) 

!14,894 .)74~ 

$ (257,839,296) 

$ 0 
0 
0 
0 , 0 , (257,839,296) 

S 116,2 18,255 
16,225,677 
8, 163,244 
7,490, 170 
7,925,866 

526,488 
27,937,776 

5,952,622 
10,682,029 
P96, ] 9O~ , 260,725,937 

S 2,886,64] 

684,082,037 

S 686,968,618 

Nel (Expense) Revenue Qnd 
Chon(u in Nil Assets 

Primary Gowrnmenl 

Bwsi rtfss-typf 

ACO·"jfiu Total 

, 0 S (33,265,41 3) 

0 (l 19,S84,406) 
0 8,653,241 
0 ( 18,8 16,416) 

0 ( J 1,580,700) 
0 (24,386,609) 
0 (43 ,964,5605) 
0 ~14,894,374~ , 0 $ (257,839,296) 

, 3,875,91 9 , 3,875,919 
292,059 292,059 

( 1,722,690) ( 1,722,690) 
! 1.12 1,H O) ( 1, 121 ,3401 , 1,]23,948 , 1.32) ,948 , 1.323,948 , (256,5 15,]48) 

, 0 , 176,2 18,2S5 

0 16,225,677 

0 8,163,244 
0 7,490, 170 

0 7,925,866 
0 526,488 

0 27,937,776 
1,798,818 7,751,440 

484,342 11 ,166,)7] 
396,190 0 , 2,679,)50 S 263,405,287 , 4,003,298 , 6,889,939 

254,778,565 938,860,602 , 258,181,863 , 945,150,541 

17 

, 

, 

, 

S , 
, 

Compoflllll 
Unill 

(713) 
(613,)44) 

1,589,707 
( 1,1 10,924) 

217, 100 
2 1,766 

31 
0 
0 
0 
0 

1,229,187 

0 
) 49,839 

1,379 
0 

1,580,436 

],602,202 

53,1&2,910 

S4, 785, 112 

A-2 
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BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 

BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

Emergency 
Gt~"erlll Services 

ASSETS 

C"h $ 4:5,087,972 S 24,740,646 
Cash with escrow and paying agent 0 0 
Receivables (net ofallowance for uncol1ectibles): 

Accounts 3,893,054 6,514,988 
Taxes 852, 191 45,811 
Assessments 4,766 56,620 
Accl'\led interest 48,626 47,362 

Due from other funds 1,453,828 67,259 
Due from other governmental units :5,451,736 989,635 
Inventory of supplies 3,285,898 1,467,015 
Advances to other funds 404,164 0 
Prepaid items 2921893 0 

Total assets $ 60,775,128 $ 33,929,336 

U ABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities: 
Vouchers and contracts payable $ 7,509,499 $ 1,725,553 
Accrued wages and benefits payable 7,715,731 0 
Due 10 other funds 69 1, 146 0 
Due to other governmental units 2,083,322 334, 107 
Advances from other funds 1,518,469 0 
Deferred revenue 3,242,289 4,158,579 

Total liabilit ies $ 2217601462 S 6,218,239 

Fund balances: 
Reserved for: 

Debt service $ 0 , 0 
Inventory 3,285,898 1,467,015 
Prepaid items 292,893 0 
Noncurrent receivables 404,164 0 

Unreserved, reported in; 
General Fund 34,031,711 0 
Debl Service funds 0 0 
Special Revenue funds 0 26,244,082 
Capital Project funds 0 0 

Total fund balances $ 3:9,014,666 , 27,711,097 

Total liabilities and fund balances , 60,775, 128 , 33,929,336 
~ 

The accompanying notes to the fmancial statements are an integral pan of th is statement. 
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Brtvard COllnty 
Transportation 

T=' G~anI, 

S 1.1 1,599,841 S 753 S 
296,728 0 

14,684 4,859 
0 0 
0 0 

191,126 4,695 
3,237,320 0 
2,917,213 9,760,589 

44,739 0 
5,400 0 

0 0 

S 11 8z307 zOS 1 S 9z770,896 $ 

S 2,804,52 1 S 1,526,254 S 
0 0 
0 5,53 1,3 89 

9,344 0 
0 170,000 

1,275/172 61306,493 

S 4,089,031 S 13,534,136 S 

S 0 S 0 S 
44,739 0 

0 0 
0 0 

0 0 
0 0 

114, 173,275 (3,763 ,240) 
0 0 

$ 11412181°14 $ {3t763t240~ S 

S 1181307
t
051 S 91770t896 S 

Parks and 
Recreation 
Facilitiu 

47,332,558 S 
0 

33,730 
0 
0 

82,641 
1,526,069 
2, 129,734 

0 
0 
0 

51zlO4,732 S 

2,622,939 S 
0 
0 
0 
0 

2,129,734 

4,752,673 S 

0 S 
0 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

4613521°59 

46,352,059 S 

51,104,732 S 

19 

Other 
GO'llemmenlal 

Funds 

80,725,752 
5,213 

251,860 
349,696 
186,988 
131 ,336 
586,506 

2,085,689 
2,308, 11 5 

379,525 
0 

871OlOz680 

3,220,448 
490,69) 
555,223 
331,2 17 
277,21 1 

1,447,216 

6,328,008 

707,000 
2,308, 11 5 

0 
0 

0 
6,943,666 

57,323,2 11 
131400t680 

80t6821672 

871°10,680 

S 

S 

S 

S 

S 

S 
$ 

A-3 
20F3 

T%l . 

309,487,522 
301,941 

10,7 13,175 
1,247,698 

248,374 
505,786 

6,870,982 
23,334,596 
7,105,767 

789,089 
2921893 

360z897,823 

19,409,214 
8,206,430 
6,777,758 
2,763,990 
1,965,680 

18/5591483 

57,682,555 

707,000 
7,105,767 

292,893 
404,164 

34,031,7 11 
6,943,666 

193,977,328 
59t752:739 

303~15t268 

36018971823 
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BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
RECONCILIA nON OF THE BALANCE SHEET 

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

Fund balances - total governmental funds 

Amounts reponed for governmental activities in the statement 
of net assets are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not 
fmandaJ resources and therefore are nol repOrted in the 
governmental funds, 

Other assets used in governmental activities are not 
financial resources and therefore are not reported in the 
governmental funds. 

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and 
payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in 
the governmental funds. 

Deferred revenue in the governmental funds is susceptible to full 
accrual on the entity-wide statements. 

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the 
costs or certain services to individual funds. The assets and 
liabilities of the internal service funds are reported with 
governmental activities. 

Net assets of governmental activities 

20 

$ 303,215,268 

725,23 1,827 

3,086,409 

(380,490,172) 

13,774,654 

22,150,692 

! 686,968,678 



21 



A-4 
I OF3 

BREVARD COUNIT, FLORIDA 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

GOVERNMCNTALFUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

Emergency 
General Suvicu 

REVENUES 
Taxes S 132,394,729 S 9,325,688 
PennilS, fees and special assessments 15,528,693 21,18 1,250 

Intergovernmental revenues 50,206,866 3,333,184 
Charges for services 26,684,413 13,993,449 
Fines and forfeits 272,288 435,583 
Miscellaneous revenues 71199,247 834,046 

Total revenues S 232z2861236 S 49,10],200 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

General government S 83,841,79 1 S 0 
Public safety 87,035,3 16 60,240,022 
Physical environment 2,6 17,639 0 
Transportation 6,426,376 0 
Economic environment 1,788,772 0 
Human services 13,4)4,045 0 
Culture and recreation 15,295,469 0 

Intergovernmental 4,41 3,535 203,179 
Capital outlay 0 0 
Debt service: 

Principal 553,279 59,427 
Interesl 521769 5,134 

TOlal expenditures S 215,4641991 S 6O!507,762 

Excess (deficiency) ofrcvenues 
oYer (under) expenditures S 161821 1245 S {11,404 ,562~ 

OTIiER FINANCING SOURCES 
AND (USES) 
Transfers in S 9,240,623 S 8,343,525 
Transfers out (29,575,454) (885,615) 
Proceeds of lhe sale of capilal asselS 2,948,395 79,481 
Insurance proceeds 203,584 0 
Refunding bonds issued 0 0 
Bond refunding payment 0 0 

Tolal other financing sources 
and (uses) S i I 71 I 82,852l S 7,-5371391 

Net change in fund balanees S (36 1,607) , (3,867, 17 1) 

Fund balances· beginning 38,596,68 1 31,760,172 

Increase (decrease) in reserve for 
inventory of supplies and prepaid ilems !2201408l 

Fund balances· ending S 381°141666 

11le accompanying notes 10 the fmancial statemenlS arc an intcgral part of this statement. 
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Brevard County Parks and Other Total 
Transportation Recreation Governmental Governmental 

T~' Grants Facilities Funds Funds 

, 8,019,965 , 0 , 0 , 67,486,309 , 217,226,691 
222,991 0 0 9,175,430 46,108,364 

8,3n,J78 24,897,027 292,875 1,576,217 88,628,547 
4,777,283 42,058 0 9,581 ,015 55,078,218 

0 0 0 2,733,364 3,441,235 
2,676,769 . 13,533 1,486,433 41°841°92 16,294,120 , 24,019,386 , 24,952,6 18 , 1,779,308 , 94,636,427 $ 426,777,175 

I 173,632 , 538,166 , 0 S 6,548,919 , 91,109,108 
0 1,002,772 0 21,856,851 170, 134,961 
0 5,960,355 0 9,629,670 18,207,664 

25,40),844 6,700,434 0 5,458,393 43,989,047 
0 5,580,726 0 6, 163,203 13,532,701 
0 4,997,217 0 4,725, 110 23,156,372 
0 1,966,975 0 25,768,850 4),031 ,294 

392,835 407,756 0 9,200,959 14,618,264 
0 0 15,872,805 3,454,880 19,327,685 

3,620,000 0 0 21,453,548 25,686,254 
5,59 1,208 0 0 10,108,700 15,757,811 , 35,181,519 , 27,155,001 , 15,872,805 , 124,369,083 , 478,551,161 

, (11,162,133) S (2,202,383) $ (14,093,497) $ (29,732,656) , (5 1,773,986) 

, 3,924,751 , 647,058 $ 715,840 , 19,274,435 , 42,146,232 
(218,249) (3 13,491) 0 (8,748,543) (39,74 1,352) 

47,633 0 174,000 97,544 3,347,053 
31,654 0 3,000 26,904 265, 142 

0 0 0 3,897,816 3,897,816 
0 0 0 (3,880,678) (3,880,678) 

, 3,785,789 , 333,567 , 892,840 , 101667,478 , 6,034,213 

$ (7,376,344) $ (1,868,8 16) , (1 3,200,657) $ (19,065, 178) , (45,739,773) 

12 1,604,666 (1,894,424) 59,552,716 99,049,992 348,669,803 

{IO,3081 0 0 697,858 285!238 , 114,218,014 , {3,763,240} , 46,352,059 , 80,682,672 , 303,215,268 
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BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERN~ENTAL FUNDS 

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 20 I 0 

Nel change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditwes. 
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of these assets 
is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reponed as 
depreciation expense. 

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving 
capital assets (i.e., sales, trade-ins, and donations) is to 
decrease net assets. 

Some revenues reponed in the statement of activities are to be collected 
on a long-tenn basis and therefore are not reported as revenues 
in the funds. 

Long-term bonds and lease proceeds provide current fmancial 
resources to the governmental funds, but issuing debt increases 
long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets. Repayment 
of bond principal is an expendituJe in the governmental funds, but 
the repayment reduces the long-term liabilities in the statement 
of net assets. This is the amount by which proceeds exceeded 
repayments. 

Some expenses reported in the statement of act ivities do not 
require the use of current financial resources and therefore 
are not reported as expendituJes in the governmental fund. 

Some expenditures reponed in governmental funds are to be 
collected on a long-term basis and therefore are not reported 
in the statement of activit ies. 

Internal service funds are used by management 10 charge the 
costs of certain services to individual funds. The net (revenue) 
of the internal service funds is reponed with governmental activities. 

Change in net assets of governmental activities S 

24 

(45,739,773) 

26,421, 152 

6,447,051 

(919,503) 

25,586,127 

(985,296) 

285,238 

{8,208,9552 
2,886,641 
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BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 

GENERAL FUND 

STATEf,.1ENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDlruRES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES· BUDGET AND AcnJAL 

FOR 1liE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

Vcvianu with 

Bud8,ued A",oulIlS final budget-
Porilive 

Ori~frwl FiTt(lt AC/lla/ AmOWlI (!:!.e&aliW!L 

REVENUES 
Taxes: 

Ad valor<:m ta>;es , 133,396, 132 , 133,396,132 , 124,247,227 , (9,]48,905) 
Communication services tax 8,008,283 7,992,955 7,633,449 (359,j06) 
Other laxes 300,000 300,000 514,053 214,053 

Total taxes , J41,704,415 , 14 1,689,0S7 , 132,394,129 , (9,294,358) 

Permil5, fees and special assessments: 
Franchise fees~lcctric i!y , 17,376,793 , 17,376,793 , 14,172,835 , (3,203,958) 
Special assessments 0 0 2,140 2, 140 
Other permits and fees 1,698,901 1,636,560 1,353,71 8 (282,842) 

Total pmnits, fees, and special assessments , 19,075,694 , 19,013,353 , 15,523,693 , (3,484,660) 

intergovernmental ~vcnues: 
Federal grants , 1,650,325 , 4,040,204 , 5,980,262 , 1,940,058 
FedCTal payments in lieu of taxes 350,000 350,000 27),601 (76,399) 
Stale grants 294,138 463,%9 1,141,036 677,06? 
Stale shared revenucs 42.1%,583 42,1%,583 42,694,285 49?,?02 
Grants from OthCT local units 0 0 6,6 19 6,619 
Payments from other local units in lieu 

ofta~es 100,000 119,798 1l1 ,063 (8,W) 

Total intergovernmental revenues , 44,591,646 , 47,170,554 , 50,206,866 , 3,036,312 

Charges for SC1'Vices: 
General government , 12,246,597 , 11 ,919,593 , 11,407,8 16 , (511,777) 
Public sDfay 679,278 644,278 612,943 (31,33~) 

Physical environment 390,002 394,677 335,879 (58,198) 
Transportation 516,616 520,616 527,598 6,982 
Hwnan SeMces 321,000 321,000 181,650 (133,350) 
Culture and recreation 3,316,465 3,316,465 2,880,011 (436,448) 
Court-related revenues 2,132,142 2,132,142 1,825,041 (307,IOI) 
Other charges for services 9,086,220 9,3%,304 8,907,469 (488,835) 

Total charges for services , 28,688,320 , 28,645,075 , 26,684,413 , (1,96O,662) 

. Fines and forfeits , 443,923 , 443,923 , 272,288 , (171,6351 
Miscellaneous revenues: 

Interest earnings , 1,580,428 , 1,576,628 , 646,640 , (929,988) 
Rents and royalties 1,513,604 1,837,13$ 1,7 18,154 (1IS,98 I) 
Sales of surplus maleria15 0 0 S,1l9 5,119 
Contributions and donations 80,190 361,111 425,341 57,630 
Ucenses 1,283,479 1,283,479 1,184,020 (99,4S9) 
Other miscellaneous revenues 2,8B,181 3,855,854 3,219,973 (635,88 1) 

TOlal miscellaneous revenues , 7,371.482 , 8,920,807 , 7,199,247 , (1,721,5601 
Total revenues , 241,875,480 , 245,882,799 , 232,286,236 , 113,596,5631 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

General government: 
Legislative , 1,450,047 , 1,450,047 , 1,364,851 , 85,196 
Executive 820,601 835,582 829,139 6,443 
Financial and administrative )2,006,566 32,114,061 31,829,387 884,680 
Legal counsel 1,284,878 1,257,878 1,240,231 n,64? 
Comprehensive planning 2,375,259 2,318,591 2,142,153 176,438 
Court related 27,498,037 27,635,425 26,874,589 760,836 
Otber general government 22,201,105 22,01 1,182 19,567,441 2,443,?41 

Total general gOW1'lllTlent , 87,636,499 , 88,222,712 , 83,847,791 , 4,374,981 

The accompanying I1Qtes 10 the financial stalements are an integrDI p~ {)fthis statement. 
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"a,ianc~ ... itn 
BudS!,lei ,("'011/111 jiMI blltigtl . 

Posili~ 

O~i&.iNJI FilUll Ae/IIDI Amo""/ (Ntla1iw2 
Expenditures (continued) 

Publk ,.,rely: 
Lawenfom:menl • 37,974,456 • 43,043,:528 • U, I69,276 • 874,252 
Detention arodIor c:omttion 40,IH,394 40,396,128 39,818,708 577,420 
PToteclive inspections 1,&03,566 1,668,109 I,H6,409 11 1,800 
EmcrJmcy and di$asler n:lic f services 1,582,009 2,297,613 1,«5,036 852,637 
Medical examiner 1,634,706 \,534,106 1.469,765 64,941 
Other pIIblic: safety 7:57,207 640,207 H6, I22 64,085 

Talal public safety • 83,909,338 • 89,:580,4:51 • 87,03:5,3 16 • 2,54:5,1lS 

Physica' environment: 
Consetvation and resourc:e managcmml • 4,0:59,7:52 • 4,016,123 • . 2,6171639 • 1,398,484 

Transportation: 
Road and street flleil ities • 6,976,629 • 6,944,826 • :5,964,6 11 • 980,2 IS 
AirportS 334,99\ 380,423 39:5,984 ( 15,:561) 
Other I1l11\l1ponltion "rvi~ 66,000 66,000 6:5,781 219 

TOIallnUUportation • 1,377,620 • 7,391,:149 • 6,426,376 • 964,873 

Eeonom.ic CTlvironment: 
Industry development • 1,644,492 • 1,644,492 • 1,:59:5,377 • 49,11:5 
Veterans' services 241,5 15 , 241 ,:5 15 193,395 48,120 

Total cronomic environment • 1,886,007 • 1,886,1)()7 • 1,788,772 • 97,235 

Human 'services: 
Health • 8,44 1,905 • 9,528,8 IS • 9,203,727 • 325,088 
Menllll health 2,081,440 2,O33,l89 2, 11 0, 109 (76,820) 
Welfare 2,571,363 2,755,255 2,048,442 706,813 
Dtvel~ disabilities 71,652 71,652 69,696 1,956 
Other bUllWl services 38,000 38,000, 2,071 35,929 

T 0l.Il1 buman services • 13,2 11 ,360 • 14,427,011 • 13,434,045 • 992,966 
Culfllre and rocrution: 

Parb and rec:rution • 20,863,178 • 20,616,872 • \4,896,905 • 5,7 19,967 
CultWllI services 443,18 1 443, 111 391,564 44,617 

Total QlhWl: and rec:rution • 21.306,359 • 21,060,053 • 15,295,469 • 5,764,584 

Inlaiovmvnenl.lll • 4,570,082 • 4,413,535 • 4,413z535 • 0 
Ot:bt serviot: 

Principal • 776,626 • 60 1,626 • 553,279 • 41,347 

"" ... 221,000 22 1,000 52,769 161,231 
TOUII debt sc:rvic:c: • 997,626 • 822,626 • 606,048 • 216,578 

T 0l.Il1 expenditures • 224,954,643 • 23 1,819,827 • 215,464,991 • 16,354,836 
Exces5 of revenues 
~ expenditures • 16,920,837 • 14,062,!m • 16,821,245 • 2:758,273 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
AND (USES) 

Transfers in • 8,406,93 1 • 8,846,246 • 9,240,623 • 394,377 
Transfers out , (35,356,131) (32,934,445) (29,575,454) 3,358,991 
Proe«ds oftbe sale of capillli assets 2,072,000 2,86 1,:139 2,948,395 87,056 
InSW'8l"lCe proec:eds 126,930 128,782 203,5&4 74,802 

Total other lil\ftll(in& sowees 
i21,(l9&zi~ "'" - • (24,750,2702 • • 117,182,8521 • 3,915,226 

Net chan8e in fund balances • p,829,433! • F,035tl~ • (36 1,6071 • 6,673,499 

Fund balances· ~&iMin8 • 38,596,681 • Decrease in reserve for 
38,596,681 • 38,596,681 • 0 

invcntOf)' of supplies and prepaid items 0 0 020,4081 1220,4081 
Fund balances· endinS • 30,767,248 • ) 1,56 1,575 - • • 38,014,666 • 6,453,091 
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BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 

EMERGENCY SERVICES 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDIllJRES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES· BUDGET AND ACfUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

Variance with 
Budgeted Amounts final budget. 

Positive 
OrigJllal Final Actual Amount f!f.egativel 

REVENUES 
Taxes , 9,648,295 $ 9,648,295 $ 9,325,688 $ (322,607) 
Permits, fees 

and special assessments 22,102,712 21,909,458 21,.1 81 ,250 (728,208) 
Intergovernmental revenues 1,273,766 1,313,65 1 3,333,184 2,019,533 
Charges for services 13,780,201 14,089,659 13,993,449 (96,2 10) 
Fines and forfeits 630,000 630,000 435,583 (194,417) 
Miscellaneous revenues 1, 14°1564 '!127.564 8341046 {293,518l 

Total revenues $ 48,575,538 , 48!718,627 $ 49!103,200 , 389 73 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Public safety $ 69,730,423 I 72,010,546 I 60,240,022 I 11,110,524 
Intergovernmental 0 203,119 203, 119 0 
Debt service: 

Principal 56,000 56,000 59,421 (3,421) 
Interest 6,117 6, 117 5! 134 983 

Total expenditures $ 69,7921540 $ 7212751842 $ 6015071762 $ 11:168,080 

Deficiency of revenues 
under expenditures $ ~21,21710022 $ p3,557,2 15l $ ~111404,562l $ 12,152,653 

OTHER FfNANCrNG SOURCES 
AND (USES) 
Transfers in $ 11,644,549 $ 10,644,549 , 8,343,525 $ (2,301,024) 
Transfers out ( 1,266,668) (1,175,009) (885,6 15) 289,394 
Proceeds of the sale 

of capital assets 0 0 79,481 19,481 

Total other financing sources 
and uses $ 101377,881 $ 91469

1
540 $ 715371391 $ {11932,149} 

Net change in fund balances $ (10,839, 12 1) I (14,087,675) , (3,867,171) $ 10,220,504 

Fund balances - beginning 31,160,172 31,760,172 31,760,172 0 
Decrease in reserve 

for inventory of supplies 0 0 ~181,904~ {I8 1,904l 
Fund balances - ending $ 20,921,051 , 17,6721497 $ 27,711,097 $ 10,038,600 

The ac(;ompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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BREVARD COUNTI, FLORIDA 

BREVARD COUNTY TRANSPORT ATlON TRUST 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES· BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPlCMBER 3D, 2010 

Variance with 
Buds.elcd Amounts final budget-

Positive 
Orig,inal Final Actual Amount (!!e&,olivel 

REVENUES 
Taxes $ 8,269,764 $ 8,269,764 $ 8,019,965 $ (249,799) 
Permits, fees and 

special assessments 0 222,991 222,991 0 
Intergovernmental revenues 15,136,150 15,45 1,150 8,322,378 (7, )28,772) 
Charges for services 3,732,840 5,307,840 4,777,283 (530,557) 
Miscellaneous revenues 1!4061867 2,270,134 2,676,769 406,635 

Total revenues $ 281545 1621 $ 31,52 1
1
879 $ 24,0 19,386 $ (7,502,493l 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

General government $ 173 ,282 S 173,282 $ 173,632 $ (350) 
Transportation 116,463,305 132,11 1,326 25,403,844 106,707,482 

Intergovernmental 0 1,292,836 392,835 900,001 
Debt service: 

Principal 3,380,168 3,620,000 '3,620,000 0 
Interest 5,773,832 5,537,233 5,5911208 {53,975~ 

Total expenditures $ 125279°1587 , 142,734,677 $ 35,181,519 $ 107,553,158 

Deficiency of revenues 
under expenditures $ {97,244,966~ $ { 1 11,212,798~ $ {I 111621133~ S 10°1°501665 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
AND (USES) 
Transfers in $ 4,434,682 , 4,423,356 $ 3,924,751 $ (498,605) 
Transfers out (227,982) (227,982) (2 18,249) 9,733 
Proceeds of the sale of capital assets 40,000 40,000 47,633 7,633 
Insurance proceeds 10,000 25,616 31,654 6,038 

Total other fmancing soun;es 
and uses $ 4,2561700 $ 4,260,990 $ 3,785,789 $ {475,20Q 

Net change in fund balances $ {92,988,266~ , { 1 06,95 1 ,808~ $ {1,376,344~ $ 99,575,464 

Fund balances - begirming $ 121,604,666 $ 121,604,666 $ 121,604,666 $ 0 
Decrease in reserve 

for inventory of supplies 0 0 pO,308~ {10,3081 

Fund balances - ending $ 28,616,400 $ 14,652,858 $ 114,218,014 $ 99,565,156 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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BREVARD COUNTY, Fl.ORlDA 

GRANTS 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDlnJRES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES· BUDGET AND ACllJAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER )0, 2010 

Variance with 
Bud8..tted AmOWlO" jiM/ budget-

Positive 
Original Final Actual Amount (Ne8.Q/ivel 

REVENUES 
Intergovernmental revenues , 40,356,237 , 57,511,479 , 24,897,027 , (32,6 14,452) 

Charges for services 125,196 196 42,058 41 ,862 
Miscellaneous revenues 34,438 41,140 1) ,533 (27,607) 

Total revenues , 40,5 15,87 1 $ 5',552,815 , 24,952,618 $ (32,600, 197) 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

General government , 3,017,070 , 3,354,566 , 53 8,766 $ 2,81 5,800 

Public safety 537,662 4,24 1,241 1,002,772 3,23 8,469 

Physical environment 5,710,955 9,405,019 5,960,355 3,444,664 

Transponalion 12,374,804 16,756,165 6,700,434 10,055,73 1 
Economic environment 11 ,127,874 11 ,]82,570 5,580,726 5,801,844 

Human services 3,626,087 7,242,789 4,997,2 17 2,245,572 
Culture and recreation 2,458,396 2,85 1,068 1,966,975 884,093 

Intergovemmental 100,000 100,000 407.756 (307.756) 

Total expendi tures , 38,952,848 $ 55,3331418 $ 27,155,00 1 $ 28, 178,417 

Excess (deficiency) of revcnues 
over (under) expenditures $ 1,563,023 , 2,219,397 $ (21202,383} , (4,42 1,7&02 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
AND (USES) 
Transfers in $ 588,125 , 722,662 $ 647,058 , (75.604) 
Transfers out P13133!} PI3,33!} p13.49 1l (IS4l 

TOlal other financing sources 
and uses $ 274?88 , 4091325 , 333,567 $ PS,7S8} 

~el change in fund balances , 1,837.8 11 , 2.628,722 , (1,868,816) S (4.497,538) 

Fund balances· beginning ~1 .894,424l {1.894,424} ~I,894,424l , 0 

Fund balances - ending , {56,613l $ 7341298 S PI763,240} , (4,497,538} 

The accompanying notes 10 the financia l statements are an integral part of th is statement. 
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BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

SEPTEMBER 3D, 2010 

Business.rype 

Solid Waste Woler 
Management Resources 
Dee.arlment Dee.artment 

ASSETS 
Current ass.elS: 

Cash and cash equivalents S 40,190,673 S 10,589,066 
Cash with escrow and paying agent 0 0 
Accounts re<:eivable (net of allowance 

for uncollectibles) 591,328 133 ,700 
Accrued interest receivable 11 3,119 38,803 
Due from other funds 35,38 1 130,764 
Due from other governmental units 332,620 3,216,127 
Prepaid items 0 0 
Inventories 232,002 791,442 . 
Restricted assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 24,985,430 12, 152,788 
Accrued interest receivable 0 0 
Due from other govemmental units 0 424,110 
Total current assets S 66,480,553 S 27,477,400 

NonculTcnt assets: 
Capital assets: 

Lon' S 27,124,008 S 3,51 1,545 
Buildings and structures 23,955,30 1 20,673,619 
Infrastructure 9,531,601 1,790,900 
Improvements to land 1,060,132 0 
Improvements other than buildings 11,111,094 235,842,640 
Machinery and equipment 18,544,322 9,849,061 
Goodwill 0 0 
Less accumulated depreciation (27,883,148) (15 1,025,400) 
Construction in progress 6,500,784 2,498,589 

Advances to other funds 379,64 1 1,605,561 
Unamortized debt issue costs 0 12p45 

Tolal noncurrent assets S 16,330/335 S 130,8 18,626 
Total assets $ 142 t810/888 S I 58 t296z026 

12 



Activities · Enlerf!!.ise Funds 

Barefoot Bay Other 
Water &: Sewer Business-type 

Distriel Activities 

$ 1,395,430 $ 9,001,2 17 $ 
0 0 

IS 1,772 58,655 
2,494 15,5 10 

0 0 
0 2,44 1,159 
0 0 

89,654 107,605 

1,798,567 0 
1,415 0 

0 0 
$ 3,439,332 $ 11,624,146 $ 

S 5,102,165 S 2, 171,899 S 
1,]39,186 4,852,6 16 

0 0 
0 7,837,002 

12,276,680 143,732 
159,62) 18,376,931 

1,4 10,189 0 
(7,613,492) (20,659,835) 
1,111 ,828 4,581 

0 0 
254,308 20,736 

S 14,0401481 $ 1211411662 S 
I 11,419,8 19 S 24,31 11808 S 

J3 

Total 

61,176,386 
0 

935,455 
169,926 
166,145 

5,990,506 
0 

1,220,703 

38,936,785 
1,415 

424, 110 

109,021 ,4]1 

37,909,617 
50,820,782 
17,322,50 1 
8,897,734 

265,380, 146 
46,929,943 

1,410, 189 
(207, 181,815) 

10, 11 5,782 
1,985,202 

3411°89 

2]]19311 110 

342
1
958

1
541 

A·' 
20F 4 

Governmental 
ActM ties-

Internal 
Service 
Funds 

$ 43,453 ,154 
1,221,000 

37,039 
19,476 
19,000 

506,74 1 
1,211,880 

0 

0 
0 
0 

$ 46,534,290 

$ 0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

5,392,829 
0 

(4. 118,205) 
0 

37,647 
0 

I 1
1
] 12

1
21 1 

I 411846,56 1 
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LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities 

(payable from current assets): 
Vouchers and contracts payable 
Claims payable 
Due to other funds 
Due to other govemmenial units 
Matured interest payable 
Accrued interest payable 
Accrued compensated absences 
Revenue bonds 
Capilalleases payable 

Current liabil ities 
(payable from restricted assets): 

Vouchers and contracts payable 
Accrued interest payable 
Customer deposits 
Revenue bonds 

Total cUJTenlliabililies 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Revenue bonds payable (nct of 

BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

PROPRlET ARY FUNDS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

Solid Waste 
Managemenl 
Dee.artmenl 

, 1,520,472 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

40,033 
0 
0 

0 
0 

380,005 
0 

S 1194°1510 

unamortized discounts and defeJTed 
amount on refunding) S 0 

Capital leases payable 0 
Advances from other funds 0 
Claims payable 0 
Landfi ll closure and postclosure care 27,185,074 
Accrued compensated absences 599,063 
Other postemployment benefits 7131415 

Total noncurrent liabilities S 2814971552 

Total liabilities S 301438,062 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in capital asselS, net of re lated debt S 75,950,694 
Restricted (or: 

Debt service 0 
Renewal and replacement 24,605,425 

Unrestricted 11 18161707 

Total net assets , 112,372~826 

Business-type 

Waler 
Resources 

Dee.anment 

S 685,048 
0 
0 
0 

4,708 
5,805 

75,536 
2,693,750 

0 

0 
122,413 
457,979 

3
1
17 1,250 

S 1,8 16,489 

I 21,843,838 
0 
0 
0 
0 

642,347 
723,319 

S 231209,504 

S 3 1,0251993 

I 100,832,182 

7,725,256 
500,000 

181212,595 

S 127,270,033 

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal Service fund activities related to Enterprise funds 

Net assets of business-type activities 

The accompanying noles to the rmancial statements are an integral pan of this statement. 
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Aclivitiu _ enJerprise Funds 

Barefool Bay 
Water &: Sewer 

District 

S 41 ,932 
0 

60,000 
0 
0 

21,554 
5,066 

44,000 
0 

37,852 
)53,026 
46,610 

4151000 , \,0251040 

, 14,810,545 
0 

846,258 
0 
0 

83,516 
641514 

S 151804,833 
S 16,829,873 

S (1,483,366) 

165,764 
781,729 

1,1851819 , 649,946 

o.hu 
Business-type 

ACIM lies 

S 1,696,598 
0 

168,468 
7,932 

0 
64, 128 
53,384 

494,120 
191 ,228 

0 
0 
0 
0 , 2,675,858 

, 4,493,83 1 
307,718 

0 
0 
0 

392,204 
464,842 , 5,6581595 

S 8,334,45) 

S 7,240,029 

0 
0 

8,797,326 , 16,037,355 

3S 

Total 

, 3,944,050 
0 

228,468 
7,932 
4,708 

91,487 
J74,019 

3,2) 1,810 
191,228 

37,852 
475,439 
884,594 

411861250 , 1314571891 

, 41 ,148,2 14 
307,718 
846,258 

0 
27,185,074 

1,717,130 
),9661090 

S 731170,484 

S 86,628,381 

S 182,539,539 

7,891 ,020 
25,887,154 
4°1°121447 

S 256,330,160 

2145 11703 

S 258
1
781,863 

A-' 
40F4 

Governmental 
Activities­
Infernal 
Service 
Funds 

S 1,676,444 
9,833,850 

0 
0 
0 
0 

40,269 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 
0 

S 11,550,563 

, 0 
0 
0 

11 ,101 ,981 
0 

399,078 
192,544 , 11

1
693,603 

S 23,244, 166 

S 1,214,624 

0 
0 

23,327
1
771 

S 24,602,395 
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BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

Business-type 

Solid Wasle Waler 
Management Resaurces 
Dee,arlment Dee.arlment 

Operating n:venues: 
Service fees , 24,713,813 , 26,185 ,678 
Less cost of goods sold 0 0 

Total operating revenues , 24,7131813 , 261185 ,678 
Operating expenses: 

Wages and benefits , 7,7 15,763 , 8,228,006 
Repair, maintenance, and other services 5,117,527 8,984,117 
Materials and supplies 3,230,692 1, 172,464 
Landfill closure and postclosure care 882,574 0 
Depreciation 4,571,402 6,570,256 
Insurance claims expense 0 0 

Total operat ing expenses S 21,5231958 , 24,954,843 
.Operating income (Joss) , 31249,855 , 1,230,835 
Nonoperating revenues (expenses): 

Income on investments , 1,168,549 , 374,847 
Interest expense (22,395) (1,405,470) 
Miscellaneous revenue 261,014 47,659 
Grants and matching funds 166,64 1 0 
Loss on disposal of capital asselS ( 145,605) (572,540) 
Amortization of debt issue COSIS 0 !46,O55~ 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) , 1,428,204 , !1,601 ,559} 
Income (loss) before conrribut ions 

and transfers , 4,678,059 S (370,724) 
Capital conrributions 385,886 1,597,072 
Transfers in 242,539 235,379 
Transfers out !1,244,69I l {11 141 ,334} 

Change in net assets , 4,06 1,793 , 320,393 
Net assets - beginning 108,31 1,033 1261949,640 

Net assets - ending , 112,372,826 , 127127°1°33 

Adjustment to renect the consolidation of Internal Service fund activities related to Enterprise funds . 

Change in net asselS of business· type activities 

The accompanying notes to the financial statemenlS are an integral pan of this statement. 
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Activities - Enterprise Funds 

Barefoot Bay Othu 
Water & Sewer Business-type 

District Activities 

S 3,271,66 1 S 15,733,33 1 
0 ~ 11 5,6851 

S 3,27 1,66 1 $ 15,6 17,646 

S 842,602 $ 5,4 52,339 
742,053 17,840,416 
154,346 1,222, 186 

0 0 
932,633 2, 142,605 

0 0 
S 2,67 1,634 $ 26,657,546 

S 600,027 S ( 11,039
1
900) 

s 42,689 S 2 12,733 
(77 1,200) (276,015) 

20,40 1 155,268 
0 7,793,306 

(1,758) (171 ,759) 
{22,759} {6,175} 

s (732,627} $ 7,707,358 

$ (132,600) , (3,332,542) 

0 1,524,846 
20,669 2,514,809 

p611671 {155,0141 

$ ( 188,098) $ 552,099 
8381044 15,485,256 

$ 649,946 $ 16,037,355 

To/al 

$ 69,%4,483 
~ 1 151685~ 

$ 69,848,798 

S 22,238,7 10 
32,684, 11 3 

5,779,688 
88i,574 

14,222,896 
0 

$ 75,807198 1 

s (5,9591183) 

$ 1,798,8 18 
(2,475,080) 

484,342 
7,959,9<17 
(891,662) 
P4,9891 

S 6,801,376 

S 842, 193 

3,507,804 
3,013,396 

{2,617,2061 

$ 4,746,187 

{74218891 

S 4,003 ,298 
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Governmental 
Activities-
InJernal 
Service 
Funds 

$ 61 ,000,550 
0 

$ 61,000,550 

. $ 4,435,736 
11 ,336,303 

32,615 
0 

680,342 
521903

1
303 , 69,3881299 

$ (8,387)491 

, 745,138 
0 

1,493,675 
0 

(5,9 10) 
0 

S 2,2321903 

, (6,154,846) 

4,072 
1,04 1,406 

P18421476} 

S (8,95 1,844) 

331554,239 

$ 24,602,395 
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BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRJET ARY AJNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

Solid Was/e 
MOllogement 
Dee,arlmelll 

Cash flows from opeming activities: 
Cash receipts for service fees S 24,440,703 
Cash receipts from other sources 60,067 
Cash payments to employees for serviees (7,74 1,734) 
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (7,980,879) 
Cash payments for insurance claims 0 

Nct cash from operating activities S 8,778,IH 
Cash flows from non capital financing activi ties: 

Grant receipts S 102,508 
Transfers in 242,S39 
Transfers out ( 1,244,69 1) 
Interfund loans 82,964 

Nct cash flows from 
noncapital financing activities S !816,680! 

Cash flows from capital and Idated financing activities: 
Debt proceeds $ . 0 
Principal payments ( l ,lSS,OOO) 
Interest payments (2I,94S) 
Capital grant receipts 0 
Payments to BCGuire, construct. or improve capital assets (9,364,327) 
Proceeds from disposal of capital ll5SCts 234,027 
Impact/connection fccs for capital purposes 392,441 

Net cash flows from capital 
and related financing activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
S ~9,91 4,804~ 

Interest on investments S 1,22S,020 

Net increase: (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents S (728,307) 

Cash and cash equivalents, October I, 2009 65,904,410 
Cash and cash equivalents, September 30, 2010 S 65,176, 103 

38 

Bus;IIess-fJ:E.e AClivilies -

Water 
Resources 

Dee,arlment 

S 26,137,587 
12,063 

(8,309,652) 
( 10,388,06 1) 

0 
S 7,4S I,937 

S 0 
23S,379 

(1,141,334) 
237,704 

S !668,2S I~ 

$ 0 
(6, 14S,OOO) 
( 1,648,673) 

0 
( 1,262,SS9) 

n,ns 
1,399,489 

S F,603, 168~ 

S 393,952 

S (42S,SJO) 

23, 167,384 
S 22,741,8S4 



Entere.rise Funds 

Barefoot Bay Other 
Waler & Sf!Wer Business-type 

Dis/riCI Activilies 

S 3,283,281 S 15,727,097 
19,488 198,414 

(841,389) (S,476,396) 
(858,99S) (18,899,608) 

0 0 

S 1,602,385 S (8,450,493) 

S 39,073 S 7,676,520 
20,669 2,669,052 

(16, 167) (155,014) 
{65,663~ 0 

S ~82,0881 S 10,190,558 

$ 1,547,000 $ 2,889,184 
(400,000) (3,418,198) 
(719,377) (266,~85) 

0 1,234,220 
(957,404) (1,247,043) 

718 11,106 
0 0 

S ~589,0231 s (197,1161 

S 4],360 S 198,706 , 974,634 S 1,141,055 

2,219,363 7,860,162 
S 3,193,997 S 9,001,217 

Tolal 

S 69,588,668 
290,032 

(22,369, 171 ) 
(38, 127,543) 

0 
S 9,381,986 

S 7,8 18,10 1 
3,167,639 

(2,611,206) 
255,005 

S 8,623,539 

$ 4,436,184 
(1"1,118,198) 

(2,7 16,980) 
1,234,220 

(12,83 1,333) 
299,466 

1,191,930 

s ( 18,904,1111 

S 1,861,038 

S 961,852 

99,151,3 19 
S 100,113,111 
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Governmental 
Ac/ivi/ies-
Infernal 

Service Funds 

S 6 1,10 1,946 
1,374,066 

(4,JS4,266) 
(12,679,931) 
!48,613,9S3} 

S (3, 172,1 38) 

S 0 
1,041 ,406 

(3,842,476) 
23,353 

S (2,771,71'1 

$ 0 
0 
0 
0 

(279,092) 
m 

0 

, (278,614) 

S 794, 11 5 

S (5,434,354) 

50,108,508 
S 44,674,1S4 
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BREVARD COUNTY, FLORJDA 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRJETARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

Solid Waste 
Management 
Departmem 

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) 10 net cash flows from operating activities 

Operating income (loss) 

Adjustments to reconcile operatin8 income (loss) 10 
net cash from operating activities: 

Depreciation expense 
Landfill closure and postclosurc care 
MiS(:ellanCQus revenue 
Changes in assets and liabi lities: 

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 
(Increase) deerease in due from other governmental units 
(Increase) decrease in inventories 
(Increase) decrease in prepaid items 
Increase (decrease) in customer deposits 
Increase (decrease) in accrued compensated absences 
Increase (decrease) in other posternployment benefits 
Increase (decrease) vouchers &: COfllnlClS payable 
Increase (dec;rease) in claims payable 
Increase (decrease) in due 10 other funds 
Increase (deercase) in due to other governmental units 

Totallidjustment 
Net cash from operating activities 

Noncash investing, capital and financing ICtivities: 

Capital contributed by developers. individuals, 
and governmental entities 

Acquisition orca-pital assets through lease-purchase 

, 

, 

, , 

, 
, 

3,249,855 

4,577,402 
882,574 
26 1,014 

13,709 
172,871 
75,828 

o 
o 

(n,768) 
8 1,624 

(27,989) 
o 

(4S5,963) 
o 

5,528,302 

8,778,1S7 

o 
o 

The accompanying notes to the financial statements are an integral pan orthis statement. 
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Business.type Activities· 

, 

, 

, , 

, 
, 

W<>I" 
Resrwrces 

Deportmem 

1,230,835 

6,570,256 
o 

47,659 

5,233 
21,398 

(72,080) 
o 

(59,833) 
(107,292) 

85,467 
(257,369) 

o 
o 

( 12,337) 

6,221, 102 
7,451,937 

197,045 

o 



Enterprise Fllnds 

Bare/oot Bay 
Water &: Sewer 

District 

S 600,021 

S 932,633 
0 

20,401 

16,3 10 
28,640 

(12,783) 
0 
0 

(1,385) 
7,950 

10,592 
0 
0 
0 

S 1,002,358 

S 1,602,385 

s o 
s o 

S 

S 

S 
S 

s 
s 

O<h" 
Business-type 

AClil>ilies 

(11,039,900) 

2, 142,605 
0 

155,268 

(4,618) 
312,466 

5,354 
0 
0 

(35,671) 
52,738 

(50,122) 
0 

14,225 
(2,838) 

2,589,407 

{8,450,493) 

o 
577,923 

Tatal 

S (5,959, 183) 

S 14,222,896 
882,574 
484,3,42 

30,634 
535,375 

(3,681) 
0 

(59,833) 
( 197, 11 6) 
227,779 

(324,888) 
0 

(441,738) 
{ 1 5, 17 5~ 

S 15,)4 1,169 

S 9,)8 1,986 

s 197,045 

s 577,923 
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GOvernmental 
Activities­
Inlernal 

Service Fllnds 

S (8,387,749) 

S 680,342 
0 

1,493,675 

70,410 
716,219 

0 
146, 191 

0 
86,859 
37,499 

(588,979) 
2,586,745 

0 
{JJ,350~ 

S 5,21S,61l 

S (3,172, 138) 

s 4,072 
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ASSETS 

c..h 
Accounts receivable 
Accrued interest receivable 
Due from other funds 

BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

Due from other govenunental units 
Total assets 

LIABILITIES 

Due to employees, individuals, and others 
Due to other funds 
Due to other governmental units 
Escrow and refundable deposits 

Total liabilities 

The accompanying notes to the financia l statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Funds 

$ 27,412.240 
237,247 

879 
99 

56,910 
S 27,707,375 

$ 9,537,691 
50,000 

3,837,600 
1982,084 

$ 27,707,375 
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I . SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A. Reponing Entity 
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Brevard County is a political subdivision of the State of Florida. It consists of the following Chaner Offices, 
which are governed by state statutes and regulations: 

Board of County Commissioners 
Sheriff 
Clerk of the Circuit Coun 
Tax Collector 
Property Appraiser 
Supervisor of Elections 

As required by generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), these financial statements present Brevard 
County and its component units. The component units represent entities for which Brevard County is financially 
accountable. Blend~d component units, although legally separate .entitie~, are, in subs~ce, part of the 
government's operations and, therefore, data from these UDlts are combmed With data of the prunary government. 
The Board of County Commissioners (Board) serves as the governing body for the Brevard Coun~ Free Public 
Library District, the Brevard County Mosquito Control District, the County Special Recreation District IV, the 
Nonh Brevard Recreation Special District, and the South Brevard Recreation Special District, therefore, these 
component units are reponed as ~ovemmenlal funds. The Board also serves as the governing body of the 
Barefoot Bay Water & Sewer Dislnct, which is reponed as an Enterprise Fund. Discretely presented com~nent 
units are reponed in a separate colwnn, in the government-wide financial statements, to emphasize their legal 
separation from Brevard County. The reponing period for each component unit ends on September 30th, 

Discretely Presented Componem Units 

Titusyille-Cocoa Airpon Authority - The Airpon Authority operntes three general aviation airports 
within the Titusville-Cocoa Airpon District. The Airpon Authority was established pursuant to 
Chapter 63- 1 143, Special Acts of Florida. The Board of County Commissioners (Board) appoints 
all members of the Airpon Authority board. The Board approves the Airpon Authority's budget. 
The Airpon Authority is presented as a proprietary fund. 

i i 
M' 

removed, without cause, 
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The Housing Finance Authority is presented as a proprietary fund type. Revenue bonds issued by 
the Housing finance Authority do not constitute mdebtedness of the Board, the Housing Finance 
Authority, or the State, and are secured solely by mortgage loans and interest earnings therein. 
Accordingly, such obligations are not included Within the accompanying fmancial statements. 

Complete financial statements for each of the individual compollCnI units may be obtained at the entity's 
admmistrative office. 

Related Organizations 

The Board of County Commissioners (Board) is responsible for all of the board appointments for the Health 
Facilities Authority and Educational Facilities Authority. The Board also appoints a majority of the board 
members for the North Brevard County Hospital District. . However, the Board has no further financia l 
accountability for any of these organizations. 

The A. Max Brewer Memorial Law Library, Brevard County Expressway Authority, and Brevard County Health 
Facilities Autliority represent component units and reported no revenues or expenditures for the period ended 
September 30, 201 O. 

B. Goyernment.Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The government.wide fmancial statements consist ofa Statement or Nel Assets and a Statement of Activities. 
These statements report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary governrm:nt and its 
component units as a whole. As part ofltie consolidation process, all interfund actiVIties are eruninated from these 
statements, except for the residual amounts between governmental and business·type activities reported as 
"internal balances." On both statements. governmentaf act ivities are reported separately from business-type 
activities and the primary government is reported separately from its discretely presented component units. 

Net assets, the difference between assets and liabilities, as presented in the Statement of Net Assets are subdivided 
into three categories: amounts invested in capital assets, net of re lated debt; restricted nel assets; and unrestricted 
net assets. Net assets are reported as restricted when constraints are imposed on the use of the amounts either 
externally 'by creditoR, gntnton, contributors. or laws or regUlations of other governments, or by law through 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between thedirect and indirect expenses ofa given function or 
segment and its program revenues, and displays the extent to which each function or segment contr ibutes to the 
change in net assets Tor the fisca l year. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable to a specific function 
or segment. The Intergovernmental activity represents disbunements to other governments that will administer 
use of the funds. imflfCct expenses are indirect costs the County has allocated to functions through various 
automatic allocation methods. Program revenues consist of charges for services, operating grants and 
contributions, and capital grants and contributions. Charges for services refer to amounts received from those who 
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment. 
Grants and contributions consist of revenues that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements 
ofa particular function or se·gment. Revenues not classified as program revenues are reported as general revenues. 

Separate fund fmanc ial statements repon detailed infonnation about the County's governmental, proprietary and 
fiduciary funds. The focus ofgovemmental and proprietary fund fmancial statements is on major funds. Therefore, 
major funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements and norunajor funds are aggregated 
and presented as a single column on each statement. The internal service funds are presented in as ingle Column on 
the face of the proprietary fund statements. A reconci liation is provided that converts the results of governmental 
fund accounting to the government·wide presentat ion. 

Private-seclor standards of accounting and fmancial reporting issued prior to December I, 1989, generally are 
followed in both the government-wide and the proprietary fund fmancial statements to the extent thai those 
standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. 
Governments also havc the option of following subsequent private·sector guidance for their business-type 
activities and enterprise funds, subject to th is same limitation. The County has elected nOl lO fo llow subsequent 
private.sector guidance. 

As a general rule the effect of interfurid activity has been eliminated from the government-wide fmancial 
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments· in-lieu of taxes , other charges for services, and various 
functions of the government. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues 
reponed for the various functions concerned. . 
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The government-wide financial statements, as well as the proprietary and fiduciary fund fmancial statements, are 
reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual baSIS of accounting. Revenues are 
recognized in the period eamed and expenses are recognized when a liability is incurred. Proprietary funds 
distinguish between operating and non~rating revenues and expenses. OperatUlg revenues generally result from 
producing and delivering goods or provldin~ services, such as water, sewer and garbage services, to the general 
public. Operating expenses for these operations include the costs of sales and services, administrative expenses 
and depreciation. All revenues and expenses not meeting the definition of operating are reported as nonoperating 
revenues and expenses. 

All governmental fund fmancial statements are reported using a current financial resources measurement focus on 
a modified accrual basis of accounting, Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized 
in the accounting period in which they become both measurable and available to finance expenditures of the 
current period. Available means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay 
liabilities of the current period, considered to be six!)' days (mne!)' days for intergovenunental revenue). 

The primary revenue sources for governmental funds are stale revenue sharing funds, franchise fees, special 
assessments, impact fees, property taxes, and interest eamings on investments. Primary revenue sources associated 
with the current fiscal pen od are considered to be susceptible to accrual and have been recognized as revenues of 
the current fiscal period. All other revenues, such as licenses and permits, charg.es for services, and miscellaneous 
revenues, are considered to be measurable and available only when payment IS received. 

Expenditures are generally recorded when a liabili!)' is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, 
accumulated sick and vacation pay, prepaid insurance and similar items, and principal and interest on long-term 
debt are recorded onty when payment is due. 

In applying the modified accrual basis of accounting to intergovernmental revenues, the legal and contractual 
requirements of the individual programs are used as guidance. There are typically two types ofintergovemmental 
revenues. One type requires monies to be expended for the specific purpose or project before any amounts will be 
reimbursed to the County and, therefore, the revenues recognized are based upon recorded expenditures. The other 
provides monies that are generally unrestricted as to purpose of expenditure and are substantially irrevocable (i.e. 
revocable only for failure to comply with prescribed compliance requirements), These revenues are recognized at 
the time of receipt or earlier if they meet the availabiJi!)' criterion. 

The following are reponed as major governmental funds: 

General Fund· The General Fund is the general operating fund of the County. All general tax 
revenues and other receipts that are not required either legally or by generally accepted 
accounting principles to be accounted for in other funds are accounted for in the General Fund. 

Emergency Services - The Emergency Services Special Revenue Fund is used to account for an 
ad valorem, impact fees, ambulance charges, and a county-wide non-ad valorem assessment for 
the provision of fire protection services in the unincorporated areas of Brevard County and 
panlcipating municipalities. 

Transportation Trust- The Transportation Trust Special Revenue Fund is used to account for 
the construction and maintenance of County roads, These activities include road maintenance, 
traffic control, ril!.ht-of-way acquisition, and construction of new roadways. Funds are provided 
from state-sharearevenues and gas laxes collccted and distributed by the State of Florida, impact 
fees, and non-ad valorem revenue from the General Fund. 

Grants - The Grants Special Revenue Fund is used to account for certain Federal and State 
grants. 

Parks and Recreation - The Parks and Recreation Capital Projects Fund is used to account for 
the construction and improvements made to recrealional facilities. 

The following are reported as major enterprise funds: 

Solid Waste Management Departmeni - The Solid Waste Management Department Enterprise 
Fund is used to account for disposal fees and expenses associated with the provision of solid 
waste disposal within Brevard Coun!)' pursuant to Chapter 67- 1146, Special Acts of Florida. 
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Water Resources - The Water Resources Enterprise Fund is used to accounl for service charge 
revenues and expenses associated with the provision of water/wastewater services in certain areas 
of Brevard County punuant to Chapter 61-1145, Special Acts of Florida. 

Barefoot Bay Water & ~wer District -1be Barefoot Bay Water & Sewer District Enterprise 
Fund is used to account for service charge revenues andexpenses associated with the provision of 
waterlwastewater services to the Barefoot Bay area of Brevnrd County, in accordance with 
County Ordinance 99-11. 

The County also reports the following fund types: 

Interna l Service Funds -Internal Service funds are used to account for the flnanclngofgoods or 
services provided by one department to other departments of the County or to othcr governmental 
units on a cost reimbun;ement basis. The County has Internal S«:rvice funds for risk management 
and information/communications systems. 

Agencr Funds - Agency funds are clearing accounts for assets held by a government as an agent 
for indIviduals, private organizations, or other governments 01' other funds. Agency funds are 
custodial in nature (assets equals liabilities) and do not involve the measuremcnt ofresults of 
operations. The County has agency funds to account for performance bonds, forfeitures, regislry 
of court .I and tax collections received and held by the Board, Sh«:riff, Clerk, and Tax Collector as 
agents tor individuals, private organizations or other governm~mts. 

D. ill!<W 
Brevard County follows the procedures detailed below in establishing the budgetary dala renected in the financial 
statements: 

The Supervisor of Elections and Sheriff submit, for approval , their tentative budgets for the 
ensuing fiscal year to the Board of County Commissioners by May I and June I, respectively. 
The Brevard County Propeny Appraiser and Tax Collector submit their budgets, for approval, to 
the State of Florida, Department of Revenue, and file a copy with the Board of County 
Commissioners by June 1 and August I , respectively. 

The Clerk of the Circuit Court's budget is prepared in two parts. 1be first part, which relates to 
the state court system functions, is filed with the Florida Clerks of Court OperItions Corporation 
by October I each year. The second part, which relates to the duties as Clerk to the Board of 
County Commissioners, County AudItor, Custodian, Treasurer of all County funds and the 
recording function, is submitted to the Board of County Commissioners by May I of each year. 

Although the Board of County Commissioners sets the Sherifrs and Supervisor of Elections' 
budgets and the Florida Department of Revenue sets the Property Appraiser's and Tax Collector's 
budgets, budget appeals can be instituted with the Stale ofFJorida Administnltive Commission by 
the affected parties. 

Within 15 days of the annual cenification of property values by the Property Appraiser, the 
County Budget Office submits to the Board of County Commissioners the County's budget for the 
following fiscal year. Public hearings are conducted by the Board of County Commissioners to 
obtain taxpayer comments. During the public hearings required by Chapter 200, Florida Statutes, 
the budgets of the Sheriff, Supervisor of Elections, and the Clc:rlc to the Board's portion of the 
Cleric's budget are approved as part of the Counly's budget. Prior to September 30, the Counly's 
budget is legally enacted through passage ofa resolution by the Board of County Commissioners. 

The Board of County Commissioners may amend the budget during the fi scal year. These 
amendments must be adopted in accordance with the same Jaws that governcd the adoption of the 
original budget. 

Pursuant to Section 129.01, Florida StaMes, it is unlawful to expend or eontnlct for the 
expenditure in anr fiscal year for more than the amount budgeted in each fund. The legal level of 
budgetary contro is at the fund level. The Board, pursuant to Section 129.06, Florida StaMes, 
may amend the original budget during the fiscal year or within sixty (60) days after the end of the 
fiscal year. The Board has delegated authority to authorize interdepartmenlal and line item 
transfers up to S 100,000. 
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Amendments to the Property Appraiser's and Tax Collector's budgets are controlled by the State 
orFlorida, Department or Revenue. AmelKlments to the Clerk orthe Circuit Court's budget that 
relate to state court system functions requi re approval by the State or Florida, Department or 
Financial Services. 

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device in all governmental 
funds. Budgets ror all governmental funds are adopted on a basis consistenl with generally 
accepted accounting principles. All General, Special Revenue, Debt Service. and Capital Projects 
funds have legally adopted budgets. 

Budget amendments totaling $60,965,358 were enacted during the fiscal year primarily to 
authorize appropriation or proceeds from grant revenues, and unbudgeled cash balances. 

E. lnterfund Receiyables and Payables 

Activity between funds that are representative orJendinglborrowing arrangements outstanding at the end orthe 
fiscal year are rererred to as either "due to/from other funds" (i.e., the current portion or interfund loans) or 
"advances to/from other funds" (i.e., the noncurrent ponion or interfund loans). Any residual balances 
outstanding between the $overnmental activities and business-type activit ies are reported in the government-wide 
financial statements as "mternal balances." 

Advances between funds , as reponed in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund balance reserve account 
in ap'plicable governmental funds to indicate that they are nol available ror appropriation and are not expendable 
available fmancial resources. 

F. Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, infrastructure and goodwiJI assets, are reported in the 
applicable govemmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide fmandal statements. Capital 
assets are defmed by the County as assets with an initial individual cost ormore than established threshold and an 
estimated useful life ormore than one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost 
irpurehased or constructed. Donated capital assets arc: recorded al estimated rair value at the date or donation. 

Capital Asset Category 
Lond 
Buildings and structures 
Infrastructure 
Improvements to land 
Improvements other than buildings 
Machinery &. equipment 
Goodwill 

Capitalization threshold 
Capitalize all 

$ 35,000 
35,000 

',000 
',000 ". Capital ize all 

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 34, effective October 1,2005, the county implemented the retroactive 
reporting of infrastructure assets associated with governmental activities acquired or constructed after October I , 
1980. 

The costs ofnonnal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value orthe asset or materially extend assets 
lives are not capitalized. 

Depreciation or exhaustible fixed assets is charged as an expense against the operations orthe $overnmental and 
business-type activities in the govenunent-wide fmancial statements. Depreciation or assets m the rroprietary 
runds is also charged as an expense at the fund level. Since the purpose of the governmental fund leve statements 
is 10 show the sources and uses of curren I assets, capital assets and depreciation arc: not shoYlTl . Constructed assets 
are depreciated upon completion. 

Capital assets orthe CountyJ as well as the component units, are depreciated using the straight line method over 
the rollowing estimated userullives: 

Anm :um 
Buildings and structures 5-40 
Infrastructure 10-75 
Improvements 10 land 15·35 
Improvements other than buildings 5-25 
Machinery &. equipment 3-10 
Goodwill 15 
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G. UnbjlJed Service Revenues 

Approximately 91'Y. of the Water Resources De~nt's service fee revenue is billed and collected bycities as 
agents for the County. Cash collected by the cities is remitted monthly to the County. The County records all 
revenues billed br the cities through the end of the fiscal year. Unbilled revenue, which results from cycle billing 
practices of the cities, is recordeain the following fiscal year. . 

H. Restricted Assets 

The use of cenain Enterprise assets is restricted by bond resolutions and agreements with various panies. 
Examples include - assets set aside for maximum debt service, rene ..... al and replacement reserves and landfill 
closure and postclosure care. Assets so designated are identified as restricted assets on the balance sheet. 

I. Inventory and Prepajd Items 

Inventory is valued at cost. Cost is determined for the FirelRescue and Sheriffdepartments' fleet inventory using 
the movmg average method. All other inventories are valued using th>c first- in, first-out (FIFO) method. 

Inventory in the General and Special Revenue Funds consists of expendable supplies held for consumption. 
Inventones of governmental funds arc recorded as expenditures when purthased. Inventory remaining at year-end 
is reserved in fund balance. 

Inventory in the Proprietary Funds fund fmancial statements is recorded as an expense when used. Inventory in 
the emity-wide Statemem of Activities, for both governmental and business-type activities are recorded as an 
expense when used. 

Certain payments to vendors refleet costs arplicable to furure a~ounting periods and are recorded as prepaid 
items in the government-wide Statement 0 Net Assets. In the governmental fund's Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances, prepaid items are included in expenditures for the current period, 
when purchased. 

J. InVestments 

Investments are valued at fair value in a~ordance with GASB 31. Investments, and income from investments 
owned by individual funds. are recorded in the respective fund. The County maintains a consolidated account to 
maximize investment yields. Investment income, resulting from p001iJl~ of investments within the consolidated 
acCOWlI, is allocated based on the average cash balances for the respec:tlve funds . 

K. Deferred Income 

Noncurrent portions of long-tenn receivables of governmental ~nds are reported on thei r balance sheets 
regardless of their s~nding measurement fo<:us. Speeial reporting treatments are used to indicate that they should 
not be considered available spendable resources~ since they do not represent current assets. Recognition of 
governmental fund type revenues, represented by nonCUJTent receivables, is deferred until they become current 
receivables. Si~i ficant deferred income in the governmental fund typt:s include receivables for the provision of 
ambulance servIces and grants. The noncurrent portion of long-term loan receivables, usually associated with 
interfund loans, is offset by fund balance reserve accounts. . 

L. Accrued Compensated Absences 

It is the County's policy to ~rmit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick pay benefits. All 
vacation and a portion of sick pay is accrued when earned and a liabitity is reported in the government-wide and 
proprietary fund fmancial statements. A liability is reported in the governmental funds only ira liability results 
from empfoyee resignationilretirements and they are to be paid with cUlnnt operating funds. Estimates have been 
utilized to detennine the amount to report as the CWTent portion. 

M. Proocny Taxes 

Property taxes are levied on property values as of January I. Property taxes are due and payable as of November 
I and become delinquent on April I. A tax certificate sale is held at the end of May on all delinquent real estate 
taxes, and a lien is placed on the property. 
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Ad valorem taxes levied by the Board of County Commissioners, for countywide public services, against real and 
tangible personal property, are limited by State Statutes to 10 mills on the dollar of assessed value unless any 
excess is approved by referendum of the voters . In addition, the County may levy up to 10 mills for municipal 
type services within the districts. 

N. Amortization of Bond Discounts and Issue Costs - Entemrise Funds 

Bond discounts and issue costs are amortized in accordance with FASB ASC 835-30-35, Subsequent 
Measurement - An Interpretation of APB 21, (Interest on Receivables and Payables). 

O. Reserves of Fund Balances and Net Assets 

Reserve accounts are used to disclose the portions of fund balances (governmental funds) or net assets (proprietary 
funds) which are legally restricted for specific future uses. The County's policy is that generally restricted 
resources are used first to fund eligible appropriations. 

P. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities as of the financial statement date and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses or expenditures 
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Q. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents are cash on hand as well as demand deposits, investments and certificates of deposit 
included in pooled cash with original maturities of three months or less. Investments include non-pooled 
investments and certificates of deposit with original maturities of three months or greater. 

2. Reconciliation of Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 

A. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the government-wide 
statement of net assets. 

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance - total governmental funds 
and net assets -governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of net assets . One element 
of that reconciliation explains that "long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the 
current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds." The details of this $380,490,172 difference are as 
follows: 

Bonds payable 
Less: Deferred charge on refunding (to be amortized as interest expense) 
Less: Discount (to be amortized as interest expense) 
Plus: Issuance premium (to be amortized as interest expense) 

Accrued interest payable 
Leases payable 
Notes payable 
Accrued compensated absences 
Arbitrage rebate 
Other postemployment benefits 

Net adjustment to reduce fund balance - total governmental funds 
to arrive at net assets - governmental activities 

$322,126,739 
(2,212,332) 

(158,341) 
4,600,138 
3,098,281 

96,659 
6,636,000 

28,719,155 
493,886 

17,089,987 

$380490172 

B. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and 
changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of activities . 

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes a 
reconciliation between net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds and changes in net assets of 
governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities. One element of that 
reconciliation explains that, "Govemmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the 
statement of activities, the costs of those assets are allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as 
depreciation expense." . 
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The details of this $26,421, 152 difference are as follows: 

Capital outlay 
Depreciation expense 

Net adjustment to increase net changes infund balances - total governmental 
funds to arrive at changes in net assets of governmental activities 

S 53,929,825 
(27.508,673) 

$2642 1 152 

Another element of the reconciliation states that, "The net effect ofvarious miscellaneous transactions involvin! 
capital assets (i.e" sales, trade-ins, and donations) is to increase net assets," The details of this $6,447,05 
difference are as follows: 

In the statement of activities, only the gain on the sale of capital assets is 
reported, However, in the governmental funds, the proceeds 'from the sale 
increase [mancial resources. Thus, the chan~e in net assets differs from the 
change in fund balance by the cost of the capital assets sold. 

Donations of capital assets increase net assets in the statement of activities, but 
do not appear in the governmental funds because they are not financial 
resources, 

Net adjustment to increase net changes infund balances - tolal governmental 
funds to arrive at changes in nel assets of governmental aclivi/i'es 

S 5,808,296 

(12.255,347) 

$ 6447051 

Another element of the reconciliation states that ''the issuance of [onEl;-term debt (e.~., bonds, leases) provides 
current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the pnncipal of long-term debt 
consumes the current financial resources ofgovemmental funds. Neithertransaction, however, has any effect on 
net assets. Also, &overnmental funds report the effect of issuance cost:>, premiums, discounts, and similar items 
when debt is first Issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amol1ized in the statement of activities," The 
details of this $25,586,727 difference are as follows: 

Issuance of bonds 
Debt issuance costs 
Principal repayments: 

Bonds 
Capital lease 
Notes payable 
Bond refunding payment 

Net adjustment to increase net changes infund balances - total governmemal 
funds to arrive at changes in net assets of governmental activities 

S 3,897,816 
(18,401) 

(24,129,080j 
(92,174 

0,465,000 
(3,779,888) 

$ 25,586 727 

Another element of the reconciliation states that "Some expenses rep()rted in the statement of activities do not 
require the use of current fmancia l resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental 
funds ." The details of this $985,296 difference are as follows: 

Accrued compensated absences 
Arbitrage rebate 
Other postemployment benefits 
Accrued interest 
Amortization of deferred charge on refunding 
Amortization of debt issuance costs 
Amortization of bond discounts/premium 

Net adjustment to decrease net changes infund balances - tOlal governmental 
funds to arrive at changes in net assets of governmental activities 

$ (324,350) 
(579,500) 

1,906,318 
(245,159) 
409,407 
349,154 

(530.574) 

$ 985.296 

Cash - Monies ava ilable within various funds were conSolidated for investment purposes. The amount of public 
Nrids invested is discussed in Note 4. Substantially all operating cash at September 30, 2010, was invested 
utilizing the pooled investment concept. Interest eamed was allocated to the various funds based on their average 
cash balance within the consolidated account. The average monthly in terest rates on investments held by the 
County, in the pooled account, ranged from .75% to 1.03%. 
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Cash with escrow and P'ling agent 0£$ 1 ,522,941 is comrristd of $296,728 a«:ounted for in Brevard County 
Transportation Trust fun for the acquisi tion of land, $5,2 3 accounted for in the Special Revenue Funds for the 
Brevard County Shore Protection Projects and $1,221,000 accounted for in the Internal Service Funds as an 
insurance reserve balance as required by the County's insurance providers. 

Investments · The investment program is established in accordance with the County's investment policy, pertinent 
bond resolutions and Sections 125J I and 218.4 15, Florida Statutes, which allows the County to invest in the State 
Board of Administration, State of Florida, direct obligations of the United States Government, obligations of the 
different agencies of the Federal Government, Corporate Notes and time deposits or savings accounts offinancial 
institutions under Federal and State regulation. Obligat ions of the different agencies of the Federal Govenunent 
include fixed rate mortgage-backed securities. 

The investinli\ of public funds with the State Board of Administration (SSA) - Local Government Surplus Funds 
Trust Fund - IS governed by Section 2 18.407, Florida Statutes. The SBA is under the regulatory overSight of the 
State of Florida. This investment pool consists largely of corporate notes and commercial paper. 

The SBA 's Florida Prime, fonnerly the LGiP pool, is considered a Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) 
"2a7·1ike" fund, with the fair value of the investment equal to the account balance. A 2a7·like fund IS not 
registered with the SEC as an investment company, but has a policy that it operates in a manner consistent with 
SEC's Rule 2a7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940, the rules governinf money market funds. Thus, the pool 
operates essentially as a money market fund, but is classified as an extema investment pool. 

The SBA Pool B participants are prohibited from withdrawing any amount from Pool B. As securit ies mature in 
Pool B, funds are transferred to Florida Prime at which time the funds are available to 'withdraw without any 
restrictions. The weighted average days to maturity of Florida Prime was 52 days, while the weighted average life 
of Fund B was 7.49 years, as of September 30, 2010. 

On September 30, 2010 the County had $579,690 invested in Florida Prime and $10,526,781 remaining in Pool B, 
with ]I. fair value of $7,445, 156. . 

Custodial Risk 
The bank amount of the County's demand deposits was $38,666,919 at September 30, 2010. The demand 
deposits are insured by the FDIC up to $250,000 per entity. Monies invested in amounts greater than the 
insurance coverage are secured by the qualified public depositories pledging securities with the State 
Treasurer in such amounts required by the Florida Security for Pubhc De~sits Act. In the event of a 
default or insolvency of a qualified public depoSitor, the State Treasurer WIll implement procedures for 
payment of losses according to the validated claims of the County pursuant to Section 280.08, Florida 
Stanlles. Corporate notes, U.S. Treasury notes and all federal agency obligations are held by the County's 
agent in the County's name. 

Credit Risk 
Concentrat ion of credit risk is the risk of loss attributable to a government 's investment iT] a single issuer. 
To limit concentration of credit risk, the County's policy restricts the amount that is allowed to be invested 
in anyone issuer. Federallnstrumenta!ities are limited to no more than 25% per issuer. Corporate Notes 
and Commercial Paper are limited to 50/, per issuer. Investments in Federal Home Loan Bank, Federal 
Home Loan Mortgage Corp., Federal Fann Credit Bank and Federal National Mortgage Assn. represented 
20%, 16%, 13%, and 5% respectively, of the County's total investments. 

Credit quality risk results from the potential default of investments that are not fmancially round. The 
County's policy requires that Corporate Notes must have a rating, of at least, in the category "Aa" by 
Moody's and "AA"by Standard & Poor 's. Commercial Paper must have a racing of, at least, "Prime I" by 
Moody's and "A- I" by Standard & Poor 's. The Corporate Notes currently held in the portfolio have a 
Standard & Poor's ratmg of AA+ and the Commercial Paper has an A-l+ rating by Standard & Poor's. 
The credit quality of the federal agency securities held by the County is AAA rated by Standard & Poor's. 
The Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Investment Pool (Florida Prime) was rated AAAm by 
Standard and Poor's at September 30, 2010. The Local Govemmenl Surplus Funds Trust Fund B was not 
rated by a nationally recognized statistical rating agency at September 30, 2010. 

Interest Rate Risk 
As a means of limiting exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates, the County 
investment policy prohibits purchases of securities with fmal maturities of 10 years or greater. The policy 
also limits me overall weighted average duration of principal return for the entire portfolio to less than 3 
years. The County's current weighted" average duratIon is 1.14 years. 
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As of September 30, 2010, the County had the following investments and maturities: 

corporate Note 
Commereial Pape r 
Federal Fat'nl Credit Bank 
Federal Home Loan Bank 
Federal Home Loan Hortqaqe Corp. 
Federal National ~rtgage Assn. 
U. S. Treasury 8onds!Notes 
Money Market Accounts 
Certificates ot Deposits 

Total 

Fair Value 

$ 21.36). 601 
1,006,367 

59,053,817 
88,894,25 2 
68,557,315 
23,619,157 
76,U8,675 
70,317,698 
15, OOP, 000 

LeU Than 1 

, . 
7,006,361 

n,960,13) 
60,008,900 
n,906,882 

• 
28,231,156 
70,317,698 
15, 000,000 

Maturity (Years) 

$D,764,801 

• 19,093,104 
20,101,121 
14,505 , 481 
4,335,101 
),9)9,253 

• o 

__ "'c·"' __ over 3 Years 

$ 9,598,806 $ 0 

• • • • 
8,784,031 ° 
6,964,033 1,180,979 

10,25),100 9,0)0,960 
44 ,747,966 0 

• • _______ ~o • 

SU6 FlO 978 sa60 pi PH in 619 067 S 8Q,]17 91§ S16 .21 1.939 

The earrying amount of the discretely rresented component units' deposits with fmaneial institutions was 
$12,222,175 and the bank balance was $ 2,642,742, which is insured by FDIC or collateralized with securities 
held by the State Treasurer in accordance with Chapter 280, Florida Statutes, On September 30, 2010 the 
component units had $723,092 invested in Florida Prime and $347,5 II remaining in Pool B, with a fair value of 
$289,319. The Housing Finance Authority (a component unit) also had investments in mongage-backed securities 
with AAA rating and 8 wei2hted 8verage matunty of 21 years, The fair value of the Govenunent National 
Mongage Association and 'J:ederaJ National Mongage Association securities on September 30, 2010 was 
$555,539. 

5, Receivables - The accounts reeeivable for the govenunental activities of$10,750,214 are net of allowances for 
doubtful accounts of$3,392,98 1 . Charges for services are net of mandatoryconcracruai adjustments in the amount 
0[$5,096,074 for MedieareIMedieaid and Champus. Having billed these organizations, the County is federally 
mandated 10 accept their allowable charges for services rendered. The accounts receivable for the business-type 
activities of$935,455 are net of allowances for doubtful accounts of$106,567. 

6. prepaid items include SI ,205,1 58 of premiums paid on insurance policies, The remaining 
represents various maintenanee and service agreements, software license renewals and other 

prepayments. 

7. Capita! Assets 

Capital assets activity for the year ended September 30, 2010, was as follows: 

Primary Qovarn.lla .. t 

Governmental Activities: 
Capital asse t . net depreciated: 

~"' Construction in progress 
Total aasets not depreC:iAted 

Capital assets depreeiated: 
Buildings and structures 
Infraatruc:ture 
Improvements to laDd 
Improvements other than buildings 
Operatinq machinery and equipment 
Total asaets deprecia t ed 

Le .. s aceumulated depreciation: 
Buildinqs and structures 
lnfrastructure 
I mp rovements to land 
Improvement! other than buildinqs 
Operating machinery and equip~nt 

Total aeeumulated depreeiation 
Total depreCiable ca pital a95et5, n e t 
Tota l qovernmental activities 

eapital assets, net 

OCt. 1, 2009 

$266,661,889 
129,284,081 

38,902,56S 
16,419,Ut 

140,891,712 
$592 ,160,191 

$ 51,655,t88 
36,73',30t 
8,618,)37 

10,006 ,58S 
91,9)0,424 

$198,918,138 
$19),182,C5) 

5 69" OU U5 

52 

Increases 

$ 6,617,501 
](,117,028 

$41,3](,5]5 

$ 1,619,75) 
],975, 161 
2,)18,828 

710,186 
13 ,60S,S82 

pa,H9,SlO 
$18,620 . 275 

$5"'54 819 

$ 2,119,365 
5S2,5?§ 

• U6,656 
6,585,598 

$ 9,761.195 

$ 51, B9B 
147,076 

• 17,668 
5,987 , 931 

i 6,201,576 
$ ),559,619 

$27 no 17' 

SePt .. 30 , 2010 

$238,692,997 
79,$70,145 

ilU,26),7t2 

$282,596,926 
13S,124,341 
48,8)3,838 

$ 59,223,](3 
10 ,565,)89 
11,021,165 
10,759,103 
99,518,072 

$221,123,012 
$108,242,109 

iBi 5Q6,tS; 
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B~sin.g •• typ. Activiti •• , Adjustsd 
c~pital as~ets not depreciated: 

~"' Construction in progress 
Total asSetS not depreciated 

Capital assets depreciated: 
Buildings a nd structures 
Infr~ structure 

Improvements to lsnd 
Improvet!lents other than buildings 
Machinery and equipment 
Goodwill 

TOtal ~ssets depreciated 
Less accumulated depreciation: 

Buildings and structures 
Infrastructure 
Improvements to land 
Improvements other than buildings 
Machine ry and equipment 
Goodwill 

TOtal accumul~ted depreciation 
Tot~1 dep r eciable capita l a.sets, net 
Tota l business-type ~ctivities 

capital assets. net 

Oct. 1 , 2009 

S 37,887,068 
12,689,650 

$ $0,576,718 

$ 52,118 ', 553 
10,192,418 
8,'91,240 

_265', H7 , 753 
44,643 ,397 

1,410 , 18' 
$382,653,550 

$ 16,811,700 
1,022,532 
5,584,621 

146,191,567 
28,10],)50 

IBB,02G 
$197, '01, 19G 
$184 , 751. 16G 

SUS 328 171 

$ 36,B4B 
~.779 

.L.!..!.Q1, 627 

s , 
7,130,OB3 

6,134 
1,634,3 76 
5,181,250 , 

$13,'52,113 

$ l,tl7,OU 
12 5,490 
163,058 

7, 112,3 07 
1, 811,00' 

91,Oll 
$14,222 , 896 
L.Jl2Q..r...lll ) 

Decre~ses . 

$ 14,29' 
9,144,617 

$ 9,158,916 

, 
",940 

1,551,983 
2,891,701 , 

S 5,814 , 398 

$ 1,lG2.086 , 
".910 

1,551,983 
2,188 ,802 , 

$ 4,942,811 
$ 901 , 587 

A-13 
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Sept, )0, 2010 

$ 37,9G9,617 
10,115,782 

$ U,025,H9 

$ 50,820,782 
17,122,501 
8,897.734 

265,380,146 
46 ,929,9013 

1 ,410,189 
~190, 761, 295 

$ 17,126,633 
1 ,448,022 
5,847,739 

151,751,891 
30,725,557 

282 , Oll 
$207,181,875 
$11),579,420 

5231 60t, au 
Depreciation expense w~s charged t o functions of the primary government S. follows: 

Gove rnmente l Activities: 
Gene ral gove rnment 
Public safety 
Physic~l environment 
Tr~nsportation 

Economic environment 
Human services 
CUlture snd recreat.ion 
Internal service funds 
Tot~l 

$ 4 ,632,927 
7,289,141 

619,37S 
5,593,9901 

204,877 
1,ll6,l08 
7,821,548 

680,342 
$28 182 0 15 

The increase in accumulated depreciation for governmental activities of $28,34',510 differs from 
deprecia tion expense of $28,18',015 becaune of ~ccumulated deprec:iation in the amount of $160,495 
a9soci~ted with asnets transfe rred from bus iness-type activities , 

8uainaas-type Activitie.: 
Solid Wa s te Management Dep artment. 
W~ter Re s ources Dep~rt~nt 
Barefoot Bay Wa ter ~ Se~er Ililtrict 
Space coast Area 'Transit 
8rev~rd Count.y Golf Cours es 
'Tot~l 

Compone"t. Dnits 

$ 4, 577, 402 
6,570,256 

932,6)3 
1,688,830 

453,775 

SU 222 n§ 

C~pital assets activity for compone nt units i a as follows: 

Melbouroe-Tillasn Weter Control District 

Capital a ssets not depreciated: 

~"' Capital assets depreci~ted: 
Buildings a nd structureD 
Improvements to lsnd 
Machinery and equipment 
Tot~l assets depreciated 

LeSS ~ccumulated depre ciation : 
Buildings and structures 
Improvement.s t o land 
Machinery and equipment 

Total accumulated depreciation 
Tot.~l depreCiable c~pital ~ssets, net 

Tot~l capit~l assets, n e t 

Oct. 1, 2009 

, 277 , In 

, 173,119 
8,229,276 
2,2'2,'88 

$10,896,053 

S 237,126 
7,114,386 
1, 735,071 , 9,106,583 , 1,7. 9,470 

, , O§7 291 

53 

Decre~ses Sept, 30, 2010 

L __ ' , 0 , 277,821 

S 0 S 0 S 371,789 
0 0 8,229,276 

__ 292,176 16,585 2 , 568 , 879 
U 92 ,06 , 16,585 $11 , 171 ,91 , 

S 13, H6 S 0 S 250,872 
4 09,155 0 7,51]'14 1 

__ 213,002 16,585 1 ,931, 188 
L9',101 , 16 , 585 , 9,726,101 
ill!),627) , 0 , 1,145,813 

~u....w) , , , , 723 6§t 
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Tituavill.·Coco. Airport Authority 

Capital a8sets not depreciated: u., 
Construction in pros-ress 
Improvements to land 
Total assets not depreciated 

capital assets depreciated: 
Buildings and s tructures 
Improvements other than buildings 
Operating machinery and equipment 
Total assets depreciated 

LeS. accumulated depreciation: 
Buildings and stnlctures 
Improvements other than buildings 
operating machinery and equipment 
Total accumulated depreciation 

Total depreciable capital assets, net 

Total capital assets, net 

·Oct. 1 , 2009 

$14, 20t, 818 
), 411,240 

339,254 
$17,961,312 

$11,68 ) ,947 
27.n6.96J 
2.392,397 

Sll, 8S) , 307 

$ 5,871,889 
6,UB,9)7 
1 , 508,765 

$14 , 909,591 
$l7,U),H6 

US 805 028 

Increases 

$ , 
4,233,157 , 

$4,2)3,157 

$ 994,918 
1 .560 .726 

327,452 
$2,882,196 , 311,270 

690,800 
172 ,206 

$1,984,276 
il. 797 ,920 

Sf 031 077 

Decreases SeEt. ,", 2010 

$ , $14,204,8lB 
4,445,461 ),204,936 , 339,254 

$4,U5,t61 $17,H9,008 

$ , $12,677,965 , 19,3)7,689 , 2,719,849 , , $34,735,50) 

$ , $ 6,183,159 , 7,229,7)7 , 1,680,971 , , $15,093,867 , , $19,641,636 

Sa HS,tU SJ7 U O,6U 

g, Construction and Other Silmificant Commitments· At September 30, 20 J 0, the County had several uncompleted 
construction conC'aCts andother contractual commitments as follows: 

Remaining 
Projec! Title committed 

General Government S 2,270,334 
Parks and Recreation 4,306,453 
Road Projects 4,764,772 
Fire/Rescue 96,979 
Surface Water ImprOVement 378,007 
Transit Services 2,811,716 
Water Resources 799,819 
Total SIS 428,080 

The County executed agreements to accept the donation of land, public safety facilities and cash in return for 
reimbUTSing the developer from fuMe impact fees generated by building activity. The cash is to build a causeway 
interchange and improve the 11ansportation network. On March 5, 2009, the County suspended transportation 
impact feeS under Ordinance 09-08E. The Ordinance will sunset and be repealed on March 1,2012. Although 
not Obligated, the County reasonably expects to assess all other impact fees. Total cost for the public safety 
faciliti es and conC'ibution relating to the roadways construction project was $ ],124,555 and $6,76S,736, 
respectively, 

The anticipated future payments are as follows: 

Year Ended 
September 30 

2011 
20]2 
20J3 
20 14 

After 2014 
Total anticipated fuMe payments 

54 

.l\m2lilll 
S IS,660 

o 
77,000 
77,000 

6.126,000 
S6 29S 660 
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4!t!I~!!,!~>!o"""-'~"""l><rlll.llUJ! . The composition of interfund balances as of 

WejvabJe fund: 

General Fund 

Emergency Services 

Brevard County Transportation Trust 

Parks and Recreation Facilities 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

Solid Waste Management Department 

Water Resources Department 

Agency Funds 

Internal Service 

Totallnterfund Receivables and Payables 

Payable Fund: 

a",u 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
NonmaJor Propriellu), Funds 

General Fund 

a",u 
Norunajor Governmental Funds 

a",u 
General Fund 
Norunajor Governmental Funds 
Agency Funds 

General Fund 

General Fund 
Barefoot Bay Water & Sewer District 

General Fund 

Norunajor Governmental Funds 

Amount 

$ 770,000 
515,360 
168,468 

67,259 

3,235,320 
2,000 

1,526,069 

517,643 
18,863 
50,000 

35,38 1 

70,764 
60,000 

" 19,000 

11.956 226 

These balances resulted from the time lag between the dates thai inlerfund goods and services were provided and 
the payments between funds were made. 

, 
; 

;;;;;;,n;.;,;. 'i.~~;; ,~:;~:i;;~:~,:~~d ,:m~(;:,~rc;onnect ion cost of the Snug Harbor 

55 
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The fOllowing infonnation is for the year ending September 30, 20 I 0: 

Landfill 
capacity 

Landfill 
capacity used 

Reported 
liability 

Estimated 
remaining liability 

Remaining 
life (years) 

Sarno Road 7,415,65 1 culyds 

Central Disposal 22,682,344 culyds 

75% 

83% 

SIO,659,785 

$16,525,289 

S3,598,267 

S5,905,241 

7 

4 

By state law, the County is required to accwnulate assets needed for the actual payout of the closure and 
postclosure care costs prior to the closing of a landfill. Assets of $24,605,425 have been restricted for this 
purpose within the Solid Waste Management Department Fund. 

Leases 

A. The County has entered into numerous capital lease ammgements for the purpose of acquiring 
operating and office equipment. The County also has financed the acquisition of certain &olf carts for 
its Brevard County Golf Courses Fund by means of a lease. The lease agreements quahfy as capital 
leases for accountmg purposes and, therefore, have been recorded at the present value of their future 
minimum lease payments. The future minimum lease payments at September 30, 20 10, are as follows: 

Year Ended Governmental Business-type 
September 30 Activities Activities 

2011 
2012 
2013 

Total minimum lease payments 
Less amount representing interest 
Present value of minimum lease payments 

S 89,962 
10,225 

o 
$100, 187 

3.528 
$ 96659 

$196,372 
196,372 
114.562 

S507,306 
8,360 

$498946 

The assets currently being acquired through capital leases are as follows : 

Machinery and equipment 

Accumulated depreciation 

Governmental 
Activities 

$434,829 

$186,355 

Business-type 
Activities 

$577,926 

$ 19,1 71 

B. The County leases office facilities, equipment, service and maintenance, office equipment, and 
vehicles, under noncancelable operatin,8 leases and operating leases. Total payments for 
noncancelable operating leases and operatmg leases were $1 ,292,291, and $556,460, respectively, for 
the year ended September 30, 2010. The future minimum lease payments for noncancelable operating 
leases are as follows: 

Year Ended 
September 30 

2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
20 15 

2016-2020 
2021-2025 
2026-2030 

2031 
Total minimum lease payable 

-$ 910,327 
649,379 
520,823 
339,736 
28 1, 153 
189,829 
95,363 

110,552 
17,970 

$3. 115,132 

13. Bonded and Other Indebtedness 

A. Business-type Activities 

$55,155,000 2002 Utility Revenue Refunding Bonds - due in annual installments of 
$6,465,000 to $7,545,000 throueh March 1, 2014; interest at 5.25%; issued to 
finance the cost of refunding the IJtility Revenue Bonds, Series 1993; payable from 
gross revenues of the Water Resources System. 

56 

27,980,000 
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$17, 135,000 2000 Utility Bonds (Barefoot Bay Utility System) - serial bonds due 
in annual installments 0($41 5,000 to $435,000 through October 1,20 11 ; interest III 
~.40'/.1O 4.50%; tem bonds maruring (ktober 1,2018, are subject to mandatory 
redemption in amounts of$455 ,000 to $615,000 from October I, 2012,10 October 
1,2018, with interest at 5.25'1.; lenT! bonds maruring October 1,2029, aresubjec1 to 
mandatory redemrtion in amounts of S650,OOO to SI,055,000 from October I, 
2019,to October ,2029, with interest at 5.0(),!.; issued to finance the acquisition 
of a utility system and certain other property; payable from gross revenues of the 
system. 

S I ,547,000 2009A Subordinated Sales Tax Revenue Bond due in annual 
installments of$44,ooo to S11 3,000 through December I, 2029; interest It4. 18%; 
issued to fund the repair and renovation of uti lity improvements for the Barefoot 
Bay Wastewater Treatment Plant; revenue is secured by a subOrdinate lien on the 
sales tax revenues along wi th the covenant to budget and appropriate from legally 
available non ad valorem revenues; payable from revenues of the utility s)'Stem. 

Governmental Activities 

SI0,670,000 1996 Limited Ad Valorem Revenue Refunding and Improvement 
Bonds - fmal payment due in the amount of $1 ,250,000 on September I, 20 I I ; 
interest at 5.375%; issued to partially refund the 199 1 LimIted Ad Valorem 
Revenue Bonds and to acquire and preserve endangered lands; payable from ad 
valorem tax revenues. 

S8,840,000 2002 Limited Ad Valorem Tax Refundin@.Bonds - fmalpaymentdue 
in the amount of SI,245,000 on September 1,20 11 ; mterest at 4. 100.4; issued to 
refund all or a portion of me outstanding 1993 Limited Ad Valorem Tax Bonds 
maturing after September I, 2003; payable from ad valorem tax revenues. 

SI5,670,000 2004 Limited Ad Valorem Tax Bonds - fmal payment due in the 
amount 0($1,700,000 on September I, 2011; interest aI3.00''' . Issued 10 fund the 
acquisition and improvement of environmentally endangered lands; payable from 
ad valorem tax revenues. 

$45,000,000 2005 Limited Ad Valorem Tax Bonds - due in annual installments of 
S 1,970,000 to S3,315,000 through September I, 2024, interest at 3.25% to 5.00'.4; 
issued to fund the acquisition and improvement of environmentally endangered 
lands and water areas; payable from ad valorem tax revenues. 

S15, 100,000 2001 Nonh Brevard Recreation Special District, Limited Ad Valorem 
Tax Bonds - serial bonds due in annual installments of S705,OOO to SI,040,000 
through July I, 2019; interest at 5.00%; tem bonds maturing July 1,202 1 are 
subject to mandatory redemption in the amounts 0($1,090,000 to S I, 145,000 from 
July 1, 2020 to final maturity; inlereSt at 5.00'10; issued to fmance the acquisi tion, 
development, and improvement of certain parks and recreational facilit ies within 
the geographical boundary of NOM Brevard; payable from ad valorem tax 
revenues. 

S I I ,300,000 2007 NOM Brevard Recreation Special District, Limited Ad Valorem 
Tax Bonds - serial bonds due in annual installments of S450,000 to S775,000 
through July 1,2024; interest at 3.625% to 5.625%; tem bonds maturing July I, 
2026 are subject to mandatory redemption in the amounts of S810,000 and 
S845,000 from July 1,202510 fmal maturity; interest at 4.375%; issued 10 finance 
the acquisition, development and improvement of certain parks and recreational 
facilities within Ihe geographical boundary of North Brevard; payable from ad 
valorem tax revenues. 

$45,000,000 2001 South Brevard Recreation Special District, Limited Ad Valorem 
Tax Bonds - due in annual insta1lments of$2, II O,OOO to S3,370,000 throu~ July 
I, 2021; interest at 4.30% to 5.00%; issued to fmance the acqUisition, 
development, and improvement of certain parks and recreational faci lities wilhin 
Ihe geographical boundary of South Brevard; payable from ad valorem tax 
revenues. 
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13,770,000 

1,547,000 

1,250,000 

1,245,000 

2,700,000 

35,980,000 

9,985,000 

10,050,000 

29,490,000 
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$57,565,0002007 South Brevard Recreation Special District, Limited Ad Valorem 
Tax Bonds - serial bonds due in annual installments of $2,250,000 to .$4,435,000 
through July 1,2026; interest at 4.00"10 to 5.00%; issued to fmance the acquisition, 
development and improvement of certain parks and recreational facilities within 
the geographical boWJdary of South Brevard; payable from ad valorem tax 
revenues. 

$13,000,000 2001 Merritt Island Recreation Municipal Service Taxing Unit, 
Limited Ad Valorem Tax Bonds - serial bonds due in annual installments of 
$61 0,000 to $885,000 through July 1,2019; interest at4.375 to 5.00%; tenn bonds 
maturing July I, 2021, are subject to mandatory redemption in amounts of 
$925,000 to $975,000 from July I, 2020, to final maturity; interest at 5.00%; 
issued to rmance the acquisition, development, and improvement of certain parks 
and recreational facilities within the Merritt Island Recreation Municipal Service 
Taxing Unit; payable from ad valorem tax revenues. 

$13,110,000 2007 Merria Island Recreation Municipal Service Taxing Unit, 
Limited Ad Valorem Tax Bonds - serial bonds due in annual installments of 
$510,000 to $990,000 through July 1,2026; interest at 4.00% to 5.00%; issued to 
finance the aC'l.uisition, development and improvement of certain parks and 
recreational faCilities within the Merritt Island Recreation Municipal Service 
Taxing Uni t; payable from ad valorem tax revenues. 

$39, I 50,000 2001 Sales Tax Refundingand Improvement Revenue Bonds -serial 
bonds due in annual installments ofS935,OOO to S2,785,000 through December I , 
2018; interest at 4.00% to 5.25%; tenn bonds maturin~ December r, 2020, through 
December I, 2026, are subject to mandatory redemption in v~ing amounts from 
December 1,20 19, to December 1,2026, with interest at 4.875% to 5.00%; issued 
to refund the outstanding Sates Tax Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1991, 
maturing on and after December I, 2002, refund the outstanding Sales Tax 
Revenue Bonds, Series 1994, maturing on and after December 1,2005, refund 
cenain portions of the County's outstanding obligations under a Loan Agreement 
with the Florida Local Government Finance Commission, and finance the 
acquisition of certain capital projects within the County; revenue pledged is half­
cent sales tax revenue; S2,266,077 of the outstanding principal and any associated 
interest will be paid from revenues from the operation of the County's golfcourses. 

$16,370,0002003 Sales Tax Refunding and Improvement Revenue Bonds- serial 
bonds due in annual installments ofS1,335,000 to $1,505,000 through December 
1,2013; interest rate 3.75% to 4.10%; tenn bonds maturing December I, 2014, 
and thereafter are due in installments 0($21 5,000 to $305,000; interest rate4. IO% 
to 4.75%; bonds maturing on December 1,2013, and thereafter are subject to . 
mandatory early redemption; issued to advance refund the outstanding Sales Tax 
Revenue Bonds, Series 1993 maturing on and after December 1,2004; to repay a 
port ion of the outstanding Florida Local Govenunent Finance Commission Pooled 
Commercial Paper Notes, and to finance various capital projects of the County; 
payable from the half-cent sales tax distributed to the County. 

$14,000,000 2005 Sales Tax Revenue Bonds - serial bonds due in annual 
installments ofS475,000 to $1,005,000 through December 1,2023; interest at 
3.25% to 4.25"10; tenn bonds maturin$ on December 1,20251. are subject to 
mandatory redemption prior to matunty in the amounts of :)1,045,000 and 
S I,090,000 from December 1, 2024, to December 1,2025, with interest at 4.25%; 
issued to fmance the cost of certain capital projects within the COWJty; payable 
from the half-cent sales tax distributed to the County. 
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$6,787,000 20098 Subordinated Sales Tax Refunding Revenue Bond due in 
annual installments of$37S,000 to $2,264,000 through December 1, 2018; interest 
at 2.93%; issued to currently refund the Steend Guaranteed Entitlement Revenue 
Bonds, Series 1996, the Guaranteed Entitlement Revenue Bonds, Series 1 m , and 
the Sales Tax Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1997; payable from the half-cent 
sales tax revenues distributed to the County. $2,889,184 of the outstanding 
principal and any associated interest will be paid from revenues from the operation 
of the County's golfeourses. 

$7,070,000 200 1 Founh Cent Tourist Development Tax Revenue RefundinJ 
Bonds· serial bonds due in annual insta llments of$680,000 to $74S,000 throUgh 
March 1,20 13, interest at 4.2S% to 4.S00Io; issued to refund the Fourth Cent 
Tourist Development Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 1993; payable from tourist tax 
revenues. 

$2S,S2S,000 200S Constitutional Fuel Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds - due in 
annual installments 0($2,ooS,000 to $2,990,000 through August 1,2020; interest 
at 4.12S% to S.oo%; issued to advance refund the outstanding Constitutional Fuel 
Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2000 maturing on and after August 1, 201 1; payable 
from constitutional fuel tax revenues. 

$48,S3S,000 200S Local Option Fuel Tax Revenue Bonds - due in annual 
installments of SI,76S,000 to $3,450,000 throu~ August 1,2026; interest at 
3.75% to S.OO%; issued to fmance the cost ofcertam transportation projects within 
the County; payable from local option fuel tax revenues. . 

$48,43 S,000 2007 Local Option Fuel Tax Revenue Bonds· term bonds maturing 
August 1,2029, are subject to mandatory redemption in the amounts of$3,410,000 
to $3,760,000 from August 1,2027, to final maturity; interest at S.()(W.; term 
bonds maturing August I, 2032, arc subject to mandatory redemption in the 
amounts ofS3,94S,000 to S4,3S0,000 from August I, 2030, to final maturity; 
interest at 5.()(W. ; term bonds maturing August 1,2037, are subject 10 mandatory 
redemption in the amounts of$4,S70,000 to SS,SS5,OOO from Au.&ust 1, 2033, to 
final maturity; interest at S.OO%; issued to fmance the cost ofcertam transportation 
projects within the County; payable from local option fuel tax revenues. 

$10,929,000 Commercial Paper. issued as part of the Florida Local Government 
Finance Commission Pooled Commercial Paper Notes program; outstanding 
balance due at various dales; interest, which is variable was .98% on September 30, 
2010; this variable rate is based on the underlying commercial faper that is 
purchased, during the fiscal year the interest rate ranged from .98Vo to 1.04%; 
Issued to fund construction ofT ·hangars at the Valkarla ' Airport, construction of 
special assessment projects, fmance renovations and modifications to existing 
County propeny, and purchase various capital equipment; payable from the 
Co~ty's general revenues, transportation receipts, and prior lien upon certain 
speCIal assessments. 

C. Component Units 

$2,4S0,000 Titusville·Cocoa Airport Aulbority Note - payable in equal monthly 
installments over I S years; interest at 4.37%; issued to rermance its portion of the 
Florida Local Government Finance Commission Pooled Commercial Paper Note 
and to fmance capital improvement projects; payable from gross revenues of the 
Authority. 

$118,293 Tirusville..cocoa Airport Authority Note - payable in equal monthly 
installments over 15 years; interest at 2.50%; issued as part of. land swap 
transaction; payable frOm gross revenues of the Authority. 
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D. Summary of Bonded and Other Indebtedness 

The long-term liabi lity activity for the year ended September 30, 2010, was as follows : 

BOnd. J)8y"b1e : 
Gener"l oblig"tion bond. 
Revenue boDd. 
Le •• deferred "mount. , 

Dl.co\lnt. 
pr ... i""". 
Refunding 

Tot"l bond. p"y"ble 
c"pit"l l e ,,"e commlt~ent. 
Note I p"y"ble 
Accrued compen."ted "boence s 
OPES 11llbility 
Arbitrllge Ihbllity 
Cl.im. and judgment. 
Government"l "ctivitiea 

long-term ltabilltte. 

III.lne •• - typa .ctlvltl •• , 

BODd. p"y"ble: 
Revenue bond. 
Le •• d.terred "IIIOIIDt.: 

Di l count. 
Pr • • ll1_ 
.efunding 

ToUI bond. J)8y"ble 
C"pinl Ie • • • c-.lt_nt. 
Landfill clOlure .nd 

postclesllr. c"r. 
Accrued coepen."ted "bsences 
OPEB lilObi lity 
8\1liness- type Ictivlti.1 

long - ter- ll"bllities 

Nete. p"y"ble 
Accru.d campen.lted Ib.ence. 
OPED liability 
compoDent \InitIO 

long-term lilbilitie. 

OCt.l, 2009 

$115.645 ,000 
170,492,891 

190.522 
(5,161.250) 
2.604,906 

$H8.50],71] 
188, ell 

•. 101,000 
29,395.992 
15.318,714 
1.07],186 

18,349,086 

$12g 25g.72t 

$ 55,007.109 

62,274 
(1,0]2,612) 

635 ,964 
$ 55 , 141,483 

48,190 

26,302 ,500 
2 ,011, 263 
I , HI,)l1 

s 85 5lp.717 

$ L717,~2 e 

276.330 
191.634 

S 2 . 1158!l2 

, 
Incre"5e 

• 
],597,815 

• • 
U r 831 

$ 1,110,983 

• • 
4 ,033,860 
5,55',U] 

21.453 
51,200, 6 " 

$§t §II ?U 

$ 4 .436.114 

• • U , 5ZS 
$ 4,1)9 . U9 

577 , 92) 

U2 .SH 
n.f27 

&SO, 931 

S 6 512 . 521 

, 

, 
• 173,578 

152,]28 

131j· g9' 

$1),265,000 
U,641,'U 

12.111 
(5U, U2) 
40., '07 

$28, Oll. 492 
92,174 

1,465.000 
4.271.150 
),511,146 

600.95] 
48,61),95J 

sn·UJ·g" 

$10, "1,9)2 

H, IU 
(H7.nSI 
2St,ll0 

$11,114,108 
In, In 

• 215 ,541 
423 , IS' 

sp ug.'15 

• 
, 

162,981 
221.883 
)7,)10 

tn l1t 

Due .. itbiD 
sept . 10. Z010 One ye"r 

$162,)80 , 000 
lU,746.7U 

151.141 
(4.'00,ll.) 

2 , 212,])2 
$32',]56.204 

'6.659 
5,616.000 

29.158.502 
l7.282,5ll 

U1.886 
20 , 9)5,831 

sn. ?Sa §ll 

$11,800 .000 
10 ,504,880 

86,488 
lel,OOO 

2. ?o2, 521 

51.70' 
9.Sll.S50 

$ U,452 . 2§l $7.41'.120 

'7 , 455 
(U4 .n7) 
(1) , 159 

$ U,566 . )34 
'9' . "6 191 . 221 

27 ,115,0 14 
1,891,149 174 . 019 
1 , 9" r O~0 

'10197511 

$ 1,555.847 
226,125 
)0' , 512 

, 2 gu SSt 

151.95' 
226.125 

Internal service funds predominantly serve the governmental funds. Accordingly, long-term liabilities for these 
funds are included as part of the above totals for governmental activities. Claims and judgments liabi lity is 
liquidated by the Risk Management Internal Service fund. Accrued compensated absences liability is liquidated 
With resources of the same fund that has paid the applicable employee's regular salaries and fringe benefits. 
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BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

E. Total AMyal Debt Service Requirements 

Accrued compensated absences, claims and judgments, landfill closure and posrclosure care, other 
postemployment benefit liability, and arbitrage liability are excluded from this tabulation. See section 
D. Summary of Bonded and Other Indebtedness for additional information. 

The annual requirements 10 amortize all debt outstanding al Sf:ptcmber 30, 2010, are as follows: 

Gove~tltill ilctivitles 

Yur ElIding GenU'al Obligation Bonds Reven\le Bonds lIOt,n and I.e .. ,u,s 
September 30 principal Interes t principal Interest Principill Interes t 

2011 , 1 3,aOO,000 , 7,)11,152 , 10,504,no , 7,231,662 , 4", 4 88 , 81,261 
2012 8 ,950,000 5 ,aH,013 9, 24) ,5'0 5,825, 151 2,359,111 52,S02 
2011 9,)25,000 6,U1,034 ', 438,590 5,4)0,10) ),'04,000 ',414 
2014 ',150,000 6,040,210 ',085,195 ',011,04 9 , , 
20a 10,230,000 5,558,567 8 ,165,143 5,629,116 , , 

20U·2020 sa,755,000 20, 170 ,066 3$,)48,171 2),5U "n , , 
2021-2025 45,ao,OOo 7 , 175,009 2),600,000 16,720,880 , , 
2026-2030 ',270,000 30),269 20,620,000 ll,299,7U , , 
2011-n15 , , 22,895,0 00 ',256,750 , , 
2016·n17 , , 10,845,000 '20, 000 , , 

ToUl Sl§2,HO,gOg i,5,? ' H, u 9 S1 59716 7]9 , '9 711,113 , ',ll2 '52 , 11 2 ' 77 
B\lsiness-t:z:pe ilctivit1<!1 CO<ftl)Onent Units 

Yeilr Ending Revenlle Bonds Lel . ,n I.eilse. 
SeptelOlbflr ]0 principal Interest Princip!1 Interes t principa l Interes t 

2011 • 7, 418 .120 , 2.230,256 $191,22a , 5, 144 , In,n, , U,479 
2012 1,112, 44 0 1 ,84 1,42' 193,632 2,140 175,387 56,050 
20ll 1,)67,410 1,425,748 114 .08' '" 1&4 ,0'5 48 ,3 42 
2014 l,aOO,205 98},093 , , 192.143 40,2 94 
2015 1,)34,251 725,570 , , ~OO, 545 )1,892 

~0l§-2020 S , 155 ,ln 2 . 886.18( , , U) ,ng 41 , 421 
~021-202S 4 ,180,000 1 , 840,856 , , , , 
202'-20)0 5,314,000 '7a, 142 , , , , 

TOu1 SU,t!i2,2il $12, il2, 518 u U,an I....I.lU n 5 55 1t7 Ull 17' 

14 . Obligation for Bond Arbitrage Rebate - Pursuant to the U.S. Internal Revenue Code, the Countymust rebate to the 
United States Governmenl the excess of interest eamed from the investment of certain debt proceeds and pledged 
revenues over the yield rate of the applicable debt. Arbitrage rebate, ifany, is due and payable on each five year 
anniversary of the respective debt issue. As of September 30, 20 I 0, the County had outstanding arbitrage rebate 
liability in the amount of$493,886. 

15. Curren! and Adyance Refunding of Debt 

A. During the fi scal year ended September 30, 1978, the County completed a full cash advance 
refunding of all outstanding Water Resources Util ity Revenue Bonds, Series 1973, Series 1973A, 
and Series 1975, to effect an overall reduction in debt service and to revise certain terms and 
covenants made under the outstanding bonds. The advance refunding was fmanced from the 
issuance ofSl 1,665,ooo Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 1978, and the simultaneous issulIDCC of 
S 17,725,000 Special Obligation Bonds, Series 1978A. The net proceeds from the bonds were 
deposited in an irrevocable escrow account and invested in federal securities at an amount sufficient 
for the payment of all principal, interest, and call premiums due on the refunded bonds. As a result, 
the respective liens of the refunded 1973, 1973A, and 1975 bonds were defeascd, and the Countys 
obligation on the refunded debt was satisfied, The Special Obligation Bonds, Series 1978A, which 
are not presented in the accompanying balance sheet, are secured by, and payable from, the federal 
securities and interest income eamed on the federal securities held in escrow and do not constitute 
an obligation of the County, Total outstanding principal of the Series 1973 and Series 1973A bonds 
at September 30, 2010, were $375,000 and $235,000, respectively. Total outslanding princifal of 
the Series 1978A bonds was $50,000. The Series 1975 bonds were funy relired during fisca year 
2006. 
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During lIIe fiscal year ended September 30, 1985, lIIe County completed a net cash advance 
refunding of outstanding Water Resources Utility Revenue Bonds, Series 1978 and Series 1983, to 
effect an overall reduction in debt service and to revise cenain tenns and covenants made under the 
outstanding bonds. The advance refunding was fUlanced from the issuance of $11,295,000 
Refunding Subordinate Revenue Bonds, Series 1984, refunded by Subordinate Utility Revenue 
Bonds, Series 1988. The net proceeds from lIIe bonds were deposited in an irrevocable escrow 
account and invested in federal securities al an amount sufficient for the payment of all principal, 
interest, and call premiums due on lIIe refunded bonds. As a result, the respective liens of the 
refunded 1978 and 1983 bonds were defeased, and the County's obligation on the refunded debt was 
satisfied. Total outstanding principal of the Series 1978 and the Series 1983 bonds at September 
30,2010, was S950,000 and S2,620,000, respectively. 

During fiscal ycar ended September 30, 2005, the County completed a net cash advance refunding 
of all outstanding Consti tutional Fuel Tax Revenue Bonds, SeTles 2000 maturing on or after August 
I, 20 I I, to effect an overall reduction in debt service. The advance refunding was financed trom 
the issuance of S25,525,000 Constitutional Fuel Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 2005. The net 
proceeds were deposited into an irrevocable escrow account and invested at an amount sufficient for 
the payment of all principal, interest, and call premiums due on lIIe refunded bonds. As a result, the 
respective liens ofllle refunded bonds were defeased and the County's obligation on the refunded 
debt was satisfied . The Series 2000 bonds wert fully retired during fiscal year 20 I O. 

During the fi scal year ended September 30, 2010, the County completed a current refunding of all 
outstanding Guaranteed Entitlement Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1999, Second Guaranteed 
Entitlement Revenue Bonds, Series 1996, and Sales Tax Refundlllg Revenue Bonds, Series 1997, to 
effect an overall reduction in debt service. The current refunding was financed through sinking fund 
contributions and the issuance ofllle S6,787,000 Subordinated Sales Tax Refunding Itevenue Bond, 
Series 2009B. 

BHnd Covrrage • The County is required by bond resolutions to fix, establish, and maintain such user rates that 
WI I alwlYS provide sufficient revenue for debt service, operations and maintenance, and III olller reserve 
requirements peninent to the bond issues within the affected Enterprise Funds. Where the bond resolutions 
provide for more than one bond coverage test, lIIe eovenants shown are the most restrictive. 

The following tabulation indicates the degree of compliance willi the bond resolution covenants in 
the Water Resources Department, and the Barefoot Bay Water &. Sewer District at September 30, 
2010. These coverage tests compare debt coverage required with revenue available after covering 
operating and maintenance expenses. 

Gross revenues available for compliance 
Operating and maintenance 

expense (excluding depreciation expense) 
Amount of revenue over operating 

and maintenance expense 
Debt coverage required 
Percent coverage for the year 
ended September 30, 201 0 

( I) Includes SI,4oo,027 in connection fees. 

Watcr 
Resources 

Department 
S27,671,050 (I) 

17.749,338 (2) 

$ 9'921 712 

UJ I907Q 

IQ2% 

Barefoot Bay 
Water &. Sewer 

District 
$3,355,420 

1,692,783 (3) 

$1662,631 
am 273 

136% 

(2) Operating and maintenance expense excludes payment in lieu of taxes (S984,680), renewal and 
replacement expenses ($791,903). 

(3) Operating and maintenance expense excludes S 122,385 renewal and replacement expenses. 

17. Intm:oyemroental Component Vails Assistance Programs 

Administration (FAA), lIIe f,&.~~~~~~~~a~~~~~]~~~~~E,1£~~];;~fthe Space Center Executive • Cocoa Airpon Authority 
. The are not funded by the FAA, 
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excepl thaI the FOOT may initially fund up to 75% of certain project costs, and the FOOT shall be reimbursed 10 
the 50% level when the FAA funds become available·or within 10 ye21fS after project completion, whichever is 
earlier. In prior r,ears, the Authority received three grants from the FDOT totaling $993,800 of which $256,266 
exceeded the 50 110 limit. 

18. Condensed Financial Statements - Discretely Presented Component U!li!s. 

A. Statement of Net Assets 

ASSet S, 
Other assets 
Capital aasets, net of 
accum~lated depreciation 

Total asset" 

Liabilities, 
C~rrent l iabilities 
Nonc~rrent liabilities 

Total liabi lities 

Net assets, 
Inveo ted in capital assets 

net of related debt 
Restricted for Ho~sin9 
Unre~ tricted 

Total ne t assets 

Assets, 
Other asaets 
Capital aaBeta . net of 
accum~lated depreciation 

Total a ssets 

Liabilities, 
Current liabilities 
Nonc~rrent liabili_ties 

Total liabi l ities 

Net aBsets, 
Invested in capital assets 

net of related debt 
Restricted for Housing 
Unrestricted 

Total ne t assets 

North 
Brevard County 
Public Library 

District 

, 5,2~6 
---' 
$ S,2~6 

, , 
---' 
L-.i 

, , , 
~ 

l....>...Ui 

Melbourne -
Tillll\illl 

Water Control 
District 

, 6.144,011 

1.123,664 , 7,867.68 1 

, 52,314 
440,024 , 492,)38 

, 1,72),664 , 
5 , 651,679 

i l P5, 3iJ 

63 

Merritt Island 
Redevelopment 

Agenc}: 

$).651,866 

, 
13,657 ,866 

, 212,023 , 
1 212,023 

, , , 
),445.8 4 3 

l~,U~,U;j: 

Housing 
Finance 

A,uthoritr 

$4,648 , 618 

, 
$ 4. 648,618 

, 74,680 , 
1 74,680 

, , 
1.224,500 
3,349,438 

lS,~;n,2n 

Titusville­
Cocoa 

Airport 
Authoritr 

$ 4,184,615 

37,390,644 

$41,575,259 

, 542.037 
1,648,530 

$ 2 , 190.567 

$35,8)4,797 , 
),549,S95 

539 ,3 84 ,622 

$18 , 640,412 

39,114,308 

$57.754 , 720 

, 881,054 
2,088,554 

$ 2, 969.6G8 

$37.558,461 
1,224,500 

16,002,151 

554.785 ,112 



A·I) 
22 OF 27 

B. Statement of Activities 

Expenses, 
Total expeoses 

program rev.nue., 
Ch.rge. for .ervic •• 

BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FfNANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 20 10 

NOrth 
Br.vard CO\lnty Merritt Isllnd 
Public Library Red.velop.ent 

District Mency 

, ),544 , l,2U,844 

, 2 ,771 , , 
c.pital grant. an4 oontribution. , 5",500 

Tot.l progr.e r.v.nu •• 

Net p rog r .... revenUeS 

Gener.l revenue. , 
T.xe. 
Other gen.ral revenue. 

Tot.l g.ner. l revenues 

Chenge in net ••• ets 

Beginning n.t •••• t. 

Ending net •• set. 

Expenses , 
Total e xpen.e. 

Progralll revenue., 
Ch.rges for serVices 
capi tel grants an4 contribution. 

General revenuel: 
TIX •• 
Other gene ral reVlnuel 

Tot.l gen.r.l rev.nu •• 

Ch.nge in n.t •••• t. 

B.ginning net •••• tl 

Ending net .11.ts 

, 2 , 711 , (773) 

, , , 
, , 
, (n)) 

6,OU , 5.215 

Helbo1Jrne-
Tillman 

water Control 
Diatrict 

, 2.890,175 

, 1 ,77'.251 , 
, 1 , 779,251 

$\1,1l0 ,92t) 

, , 
217 ,997 

, 217,H7 

, (892,,27) 

8,268,270 , l ~n,~u 

64 

, 5",500 , (67 3 ,)H) 

, 1 ,229, 117 
58,'01 

, 1.287,118 , 614,544 

2,IU,2n 

, , 145 Itl 

llou81ng 
pinance 

Autbority 

, )62,072 

, 519,1'2 , 
, 519,172 

, 217,100 

, , 
55,'25 

, 65,725 

, 282,125 

4 ,2,1,11) 

U ~n UI 

Titu.ville-
,~~ 

Airport 
Authority 

, 2,'3',619 

, 1,U5,425 
2,242,901 

, 4 ,221 , 326 , 1,589,707 

, 
" I, "5 , ',826 , 1.598.5]3 

)7,786,15' 

in,Ut,U~ 

Total 

, ',164,254 

, t ,Jt6,619 
2,81',401 

, 7,116,020 

, 21,766 

, 1,229.218 
)51,2 11 

, 1,510, t36 

, 1 ,602.202 

5),182,910 

i~£, II~ IIi 



BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FTNANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

A-13 
23 OF 27 

19. Risk Management - The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to tort; theft of, damage to, and 
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The County has 
established a Risk Management fund (an Internal Service Fund) to account for and finance its uninsured risks of 
loss. Under the Risk Management fund program, the County retains e)(posure up to a maximum of $350,000 for 
each worker's compensation claim, and $50,000 for each general liabil i.ty claim. For all risk property, the County 
retains exposure up to a maximum 0[$100,000 per occurrence, all peri.ls. For weather catastrophes, as a result of 
named storms, the County retains exposure of5% of Total Insurable Values (TIV) with a mimmum ofS500,000 
per occurrence. For flood losses, the County retains exposure of5% ofTlV With a minimwn ofSI ,000,000 for any 
one occurrence in a special flood hazard area. For floods due to named stonns, the exposure is 5% ofTIV with a 
minimum of $500,000; any other flood outside of special flood hazard area $500,000. The County purchases 
commercial insurance for claims in excess of coverage provided by the fund . Settled claims have not exceeded 
this commercial coverage in any of the pasl three years. 

20. 

21. 

The County has established a self-insured Em:rloyee Group Insurance :Program to account for medical insurance 
claims of County employees and their covere dependents. Under this program, the fund provides the employee 
with an annual maximum benefit of $1 ,000,000. The County did not purchase Stop Loss coverage for its self­
insured medial claims in the 2010 p lan year. The COlUlty has conn'acted with various agencies (third party 
administrators) to perform certain adminIstrative funct ions, such as monitoring, reviewing and paying claims. 

All County deparonents partiCipate in the self insurance programs and. make payments to the Rjsk Management 
fund based on acroarial estimates of the amounts needed to pay prior an.d current yearc1aims. The claims liability 
of $20,935,83 1 in the Risk Management fund, reported at September 30, 20 I 0, is based on the rejuirements of 
Govenunental Accountin$ Standards Board Statement No. 10, which requires that a liability or claims be 
reported if information pnor to the issuance of the financ ial statements indicates that it is probable that a liability 
has been incurred at the date of the financia l statements, and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. 
Changes in the claims liability amounts in fiscal years 2009 and 2010 were: 

Beginning offiscal year liability 
Current year claims 
Claim payments 

Balance at fiscal year end 

l2!I2 
$16,896,556 

51,194,,549 
~",..Ql.2) 

~.2I.Ii 

The claims liability at September 30, 2010, has been calculated as follows: 

Present value of estimated outstanding losses 
(estimated losses of$22,235,845, discounted 
to reflect future investment earnings at 2.0%) 

Unallocated loss adjustment expenses (calculated at 7.5% of outstanding losses, 
excluding medical insurance) 

Estimated recoveries on settled claims 

Claims liabil ity at September 30, 2010 

i 
emergency. I assets trust for the exclusive 

2010 

18,349,086 
51,200,698 

(48,613,953) 

$20.935831 

$20,697,916 

l.l83,878 

(945,963) 

$20935831 

in accordance 

·,;i;~i:~~f,:~;:~:;~r,r~·:l\ lawsuits in wh:ich the County is involved. Although the 
. _~ matters is not expected to have an adverse effect on the 

County. 
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BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
NOTES TO FrNANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

"ll~~~iI'h~"b::~~:~'':r,:~:~~ ~~~:;o~;n::e fund to support expenditures of another fund in ac;cordance el funds during the year ending September 30, 2010, wcre: 

Transfers Out 

General Fund 

Emergency Services 

Brevard County Transportation Trust 

Nonmajrn: Governmental Funds 

SoM Waste Management Department 

Water Resources Department 

Barefoot Bay Water & Sewer District 

Nonmajor Proprietary Funds 

Internal Service Funds 

Total Transfers 

Transfers In 

Emergency Services 
Brevard County Transportation Trust 
O""'ti 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
Solid Waste Management Department 
Noruna/'or Proprietary Funds 
Interna Service Funds 

General Fund 
Brevard County Transportation Trust 
Noruna/'or Governmental funds 
Intema Service Funds 

General Fund 
Emergency Services 
Internal Service Funds 

General Fund 
Nonmajo~ Governmental Funds 

General Fund 
Brevard County Transportation Trust 
Parks and Recreation Facilities 
Noruna/' or Governmental Funds 
Internll Service Funds 

, General Fund 
Internal Service Funds 

General Fund 
Emergency Services 
Noruna/' or Governmental Funds 
Interna Service Funds 

General Fund 

General Fund 

General Fund 
Emergency Services 
Brevard County Transportation Trust 
O""'ti 
Parks & Recreation Facilities 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
Solid Waste Management Department 
Water Resources 
Barefoot Bay Water & Sewer District 
Noruna/'or Proprietary Funds 
Interna Service Funds 

am­
$7,934,922 

3,333,806 
641,975 

14,956,959 
83,335 

2,482,234 
142,223 

663,299 
20,991 

5,295 
196,030 

175,963 
1,300 

40,986 

13,491 
300,000 

3,4 19,924 
560,35 I 
710,965 

3,671,850 
385,453 

1,12 1,204 
123,487 

987,755 
5, 199 
5,295 

143,085 

76, 167 

155,014 

2,627,806 
402,104 

9,603 
5,083 
4,875 

335,036 
159,204 
235,379 
20,669 
32,575 
10,142 

$46201 Ali 

Transfers are used to allocate funding within the County government, These include subsidized functions such as 
emergency services and transportation. The County transfers resources pledged to service annual debt payments 
to the Debl Service Funds, 
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established 

Brevard Count¥. is required to contribute an acruarially detennined rate. The retirement plan is funded by 
employer contributions at a rate of9.85% Ihrough June 2010, and changed 10 a rale of 10.17% effective July 
2010, of gross pay for regular employees; 20.92% through June 201 0 (23.25% effective July 20 I 0) for special­
risk empToyees, which include law enfon:emenl officers, correctional officers, and firefighters ; and 16.53% 
through June 201 0 (18.64% effective July 2010) for elected omcials. The County's contributions for the years 
ending September 30/20 10. 2009, and 2008, were $25,687,244, 525,632,654, and 525,928,294, respectively, 
which equallhe required contributions for each year. ConU'ibutions for the year ending September 30, 20 10, 
represented 14.37% of covered payroll. 

The Florida Division of Reti rement issues a publicly available financ ial repon that includes fmancial statements 
and requi red supplementary infonnation for the S~tem. The report may be obtained by writing to the Florida 
Divis ion of Rellrement, 2639 Monroe Street, Building C, Tallahassee, FL 32399-1560. 

24 . Other PostemD]oymenl Benefits 

plan at the lime 
service, are also 

The Board may amend the plan deSign, with changes to the benefits, premiums andlor levels of participant 
contribution al any time. On at least an annual basis and prior to the enrollment process, the Board approves the 
rates for the coming year for the retiree, employee and County contributions. 

As of September 30, 20 10, the membership of the County's medical plan consisted of: 

Active Employees 3,688 
Retirees, Spouses and Beneficiaries Ull 
Total ~ 

Funding PoliCY' The maximum employer contribution target is 56% of the aMual premium cost of the plan. The 
annual premIUm costs are between $7,407 and $12,683 for retirees and spouses under age 65 and between $4,575 
and $7,655 for retirees and spouses over age 65. Emp'lo)'ees hired priOTlO Jan~ 1,2006 are eligible to receive 
1000/, of the earned pen:entage of benefits for their lifetime upon attainment ofage 62 and completion of6 yeats 
of service or ul?On completing 30 years of service, if earlier. Employees hired on or afte r January I, 2006 are 
eligible to receIVe a graduated earned percentage of benefits upon retirement based on years of service. 

"!}lIual ParES Costs and Net O~ Obli$alion - The County's annual other poslemployment benefit (OPEB)co$l 
IS calcu ated based on the requ~ contrIbution of the employer (ARC). The ARC is acruarially detennined in 
accordarICC with standards set in accepted accounting standards and represents a level of funding that, if paid on 
an ongoing basis, is projected to cover nonnal costs each year and amonize past unfunded liabilities over thirty 
years. The Brevard County governing body has elected not to completely fund the ARC. 
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SREV ARD COUNTY, FLORlDA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

The following table shows the actuaria l determined components of the obligation as of October 1,2009 based on 
the current pfan provisions: 

Annual required contribution 
Interest on net OPEB conlribution 
Adjusonent to annual required contribution 

Annual OPEB cost (expense) 
Contributions made 
Increase in net OPEB obligation 
Net OPES obligation - beginning of year 
Net OPEB obligation - end of year 

S 6,121,836 
794,Og2 

<j'O'3b7
) S 6, 05, I 

(4,034,30~ 
S 2,171,59 

!:WLlli 
No trust or agency fund has been established for the plan; there were no adjustments to the annual required 
contribution or interest earnings. 

FII~ed Suitus and Fpnding ProgreSS - The contributions made for the 2008, 2009 and 2010 fisca l years were 
28:v.;; 3 1.4% and 65.0% respectively of the annual OPEB cost. As of the October I, 2009 actuarial valuation 
date, the actuarial accrued liability for benefits was 593.4 million, all of which was unfunded. The annual payroll 
of active employees covered by the OPEB plan was 5178,802,238 and the ratio of the UAAL to thc covered 
payroll was 52.2%. 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions · Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of 
reponed amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples 
include assumptions about future employment, monality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determmed 
regarding the funded status of the pfan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject 10 
continual revision as acrual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the 
future. The schedule of funding progress. presented as required supplementa/y infonnation fo llowing the notes to 
the fmandal statements, presents multi-year trend information about whether the acruarial value of the plan assets 
is increasing or decreasing over time, relative to the actuarial accrued liabili ties for benefits. 

Calculations for fU\8ncial reponing purposes are based on the benefits provided under terms oflhe substantive 
plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) in effect at the time of each valuation and on 
the panern of sharing of costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The projection o f henefits 
for financial reponing purposes does not explicitly incorporate the potential effects of legal or contractual funding 
limitations or the pattern of cost sharing between the employer and plan members 10 the furure . AClUanal 
calculations reflect a long-tenn perspe<:live. Consistent with that perspe<:tive, actuaria l methods and assumptions 
used include techniques thai are designed to reduce the effects of shon-term volati lity in actuarial accrued 
liabilities and the acruarial value of assets. 

The acmanal methods are: 

Actuarial cost method 

Amortization method 

Amortizat ion period (closed) 

The actuarial assumptions are: 

Investment rate of retum 

Projected annual salaries increase 

Heallhcare eost trend rate 

Projected unit credit 

Level pereent of compensation 

30 years 

4.65% 

3% 

8% for fiscal year 20 11, decreasing 10 a rate of ~% 
for the 202 1 fiscal year. 

-,~~dtg":;::~; 5, 2010 the County issued $ 19,550,000 Subordinated Sales Tax Refunding 
ril I . . proceeds of the bond were used for a current refunding ofall outstanding Sales 

Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2001. 

On December 21, 2010, the County issued $9,475,000 Non-Ad Valorem Revenue Note, Series 2010. The 
proceeds or the bond were used for a current refunding or all outstanding florida Local Government Finance 
Corrunission commercial paper, 10 fmanu capital equipment for public sarety and general government, and to 
finance a road repaving project within the County. . 
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On March 8, 201 I, the County approved the defeasance and redemption of portions oflheoutstanding Limited Ad 
Valorem Tax Bonds, Series, 2005 (EELS), in an amount not to exceed S5 million, utilizing existing reserves. 

On March 8, 201 I, the County approved the defeasanc:e and redemption of portions of the outstanding Limited Ad 
Valorem and unallocated Tax Bonds, Series 2007 (South Brevard Recreauon Special District), in an amount not 
10 exceed $18 million, uti lizing existing reserves. 

On March 8, 20 I I, the County approved the defeasanc:e and redemption of portions of the outstanding Limited Ad 
Valorem Tax Bonds, Series 2007 (Memo Island Recreation MSru Parks & Recreation Program), In an amount 
not to exceed SS million, uiilizing existing reserves. 

On March 8, 2011, the County approved the defeasanc:e and redemption of portions of al l Utility Revenue 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2002, in an amount not to exceed $23 million, utilizing interdepartmental loans as well _ 
as utility servic:e fee-revenues. 
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Atluarial Actuarial 
Valualion Value of 

Dale Assets 

IO/O ln007 , 0 
I OJOlnOO8 , 0 
1O/OlnOO9 , 0 

BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS 

, , , 

FOR THE RETIREE HEALTH PLAN 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

Actuarial 
A~""" 

Liabilily . 
Projected Unfunded Funded 

Unit Credi t ML Ratio 

136,333,419 , 136,333,41 9 0.00/0 
136,333,41 9 , 136,333,419 O.O"A. 
93,372,713 , 93,372,773 0.0% 

70 

Covered 
Payroll 

, 188,328,613 , 184,57 1,358 , 178,802,238 

A·14 
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UAAL as a 
Percentage of 

Covered 
Payroll 

72.4% 
13.W. 
52.2% 



Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

Special Revenue Fund5 

Recreation District IV Operating Fund - to account for an ad va lorem tax levy of up to 0.9 mill in 
County Commission District IV in accordance with Chapter 71-544, Laws of Florida, for the 
provision of recreation facilities and programs. 

Brevard County Free Public Library District Fund - to account fo r a county-wide ad valorem tax 
levy of up to 1.0 mi ll pursuant to Chapter 72-480, Laws of Florida, to operate and maintain the 
County library system. 

Brevard County Mosquito Control District Fund - to account for a county-wide ad valorem taxing 
district pursuant to Chapter 18437, Laws of Florida, and Chapter 388, Florida Statutes, for the 
purpose of controlling arthropods. 

Special Road And Bridge Districts Fund - to account for ad valorem tax levies in Districts I, n, 
Ill. IV, and V of up to 1.0 mill per district for the maintenance of roads, bridges, and canals of the 
community as provided by County Ordinances. 

Miscellaneous Fines Fund - to account for fmes imposed upon those found guilty of criminal 
offenses that are to be used for various judicial costs. 

Recreation District I M.S.T.U. Fund - to account fo r an ad valorem tax levy of up to 1.0 mill in 
County Commission District I for the operation of recreation programs in accordance with 
Ordinance 76-29. 

Special Law Enforcement District Fund - to account for an ad valorem tax levy of up to 2.0 mills 
for the provision of law enforcement services to the community in accordance with Ordinance 0 I­
SS. This includes contracts with the City of Cape Canaveral, (he Canaveral Port Authority, and 
the Housi ng Authority of Brevard County for law enforcemenl services. 

Tourist Development Tax Fund - to account for the.collection of sales tax levied against revenues 
associated with tourism in Brevard County. These taxes are to be expended to promote tourism, 
acquire and improve tourist faci lities, finance beach improvement and renourishment, and 
construct a zoo and sports complex. This levy was establi shed pursuant to Section 125.0104, 
Florida Statutes and Ordinance 86-25. as amended by 2005-21. 
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Surface Water improvement Division Fund - to account for the collection of storm water 
assessments in Districts i. II. m. IV. and V. These revenues are to be expended in accordance 
with Ordinance 90-34. 

Slate Housing Initiative Partnership Fund - to account for a local housing program which expands 
the supply of affordable housing for low income families pursuant to Section 420.9075. Florida 
Statutes. 

Hurricane Housing Recovery Program Fund - to account for a housing recovery assistance plan 
resulting from hurrica:nes in 2004. 

Brevard County Building Code Compl iance Fund· account for revenues pursuant to Chapter 553. 
Florida Statutcs, to process development applications and comply with building codes. 

Education Impact Fees Fund - to account for impact fees assessed on new construction for public 
elementary and secondary educational facilities. 

Environmentall y Endangered Land Program Fund - to account fo r acquisition and improvements 
to endangered lands in Brevard County. 

Records Modernization Trust Fund - to account for service chargcs collected on recording fees to 
be used for modernization of the officiaJ records system, and court-related teclmology needs of 
the Clerk. as set forth in Section 28.24, Florida Statutes. 

Debt Service Funds 

Tourist Development Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds. Series 2001 - to refund Tourist 
Development Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 1993. which were issued to finance the construction of 
a baseball spring training facility within Brevard County. 

Sales Tax Revenue Bonds - to finance the acquisition and construction of capital improvements 
within Brevard County. 

Commercial Paper Note - to fund the construction ofT -hangars and special assessment projects, 
finance the dredging of channels and canals. acquisition of land and buildings, and purchase of 
various capital equipment. 
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Limited Ad Valorem Tax Bonds - to finance the acquisition, preservation and improvement of 
environmentally endangered land in Brevard County; to finance the acquisition, development and 
improvement of certain parks in North Brevard, South Brevard, and Merritt Island . . 

Second Guaranteed Entitlement Bonds, Series 1996 - to finance the acquisition and construction 
of recreational facilities in the Port St. John/Canaveral Groves Recreational Facilities Municipal 
Service Taxing Unit. 

Capital Projects Funds 

General Government Facilities - to account for the construction and improvements made to 
county government facilities in Brevard County. 

Environmentally Endangered Land Purchases - to account for the acquisition of and 
improvements to, environmentally endangered lands in Brevard County. 
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BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

Speciol Revenue 

ASSETS 

ea.h 
Cash with escrow and paying agent 
Receivables (net of allowance for 

uncollectibles): 
Accounts 
Taxes 
Assessments 
Accrued interest 

Due from other funds 
Due from other governmental units 
Inventory of supplies 
Advances to other funds 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities: 
Vouchers and contracts payable 
Accrued wages and benefilS payable 
Due to other funds 
Due to other governmental units 
Advances from other funds 
Deferred revenue 

Total liabilities 

Fund balances: 
Reserved for; 

Debt service 
Inventory 

Unreserved, reported in: 
Debt Service funds 
Special Reyenue funds 
Capital Project fulKls 

Total fund balances 

Total liabilities and fund balances 

S 

S 

s 

, 

s 

s 
s 

74 

Recreation Brevard County 
Districl lV Free Public 
Operating Library District 

59 1,925 S 3,107,266 

• • 
6,549 98. 
8,542 98, 166 

• • 1,152 5,082 
11 ,352 105,962 
86,180 • 22,33 1 • • • 

728z03 1 S 313171456 

55,251 S 154,539 

• • • • 
317 632 

• 0 
93,724 931752 

149,292 S 248,923 

• S • 
22,33 1 • 

• • 556,408 3,068,533 

• • 
578,739 S 3,068,533 

7281°3 1 S 3,317,456 



Brevard County 
Mosquito Special Road 
Control And Bridge 
Districl Districts 

, 4,934,477 , 5,447,059 

• • 
• • 

37,391 17,317 

• • 
8,482 9,451 

37,620 34,826 
140,47 1 • 

1,881,673 341,854 

• • , '1040,114 
, 5,850,507 

, 622,482 , 507,684 
. 

• • • 94,500 

• • • 94,500 
1711364 16 t280 

$ 793,846 $ 712,964 

$ • $ • 
1,881 ,673 341,854 

0 0 
4,364,595 4,795,689 

0 0 

$ 6,2461268 $ 5,137,543 

$ 7!040,114 $ 5,850 t507 

SE!.ecial Revenue 

Miscellaneous 
Fines 

, 4,974,913 $ 

• 
68,721 

0 

• 
5;382 

50,000 
29,829 

5,058 

• 
S 5,133,903 , 

$ 537,249 $ 
2,803 

295,950 

• • 
107,755 

$ 943,757 $ 

$ • , 
5,058 

0 
4, 185,088 

0 , 4,190!146 $. 

$ 5
1
133,903 $ 

75 

Recreation 
District / 
Us. T. U. 

3,936,006 

• 
24' 

12,731 
0 

6,394 
18,855 

547,5 12 
33,904 

• 
4,555,642 

119,324 

• • 
472 

• 114,'110 

233,906 

0 
33,904 

0 
4,287,832 

0 

4!321,736 

4,555,642 

, 

S 

, 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

B-1 
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Special Law 
Enforcement 

District 

2,129,186 

• 
119 

56,624 

• 
615 

126,031 
207,655 

• • 
3,120,230 

89,833 
474,844 

73,94 1 
111,454 

• 
52,896 

802,968 

0 
0 

0 
2,317,262 

0 

2,317,262 

3,120,230 
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BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 

COMBfNING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMA10R GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

Special Revenue 

ASSETS 

C"h 
Cash with escrow and paying agent 
Receivables (net of allowance for 

uncol1ectibles): 
Accounts 
Taxes 
Assessments 
Accrued interest 

Due from other funds 
Due from other governmental units 
Inventory of supplies 
Advances to other funds 

Total assets 

LIABILITiES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liab il ities: 
Vouchers and contracts payable 
Accrued wages and benefits payable 
Due to other funds 
Due to other governmental units 
Advances from other funds 
Deferred revenue 

Tota l liabilities 

Fund balances: 
Reserved for: 

Debt service 
Inventory 

Unreserved, reported in: 
Debt Service funds 
Special Revenue funds 
Capital Project funds 

Total fund balances 

Total liabilities and fund balances 

S 

S 

S 

S 

S 

$ 

S 

76 

Tourist Surface Water 
Development Improvement 

T~ Division 

12,989,821 S 9,405,181 
5,2 13 0 

89,948 17,658 
0 0 
0 9,991 

21,478 16,376 
0 35,368 

460,456 10,924 
8,512 0 

0 319,525 

13,575,428 S 9,935,023 

283,467 S 507,539 
0 0 
0 0 

10,058 0 
0 0 

187 91586 

293,7 12 $ 517,125 

0 S 0 
8,512 0 

0 0 
13,273,204 9,417,898 

0 0 

13 t28 117 16 $ 9,417,898 

13,575,428 S 9,935,023 
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Special Rf!'Venue 

Stale Hurricane 
Housing Housing Brevard C(}II.nty Education £,,"';ronmenlally 
[nil ia/i,,#! Recovery Building Code Impoct Endangered 

Partnership Program Compliance Fees tond Program 

S 4,722,368 S 0 S 210,978 S 4,422,958 S 1,467,54) 

0 0 0 0 0 

51,62 1 0 238 0 14,272 
0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 

7,932 0 301 7,759 2,572 
0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 \4,783 
0 0 0 0 0 

S 4178 1,92 1 S 0 S 2 11 ,5 17 $ 4,430,7 17 S 1,499,170 

S 40,2)7 S 0 S 3,287 S 202,456 S 8,700 
0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 69,832 0 
0 0 2,354 0 0 
0 0 0 139,664 0 
0 0 0 0 13,667 

S 40,231 S 0 S 5,64 1 S 41 1,952 S 22,367 

$ 0 S 0 S 0 S 0 S 0 
0 0 0 0 14,783 

0 0 0 0 0 
4,74 1,684 0 205,876 4,018,765 1,462,020 

0 0 0 0 0 

S 4174 1,684 $ 0 S 205,876 S 4,018,765 S 1,476,803 

S 417811921 S 0 S 211 ,517 S 4,4) 0,7 17 S 1,499, 170 
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BREVARD COUNTY. FLORJDA 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 20 10 

ASSETS 

C"'" 
Cash with escrow and paying agent 
Receivables (net of allowance for 

uncollectibles): 
Accounts 
Taxes 
Assessments 
Accrued interest 

Due from other funds 
Due from other governmental units 
Inventory of supplies 
Advances to other funds 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities: 
Vouchers and contracts payable 
Accrued wages and benefits payable 
Due to other funds 
Due 10 other governmental units 
Advances from other funds 
Deferred revenue 

Total liabilities 

Fund balances: 
Reserved for: 

Debt service 
Inventory 

Unreserved, reported in: 
Debt Service funds 
Special Revenue funds 
Capital Project funds 

Total fund balances 

Total liabilities and fund balances 

78 

Special Revenue 

Records 
Modernization 

r"", 

S 

S 

s 

s 

s 

s 
s 

644,243 
0 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

644,243 

2,840 
13,046 

o 
o 
o 
o 

15,886 

o 
o 

o 
628,357 

o 
628,357 

644,243 

Debt Service 
Tourist 

Development 
Tax Revenue 

Refunding Bomb, 
Series 1001 

s 

s 

s 

S 

S 

S 

S 

1,117,816 
o 

o 
o 
o 

1,929 
o 
o 
o 
o 

1, 119,745 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

0 

707,000 
0 

412,745 
0 
0 

1,11 9,745 

1,1191745 



Debl Service 

Sales Ta:s. Commercial Limited 
Revenue Paper Ad Valorem 
Bonds NOle Tax Bonds 

$ 488,825 , 38,1 46 $ 5,825,003 
0 0 0 

0 0 0 
1,883 0 117,042 

0 176,997 0 
842 66 10,924 

2,918 0 163,514 
0 o· 0 
0 0 0 
0 0 0 , 494,528 $ 215,209 , 6, 11 6:483 

, 0 $ 19 , 0 
0 0 0 
0 2 1,000 0 
0 0 0 
0 4),047 0 

1!8SS 1171860 11 11518 , 1,855 , 181,926 , 111,5\8 

$ 0 I 0 $ 0 
0 0 0 

492,673 33,283 6,004,965 
0 0 0 
0 0 0 , 492,673 $ 33,28] , 6.0041965 , 494,528 , 215,209 , 61116,483 
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Second 
Guaranteed 
Entitlement 

Bonds, 
Series 1996 

$ 0 
0 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 , 0 

, 0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 , 0 

I 0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

$ 0 

I 0 

B-1 
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Cae/tal ProiecfS 

General 
Government 

Facilities 

$ 3,577,689 
0 

1,514 
0 
0 

6,176 
0 
0 
0 
0 

$ 3,5851379 

, 21,853 
0 
0 

211,930 
0 
0 

$ 233,783 

, 0 
0 

0 
0 

3
1
351,596 

$ 3,35 1,596 

$ 3,585,379 
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BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

ASSETS 

Cuh 
Cash with escrow and paying agent 
Receivables (net of allowance for 

uncollcclibles): 
Accounts 
Taxes 
Assessments 
Accrued interest 

Due from other funds 
Due from other governmental units 
Inventory of supplies 
Advances 10 other funds 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities: 
Voucbers and contracts payable 
Accrued wages and benefits payable 
Due to other funds 
Due 10 other governmental units 
Advances from other funds 
Deferred revenue 

Total liabilities 

Fund balances: 
Reserved for: 

Debl service 
Inventory 

Unreserved, reported in: 
Debt Service funds 
Special Revenue funds 
Capilal Project funds 

Total fund balances 

Total liabilities and fund balances 

80 

Capital Projects 

Environmentally 
Endangered 

Land Purchases TOlol 

, 10,094,349 , 80,725,752 
0 5,2 13 

0 25 1,860 
0 349,696 
0 186,988 

18,423 131,336 
0 586,506 

542,662 2,085,689 
0 2,308, 115 
0 379,525 , 10,655,434 , 87,010,680 

, 63,688 , 3,220,448 
0 490,693 
0 555,223 
0 337.217 
0 277,21 1 

5421662 1,4471216 , 606,350 , 6,328,008 

, 0 , 707,000 
0 2,308,115 

0 6,943,666 
0 57,323,211 

1°1049,084 13,4001680 , 10,0491°84 , 80,682
1
672 , 10,655,434 , 87,010,680 



BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 

B-2 
I OF7 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTE!vIBER 30, 2010 

Special Revenue 

Recreation Brevard CQllnl)' 
Du/riel JV Free Public 
Operalin&. Libraz. Dis/riel 

REVENUES 
Taxes S 1,3 10,202 S 14,402,547 
Pennits, fees and special assessments 0 66,332 
Intergovernmental revenues 0 0 
Charges for services 259,311 0 
F'ines and forfeits 0 635,894 
Miscellaneous revenues 108,191 224,070 

Total revenues S 1,6771704 S 15,328,843 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

General government $ 0 S 0 
Public safety 0 0 
Physical environment 0 0 
Transportation 0 0 
Economic environment 0 0 
Human services 0 0 
Culture and recreation 4,436,529 13,874,953 

Intergovernmental 0 0 
Capital outlay 0 0 
Debt service: 

Principal 0 0 
Interest 0 0 

Total expenditures S 4,436
1
529 S 13 18741953 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures S {2z758,825~ S 1,453,890 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
AND (USES) 
Transfers in S 2,439,532 $ 334,812 
Transfers out (100,485) (2,378,701) 
Proceeds oflhe sale of capilal assets 2,169 1,509 
Insurance proceeds 0 0 
Refunding bonds issued 0 0 
Bond refunding payment 0 0 

TOlal olher financin g sources 
and uses $ 2,341,216 S !2,042,380~ 

Net change in fund balances S (4 17,609) S (588,490) 

Fund balances· beginning 991,598 3,657,023 
Increase (decrease) in reselVe for 

inventory ofsuppJies 4z750 0 
Fund balances · ending S 578,739 S 3,068,533 
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BREVARD COUNTY, FLORlDA 

COMBrNING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITIJRES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 20 10 

REVENUES 
Taxes 
Pennils, fees and special assessments 
Intergovernmental revenues 
Charges for services 
Fines and forfeits 
Miscellaneous revenues 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

General government 
Public safety 
Physical environment 
Transportation 
Economic environment 
Hwnan services 
Culture and recreation 

Intergovernmental 
Capital outlay 
Debt service: 

Principal 
Interest 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
AND (USES) 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 
Proceeds of the sale of capital assets 
Insurance proceeds 
Refunding bonds issued 
Bond refunding payment 

Total other financing sources 
and uses 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances - beginning 
Increase (decrease) in reserve for 

inventory of supplies 

Fund balances - ending 

82 

Special Revenue 

Br.~V(lrd CQunty 

Mruquilo 
Control 
District 

, 

s 

$ 

, 
$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

5,182,052 
o 
o 

44 
o 

118,250 

5,300,346 

o 
o 

282,862 
o 
o 

4,725, 110 
o 
o 
o 

o 
o 

5,007,972 

292,374 

96,684 
(203,556) 

8,130 
o 
o 
o 

(98,742) 

193,632 

5,356,677 

695,959 

6,246,268 

, 

$ 

$ 

, 
$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

~cial Road 
And Bridge 

Dis/rielS 

4,006,873 
0 
0 

97,685 
0 

132,063 

4,236,621 

0 
0 
0 

5,458,393 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

8 1,000 
91916 

5
1
549,309 

( I ,312
1
688) 

38,546 
(147,310) 

1 ,2~ 
0 
0 
0 

~107,564 ~ 

(J ,420,252) 

6,553,970 

3,825 

5,137,543 
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Special Revenue 

Rtc1'tOlion Special Law Tourist Sur/OCt Walrr 
MiJc,!lIQlltolU District J En/orr,,,,e,,, Devtlopmt l1l fmpr~mefll 

Finu MS]'U Distriel T~ Division 

, 0 $ 2,344,398 $ 14,130,914 $ 7,925,866 , 0 
0 0 0 0 3,259,223 
0 79 1,911 492,956 88,913 10. ,924 

3,682,40.1 20.8,500 4,384,985 0 62,132 
1,4 18,965 0 0 0 0 

813,833 ) 13,774 10810.11 188,684 208,87 1 

$ 5,9 15, 199 $ 3,658,583 $ 19,1 16,866 , 8,20.3,463 $ 3,60 1,1 50 

$ 4,920.,623 $ 0 , 0 , 0 , 0 
1,985,235 0 18,0.77,461 0 0 

)50.,000 0 0 3,143,246 3,2)0,614 
0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 4,411,457 0 
0 0 0 0 0 
0 6,723,483 0 733,885 0 
0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 

0 180,000 0 0 0 
0 89' 0 0 0 , ',255,858 $ 6,904,377 $ 18,0.77,461 , 8,288,588 $ 3,230.,674 

$ (1,)40.,659) , (3.245,794) $ 1,0.39,40.5 , (8S,125) $ 370.,476 

$ 2,0.15,971 $ 4,168,770. , 10.5,860 $ 2,775 $ 7,150 
(966,433) (38 J ,839) (571 ,658) (1,0.89,204) (416,476) 

0 7,098 73,963 0 0 
0 25,499 0 0 0 
0 0 0 O · 0 
0 0 0 0 0 

$ 1,049,538 $ 3,819,528 $ (391,83S~ , 
~11086,429l $ 1409.326! 

$ (29 1,12 1) , 573,734 , 647,570 , (1 ,171 ,554) $ (38,850) 

4,476,209 3,753,724 1,669,692 14,462,144 9,456,748 

51°58 ' 51722~ 0 ,818741 0 
$ 4,1901146 , 41321 1736 , 2,317,262 S 13.2811716 $ 9,4 17,898 
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BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

84 



Se.ecio! Revenue 

BrO'{lrd COlini)' EdlJCQtit:Hf EnvirontrrVllaJly 
Building CoM impoc' Endanglred 

ComplilJMf' Fen LAnd ProgrQIf/ 

, 12,435 S 0 S 2,059,500 
1,734,500 4,069,3 19 0 

0 0 0 
8,456 0 8 

11,308 0 0 
27,243 90,001 32,357 

S 1,793,942 $ 4,159,320 $ 2,09 1,865 

S 0 $ 0 $ 0 
1,794,155 0 0 

0 0 2,622,888 
0 0 0 
0 0 0 
0 0 0 
0 0 0 
0 9,200,959 0 
0 0 0 

81 ,468 0 0 
2,492 0 0 

$ 1,878, 11 5 $ 9,200,959 $ 2,622,888 

$ (84,173) $ (5,04 1,6)9) S (53 1,023) 

$ 266,021 $ 0 $ 21,043 
0 (207,034) 0 
) 0 3,472 
0 0 1,405 
0 0 0 
0 0 0 

$ 266,024 $ {207,0J4~ $ 25,920 

$ 181 ,85 1 $ (5,248,673) $ (505,103) 

24,025 9,267,438 1,979,044 

0 0 2,862 

$ 205!876 $ 4,018.765 $ 1,476,803 

85 

Ru«ds 
M<'Kkmir.atlon 

T~' 

S 0 
0 
0 

877,49] 
667,197 

23,266 

S 1,567,956 

$ 1,628,296 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

0 
0 

$ 1,628,296 

$ (60,340) 

$ 51,000 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

$ 51,000 

$ (9,)40) 

637,697 

0 

$ 628,357 

B-2 
SOF7 

Deb/ Service 
Tourlsl 

lk~/opmt!nl 

TtuR~""f' 
Refunding Bonds, 

& rful001 

S 0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

IS,033 

$ 18,033 

$ 0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

655,000 
108,430 

$ 763,430 

$ (745,397) 

$ 763,130 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

$ 763,130 

$ 17,733 

1,102,0 12 

0 
$ 1, 119,745 
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BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 

COMB INING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

NONMA10RGOVE~~TAL FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER )0, 2010 

Debt Service 

SaltS Tax CQmIMrciDl 

Rtwnllt Pop<' 

.""" NOlt 

REVENUES 
Taxes $ 222,467 $ 0 
Permits, fees and special assessments 0 46,056 
Intergovernmental revenues 0 0 
Charges for services 0 0 
Fines and forfeits 0 0 
Miscellaneous revenues 2,061 8,168 

Total revenues $ 224,528 $ 54,224 

EX PENDITURES 
Current: 

General government $ 0 $ 0 
Public safety 0 0 
Physical environment 0 0 
Transportation 0 0 
Economic environment 0 0 
Human services 0 0 
Culture and recreation 0 0 

Intergovernmcmal 0 0 
Capital outlay 0 0 
Debt service: 

Principal 5,964,080 602,000 
Interest ' ,937,162 68,725 

Total expenditures $ 7,90 1,242 $ 670,725 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures $ F,676171"'~ $ (616,50Il 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
AND (USES) 
Transfers in $ 7,945,346 $ 591 ,208 
Transfers OUI (30,288) 0 
Proceeds of Ihe sale of capilal asselS 0 0 
Insurance proceeds 0 0 
Refunding bonds issued 3,897,816 0 
Bond refunding payment ~3188o,6781 0 

Total other fmancing sources 
and uses $ 7!9321196 S 591,208 

Nel change in fund balances $ 255,482 $ (25,293) 

Fund balances - beginning 237, 191 58,576 
Increase (decrease) in reserve for 

inventory of supplies 0 0 
Fund balances - ending $ 492,673 $ 33,283 

86 
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Debt Service C~ftol Projects 

"'"." GUQronlttd 

Limiud Enli(/emel1l Gt~r(ll £,ny"rotInItnlally 

Ad V"lortm Bomb, G~rflmtnl uuulfIgertd 
Tar BONis ~rit1l996 FClci/iI,'ts LDnd Purchans TOigi 

, 15,73 1,909 , 157,1 46 S 0 S 0 , 61,486,309 
0 0 0 0 9,175,430 
0 0 0 0 1,576,217 
0 0 0 0 9,581,0 15 
0 0 0 0 2,733 ,364 

213,882 0 66,655 1,199,492 4,084,092 

S 15,945,'91 S 1$7,)46 S 66,655 S 1, 199,492 , 94,636,427 

S 0 S 0 S 0 S 0 , 6,548,919 
0 0 0 0 21,856,851 
0 0 0 0 9,629,670 
0 0 0 0 5,458,393 
0 0 0 0 6,163,20] 
0 0 0 0 4,725,1 10 
0 0 0 0 25,768,850 
0 0 0 0 9,200,959 
0 0 822,883 2,631,997 3,454,880 

13 ,265,000 625,000 0 0 2 1,453,548 
' ,919,108 6 1,973 0 0 10, 108,700 

S 21 ,184,108 S 686,973 S 822,883 , 2,63 1,997 , 124,369,083 

S (5,23 8,3 17) S (529,821) S (756,228) S (1,"432,505) , (29,'32,656) 

S 163,5 14 S 0 S 0 S 0 19,214,435 
( 1,398,645) (296,971 ) (299,500) 0 (8,748,543) 

0 0 0 0 97,544 
0 0 0 0 26,904 
0 0 0 0 3,891,816 
0 0 0 0 (3.880,678) 

S {lz23S!13 I ~ , ,296 j
911 l S {299 j 500} , 0 , 10,661,418 

S (6,473,448) S (826,798) , ( 1,055,728) S (1,432,505) , (19,065, 178) 

12,418,413 826,798 4,407,324 11 ,48 1,589 99,049,992 

0 0 0 0 697,858 

S 6,004,965 , 0 S 3,351,596 S 10,049,084 , 80,682,612 
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BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 

RECREATION DISTRICT IV OPERATING SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

SCHEDUlE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES· BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR TIlE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

Jlariance with 
Final final budget. 

Budgeted Positive 
Amounfl Actual Amoun! f!!.eg,ativel 

REVENUES 
Taxes S 1,435,038 S 1,3 10,202 S (124,836) 
Intergovernmental revenues 94,808 0 (94,808) 
Cbarges for services 308,528 259,3 11 (49,217) 

Miscellaneous revenues 175,000 108,191 (66.809) 

Total revenues , 2,013,374 S 116771704 S ~33S,670~ 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Culture and recreation S 5,2 17,4\0 S 4,436,529 $ 780,88 1 

Deficiency of revenues 
under expenditures S (3,204,.036) S (2,758,825) S 445,211 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
AND (USES) 
Transfers in $ 2,428,180 S 2,439,532 S 11 ,352 

Transfers out (115,103) ( 100,485) 14,618 

Proceeds of the sale of capital assets 0 2, 169 2, 169 

Insurance proceeds 14,818 0 (14,818) 

Total other fmancing sources 
and uses S 2,327,895 S 2,341,216 S 13,32 1 

Net change in fund balances S (876, )41 ) S (4 17,609) S 458,532 

Fund balances· beginning 991 ,598 991,598 0 
Increase in reserve for 

inventory of supplies 0 4,750 4,750 

Fund balances· ending $ 11 5,457 S 5781739 S 463,282 
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BREVARD COUNTY. FLORlDA 

BREVARD COUNTY FREE PUBLIC LIBRARY D1SnuCT 

SCHEDULE OF REVEh'\JES, EXPENDIllJRES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACT1JAL 

FOR 11-1£ YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

Variance with 
Final final budget-

Budgeted Positive 
Amounts Actual Amounl (Negativel 

REVENUES 
Taxes , 15,199,671 $ 14,402,547 $ (797. 124) 

Pennits, fees Bnd special assessments 75,135 66,332 (8,803) 
Fines and forfeits 535,224 635,894 100,670 

Miscellaneous revenues 348,500 224,070 ~ I 24,430} 

Total revenues , 16,158,530 , 15,328,843 $ ~829,687~ 

EXPENDITIJRES 
Current: 

Culture and recreation $ 15,744,063 $ 13,874,953 , 1,869,110 

Excess ofrevenue$ 
over expenditures , 414,461 $ 1,453,890 $ 1,039,423 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
AND (USES) 
Transfers in S 80,000 , 334,8 12 $ 254,812 
Transfers out (2,4 16.618) (2,378,701 ) )7,977 

P!'oceeds of the sale of capital assets 0 1,509 1,509 

TOlal other rmancing sour<:cs 
and uses $ (2,336,678) $ (2,042,380) $ 294,298 

Nct change in fund balances S (1,922,21 1) $ (588,490) , 1,333,721 

Fund balanccs • beginning 31657,023 3,657,023 0 

Food balances· ending , 1,734,8 12 $ 3,0681533 , 1,333,72 1 
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BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 

BREVARD COUNTY MOSQUITO CONTROL DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITI/RES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES· BUDGET AND ACTIJAL 

FOR 1l!E YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER )0, 2010 

, 
/lorionce with 

Final final budget-
Budgeted Positive 
Amounts Actual Amount (!!,.eg,a1ivel 

REVENUES 
Taxes , 5,556,118 , 5,182,052 , (314, 126) 

Intergovernmental revenues 250,000 0 (25a,OOO) 
Charges for services 0 44 44 
Miscellaneous revenues 299,5 80 1181250 {18 \ ,330} 

Total revenues , 6.1051'58 , 513001346 , {80 Sz4 12} 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Physical environment , 328,387 , 282,862 , 45 ,525 

Hwnan services 8,038,757 4,725,110 3,3 13,647 
.' 

Total expenditwes , 8,36',144 , 5,007,972 $ 3,359,17.2 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (Wlder) expenditures $ {2z261 z386l $ 2921374 , 215531760 

OTHER FINANCfNG SOURCES 
AND (USES) 
Transfers in , 32,000 $ 96,684 , 64,684 
Transfers oul (214,580) (203 ,556) 11,024 
Proceeds of the sale of capital assets 0 81110 8, 110 

Total other fmancing sources 
and uses , ( 182,580) , (98,742) , 81,838 

Net change in fund balances , (2,443,966) , 191,632 , 2,63 7,598 

Fund balances· beginning 5,356,677 5,156,677 0 
Increase in reserve for 

invenlory of supplies 0 6951959 6951959 

Fund balances· ending $ 2,9 12,711 , - 6,246,268 , 3,331,557 
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BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 

SPECIAL ROAD AND BRIDGE D1SllUCTS 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN F~ BALANCES· BUDGET AND AcnrAL 

FOR TIiE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

Variance with 
Final final budget . 

Budgeted Positive 
AmQunts Actual Amouni (N~alwel 

REVENUES 
Taxes , 4,233,6 14 S 4,006,873 S (226,741) 

Charges for services 0 97,685 97,685 

Miscellaneous revenues 56,482 132,063 7S,5gl 

Total revenues , 4,290,096 S 4,236,62 1 S {S3z475~ 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Transponation S 9,394,993 S 5,458,393 , 3,936,600 

Debt service: 
Principal 112,000 81,000 31,000 

Interest 40,000 9,916 30,084 

Total expenditures S 9,546,993 S 5,549,309 S 3,997,684 

Deficiency of revenues 
under expendifW'es S (5,256,897) S ( I ,312,688) S 3,944,209 

OTHER FlNANCrNG SOURCES 
AND (USES) 
Transfers in S 12,500 S 38,546 S 26,046 

Transfen out (2 11 ,300) (147,310) 63,990 

Proceeds of the sale of capital assets 0 1,200 1,200 

Total other fmancing sources 
and uses S ( 198,800) S (107,564) S 91,236 

Net change in fund balances S (5,455,697) S (1,420,252) S 4,035,445 

Fund balances· begiMing 6,553,970 6,553,970 0 
Increase in reserve for 

inventory of supplies 0 3,825 3,825 

Fund balances · ending S 1,098,273 S 5,1371543 S 41°39,270 
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BREVARD COUNn', FLORIDA 

MISCELLANEOUS FINES 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITIJRES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND AcruAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

Variance with 
Final /inal budget -

Budgeted Positfl'e 
Amounts AClUal Amount (Nez.ative2 

REVENUES 
Charges for services S ),995,148 S 3,682,401 S (312,747) 
Fines and forfeits 945,739 1,418,965 473,226 
Miscellaneous revenues 1,050,407 813,833 !236,5741 

Total revenues S 5!991,294 S 5,915,199 $ F6,095 l 
EXPENDITURES 

Current: 
General government S 5,635,682 S 4,920,623 $ 715,059 
Public safety 2,778,217 1,985,235 792,982 
Physical environment 818,824 350,000 468,824 

Total expenditures S 9,232,723 S 7,2551858 S 1,976,865 

Deficiency of revenues 
under expenditures S i3,24 1,4291 s {'1340,659l s 1,900,770 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
AND (USES) 
Transfers in S 2,231,086 S 2,015,971 , (215,115) 
Transfers out {966,433~ {966,433~ 0 

Total other fmancing sources 
and uses S 1,264,653 $ 1,049,538 , 

~21511 1 5~ 

Net change in fund balances , (1,976,776) S (291,121) , 1,685,655 

Fund balances - beginning 4,476,209 4,476,209 0 
Increase in reserve for 

inventory of supplies 0 5,058 5,058 

Fund balances - ending $ 2,499,433 S 4
1
190,146 S 1,690,713 
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BREVARD CDUNn', FLORIDA 

RECREATION DlSnuCf I M.S.T.U. 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDlltIRES, AND CHANGES IN fUND BALANCES· BUDGET AND ACTIJAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER·JO. 2010 

Variance with 
Final final budget-

Budgeted Positive 
Amounts Actual Amount (Ne&otivel 

REVENUES 
Taxes S 2,529,983 S 2,344,]98 S (185,585) 
Intergovernmental revenues 139,146 791 ,91 1 652,765 
Charges for services 273,118 208,500 (64,618) 
Miscellaneous revenues 335,105 3131774 ~21133 Q 

Total revenues S 3,277,352 S 316581583 $ 381,23 1 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Culture and recreat ion $ 7,956,261 S 6,723,483 $ 1,232,778 
Debt service: 

Principal 180,000 180,000 0 
Interest 8,061 894 7, 173 

Total expenditures S 8,144,328 $ 6z904z377 S \ ,239
1
95 1 

DefiCiency of revenues 
under expenditures S (4,866,976l S p ,24S.794l $ 1,62 I z182 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
AND (USES) 
Transfers in S 4, 149,915 S 4,1 68,770 S 18,855 
Transfers out (475 ,039) (381,839) 93,200 
Proceeds of the sale of capital assets 300 7,098 6,798 
Insurance proceeds 26:841 251499 {I,3422 

Total other financing sources 
and uses S 3,702,017 S 3,8 19:528 S 11 7:5 11 

Net change in fund balances $ (1,164,959) S 573,734 S 1,73 8,693 

Fund balances· beginning 3,753,724 3,753,724 0 
Decrease in reserve for ,. 

inventory of supplies 0 {5,722l {5,7222 
Fund balances· ending $ 2,588,765 ,. 4132 1:736 $ 1,732,971 
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BREVARD COUNTY. FLORIDA 

SPECIAL LAW ENFORCEMENT D1SllUCT 

SCHEDUL.E OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGE~ IN FUND BALANCES· BUDGET AND ACIl.JAL 

FOR niE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 20 10 

Variance with 
Final final budget-

Budgeted Positive 
Amount.s Actual Amount f.!!.e&,olivel 

REVENUES 
Taxes S 14,8 I S,1S9 S 14,130,9 14 $ (684,275) 
Intergovernmental revenues 503,292 492,956 (10,336) 
Charges for services 8,968,43 1 4,384,985 (4,583,446) 
Miscellaneous revenues 48,484 108,011 59,527 

TOlal revenues $ 24,335,396 $ 191116,866 $ 1-5121815)02 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Public safety , 24,2321°73 S 181°77/46 1 S 6, 154,612 

Excess of revenues 
over expenditures , 103,323 $ J,0391405 S 936,082 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
AND (USES) 
Transfers in $ 0 $ 105,860 $ 105 ,860 
Transfers out (55 I ,075) (57 1,658) (20,58]) 
Proceeds oflhe sale of capital assets 46

1
060 731963 27,903 

TOlal other fmancing sources 

",d """ $ !SOSIOIS~ $ p91183S~ $ I13z180 

Net change in fund balances $ (401,692) $ 647,570 $ 1,049,262 

Fund balances· beginning 1,669,692 1,669z692 0 

Fund balances· ending S 1,268,000 $ 2,317,262 S 1,049,262 
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BREVARDCOVNTY, FLORIDA 

TOURIST DEVELOPMENT TAX 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDll1.IRES. AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES · BUDGET AND AcnJAL 

FOR lliE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

Variance with 
Final final budget-

Budgeted Positil'e 
AmolllllS Actual Amount (Ne&otivel 

REVENUES 
Taxes S 7,693,667 S 7,925,866 S 232,199 
Intergovernmental revenues 0 88,913 88,9 13 
Miscellaneous revenues 285,150 188!684 ,96 t4661 

Total revenues S 7,978,817 S 8.2031463 S 224,646 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Physical environment S 7,975,94 1 S 3,143,246 S 4,832,695 
Economic environment 5,573,249 4,411,457 1,161,792 
Culture and recreation 4,588,131 733,885 3,854,246 

Total expenditures S 18,137,32 1 S 8,288,588 S 9,848,733 

Deficiency of revenues 
under expenditures S ( IO, IS8,S04) , (85,125) S 10,073,379 

OTHER FINANCfNG SOURCES 
AND (USES) 
Transfers in , 0 , 2,775 , 2,775 
Transfers oul (1,120,701~ ~1 ,O89,204~ 31,497 

Total other fUlancing sources 
and uses S (1,120,701) S ( 1,086,429) S 34,272 

Nel change in fund balances S (11,279,205) S ( 1,171,554) S 10, 107,651 

Fund balances· beginning 14,462,144 14,462,144 0 
Decrease in reserve for 

invenlory ofsupplies 0 {8,874l ~8,874l 

Fund balances · cnding S 3,182,939 , 13,281,716 S 10,098,777 
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BREVARD CDUNn', FLORJDA 

SURFACE WATER IMPROVEMENT DIVISION 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDI11JRES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND AcnJAL 

FOR TIlE'YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 20 10 

. Variance with 
Final final budget-

Budge/ed Positive 
Amounts Actllol Amount (NegQlivel 

REVENUES 
Pcnnits, fees and special assessments S ),343,812 . S· 3,259,223 S (34,589) 
Intergovernmental revenues 0 70,924 70,924 
Charges for services 49,629 62,132 12,503 
Miscellaneous revenues 128[746 208,87 1 80,125 

Total revenues , 3/522, 187 , 316011150 , 781963 

EXPENDITURES 
CUlTcn!: 

Ph'ysicai cnvirorunenl S 12:394,300 S 3123°1674 S 9,1631626 

Excess (deficiency) ofrevenucs 
over (under) expenditures S ,S I S72l l'll} S 37°1476 S 9,242,589 

OTHER FlNANCING SOURCES 
AND (USES) 
Transfers in S 0 S 7, ISO S 7, 150 
Transfers oul (441 , 1 86~ {4 16,416l 24,710 

Total other financing sources 
and uses I ~44 1,186~ I ~4091126l S 31,860 

Net change in fund balances S (9,3 13,299) S (38,850) $ 9,274,449 

Fund balances· beginning 9,456,748 9,4561748 0 

Fund balances · ending S 143,449 S 9,417,898 $ 9,274,449 
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BREVARD COUNfY. fLORIDA 

STATE HOUSING INITIATIVE PARTNERSHIP 

C-I 
IOOF IS 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDrruRES, AND CHANGES TN FUND BALANCES· BUDGET AND ACJ1JAL 

FOR lHE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

REVENUES 
Intergovernmental revenues 
Miscellaneous revenues 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Economic environment 

Deficiency of revenues 
under expenditures 

OTI-lER FINANCING SOURCES 
Transfers in 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances· beginning 

Fund balances· end ing 

S 

S 

S 

S 

S 

S 

S 

Final 
Budgeted 
Amounu 

2,296,330 
65,000 

2,361,330 

7,291,169 

(4,929,839) 

0 

(4,929,839) 

51911,657 

981,818 

97 

Variance with 
final budget-

Positive 
Actual Amount (Negative) 

S \3 1,513 S (2,164,8 17) 
187~187 122!187 

S 318,100 $ (2,042,630) 

S 1,751,146 $ 5,539,423 

S (1,433,046) $ 3,496,793 

S 263,073 $ 2631°73 

S ( 1,169,973) S 3,759,866 

519 11 ,657 0 

S 4,74 1,684 S 3,759,866 
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BREVARD COUNn', FLORIDA 

HURRICANE HOUSING RECOVERY PROGRAM 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDlllJRES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES· BUDGET At:JD ACTUAL 

FOR llfE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER lO, 2010 

OTHER FINANCING USES 
Transfers oul 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances· beginning 

Fund balances· ending 

S 

, 

$ 

Final 
Budge/ed 
Amounts 

0 

0 

260,443 

26°1443 

98 

Variance with 
final budget. 

Positive 
Actual Amounl (Negative) 

$ (260,443) S (260,443) 

$ (260,443) $ (260,443) 

260,443 0 

$ o· $ {260t
4431 
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BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 

BREVARD COUNTY BUILDING CODE COMPLIANCE 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR TIlE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

Variance with 
Final final budget-

Budgeted Positive 
Amounts Actual Amount (Nes.ativel 

REVENUES 
Taxes $ 16,800 $ 12,435 $ (4,365) 
Permits, fees and special assessments 1.756,125 1,134,500 (21,625) 
Charges for services 4,200 8,456 4,256 
Fines and forfeits 21,000 11,308 (9,692) 
Miscellaneous revenues 42,000 271243 {14.757} 

Total revenues $ 1,84°1125 $ 1,793,942 $ {46,183~ 

EXPENDITIJRES 
Curren!: 

Public safety $ 1,960,881 $ 1,794,155 $ 166,726 
Debt service: 

Principal 81,469 81,468 , 
Interest 14!203 2,492 11,711 

Total expendituIes $ 2!056,553 $ 11878 1115 $ 178,438 

Deficienc), of revenues 
under expenditures $ ~2161428~ $ (M,173} $ 132,255 

OTHER FINANCfNG SOURCES 
Transfers in $ 246,965 $ 266,021 $ 19,056 
Proceeds of me sale of capital assets 0 3 3 

Total othcr fmancing sources S 246!965 $ 266,024 $ 19,059 

Net change in fund balances S )0,5)7 $ ISI,S51 $ 151,314 

Fund balances - beginning 24!025 24,025 0 

Fund balances - ending $ 54,562 $ 205,876 $ 151-,314 
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BREVARD COUNTY. FLORIDA 

EOUCA nON IMPACT FEES 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDlTIJRES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES· BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

Variance with 
Final final budget. 

Budgeted Positive 
AmQji.nl$ Actual Amount (!!egptive2 

REVENUES 
Penn its, fees and special assessments , 4,213,026 , 4,069,3 19 , (143,701) 
Miscellaneous revenues I09z5oo 901001 {19,499} 

Total revenues , 9 22,526 S ' 4,159,320 S {163,206l 
EXPENDITURES 

Intergovernmental S 13,321,099 , 9,200,959 S 4,120,140 
Debt service: 

Principal 172,500 0 172,500 

Total expenditures S 13,493
1
599 , 9,200,959 S 412921640 

Deficiency of revenues 
under expendirwes , {9!171 ,O732 S {Sz04 I,6392 , 4,129,434 

OTHER FINANCING USES 
Transfers out , (210,652) S (207,034) , 3,618 

Nel change in fund balances , (9,38 1,725) S (5,248,67]) S 4, 133,052 

Fund balances· beginning 9,267,438 9,2671438 0 

Fund balances - ending S {I 14.2872 S 4,0181765 S 4,133,052 
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BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 

ENVIRONMENTALLY ENDANGERED LAND PROGRAM 

C-l 
140F IS' 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITIJRES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES· BUDGET AND ACl1JAL 

FOR l1iE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

Variance with 
Final firwl budgel -

Budgeted Positive 
Amounu A crua} A mOU/1t (!!"e&olivel 

REVENUES 
Taxes S 2,247,876 S 2,059,500 S (188,376) 
Charges for services 0 8 8 
Miscellaneous revenues 2°1°28 32,357 12!329 

Total revenues $ 2,267
1
904 S 21091 1865 S {176,O39~ 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Physical environment S 4, 1281426 S 2!6221888 S 1,5051538 

Deficiency of revenues 
under expenditures S {1,860,S22~ S { S31,023~ $ 113291499 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Transfers in S 0 S 21,043 S 21,043 
Proceeds of the sale of capital assets 0 3,472 3,472 
Insurance proceeds 0 1,405 11405 

Total other financing sources S 0 S 251920 S 251920 

Net change in fund balances S ( 1,860,522) S (505, 103) S 1,355,4 19 

Fund balances - beginning 1,979,044 1,979,044 0 
Increase in reserve for 

inventory o f supplies 0 2 t862 2z862 

Fund balances· ending S 118,522 , 1!476,803 S 1,358,281 
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BREVARD COUNTY, FLORlDA 

RECORDS MODERNlZA nON TRUST 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES TN FUND BALANCES· BUDGET AND AcnJAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

Variance with 
Final final budget-

Budgeted Posit;ve 
Amounts AUUDf AmoulII f!:!.e8,atiwl 

REVENUES 
Charges for services $ 1,727,%6 $ 877,493 $ (850,473) 
Fines and forfeits 0 667,197 667,197 
Misccllaneous revenues 321455 23 1266 ~91 1 89l 

Total revenues $ 1,760,421 $ 1,5671956 S {192,46S! 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

General government S ],630,800 $ 1,628,296 S 2,504 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expendirures $ 129,62 1 $ {60,]4Ol s {189,96 Il 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Transfers in S 82,455 _$_ 511000 $ Pl 14SSl 

Ntl change in fund balances $ 212,076 $ (9,340) . $ (221,416) 

Fund balances· beginning 6371697 6311697 0 

Fund balances· ending S 849,773 $ 628,357 $ {221,4 16l 
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BREVARD COUNTY, FLORJDA 

TOURIST DEVELOPMENT TAX REVENUE REfUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2001 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

Variance with 
Final final budgel' 

Budgeted Positive 
Amounts Actual Amount (Negative) 

REVENUES 
Miscellaneous revenues I 20 tooO $ 18,033 $ (1,967) 

EXPENOlTURES 
Debl service: 

Principal , 655,000 $ 655,000 $ 0 
Interest 108,4)0 108,430 0 

Total expenditures , 763,4)0 $ 763,430 $ 0 

Deficiency ofrevenues 
under expendirures $ ~743t430~ $ (745,397) $ ( 1,967) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Transfers in , 763,130 $ 763,130 I 0 

Nel change in fund balances I 19,100 $ 17,733 S (J,967) 

Fund balances - beginning 1,102,012 11102,012 0 

Fund balances · ending $ 1,121,712 I 1,1 19,745 S (1,9672 
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BREVARD COUNn', FLORIDA 

SALES TAX REVENUE BONDS 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER )0, 2010 

Variance with 
Final final budget-

Budgeted Posiliye 
Amounts Actual Amount (Negativel 

REVENUES 
Taxes $ 0 $ 222,467 $ 222,467 
Miscellaneous revenues $ 0 $ 2,061 $ 2,061 

Total revenues S 0 $ 224!528 S 224,528 

EXPENDITURES 
Debt service: 

Principal $ 5,964,080 $ 5,964,080 S 0 
Interest 1,937,827 1,937,162 665 

Total expenditures $ '1901 ,907 $ 7,901,242 $ 665 

Deficiency of revenues 
under expenditures $ p,901,9071 $ F,676,7J4~ $ 225,193 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
AND (USES) 

Transfers in S 7,678,776 S 1,945,346 S 266,570 
Transfers out 0 (30,288) (30,288) 
Refunding bonds issued 3,897,816 3,897,816 0 

Bond refunding payment {3,880,6781 p,880,6781 0 

Total other fInancing sources 
and uses $ 7,695

1
914 $ 7

1
932,196 $ 236,282 

Net change in fund balances $ (205,993) $ 255,482 , 46 1,475 

Fund balances - beginning 237,191 237,191 0 

Fund balances - ending , 31,198 , 492,673 , 46 1,475 
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BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 

COMMERCIAL PAPER NOTE 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND AcruAL 

fOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

Variance with 
Final final budget-

Budgeted Positive 
Amounts Actual Amount (Neg,ativel 

REVENUES 
Permits, fees and special assessments $ 78,558 $ 46,056 $ (32,502) 
Miscellaneous revenues 101970 81168 {21802~ 

Total revenues $ 89,528 $ 54,224 $ pS,304~ 

EXPENDlTURES 
Debt service: 

Principal $ 675,172 $ 602,000 $ 73,172 
.Interest 144,62) 681725 75!898 

Total expenditures $ 8191795 $ 670,725 $ 149,070 

Deficiency of revenues 
under expenditures $ {730,267l $ (616150 1! $ 1131'66 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Transfers in $ 685,528 $ 591 1208 $ {94,3201 
Net change in fund balances $ (44,739) $ (25,293) $ 19,446 

Fund balances - begiMing 581576 58,576 0 

Fund balances - ending $ 13,837 $ 33,283 $ 19,446 

• 
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BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 

LIMITED AD VALOREM TAX BONDS 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDlnJRES, AND CHANGES £N FUND BALANCES· BUDGET AND AcnJAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

Variance with 
Final final budget-

Budgeted Positive 
AmounlS Actllol Amount f!!.e&aJive2 

REVENUES 
Taxes , 16,479,557 , 15,731,909 , (747,648) 

Miscellaneous revenues 364!OOO 213~882 (ISO! II Sl 

TOlal revenues S 16,843,557 , 15,945,791 , (897,766) 

EXPENDITURES 
Debt service: 

Principal $ 13 ,265,000 , 13,265,000 S 0 
Interest 7,981,215 7.919,108 62,107 

Total expenditures $ 21,246,215 $ 21.184,108 $ 62,107 

Defi"icncy of revenues 
under expenditures $ (4,402,658) , (5,238,317) S (835,659) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
AND (USES) 

Transfers in $ 42,000 , 163,5 14 $ 121,5 14 
Transfers out ,1, 11 O,46 Il 11!398!64Sl ,288,J84} 

Total other financing sources 
and uses , 0,068,461) , (1,235, 131) , (166,670) 

Net change in fund balances , (5,471,119) , (6,473,448) , (1,002,329) 

Fund balances· beginning 12,478,413 12t478,413 0 

Fund balances· ending , 7,007)94 , 6tOO4,965 S {1,002,329l 
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BREYARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 

SECOND GUARANTEED ENTlTI..EMENT BONDS, SERIES 1996 

D·l 
SOFS 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 10, 2010 

REVENUES 
Taxes 
Miscellaneous revenues 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Debt service: 

Principal 
Interest 

Total expenditures 

Deficiency of revenues 
under expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING USES 
Transfers oul 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances - beginning 

Fund balances - ending 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Final 
Budgeted 
Amounts 

398,970 
16,000 

414,970 

625,000 
64,965 

689,965 

(274,995) 

{S9,185~ 

(334,180) 

826,798 

492,618 
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Variance with 
finol budget -

Posilive 
Actual Amount (Negative) 

$ 157,146 $ (24 1,824) 
0 '16,OOQ~ 

$ 157,146 $ (257,824) 

$ 625,000 $ 0 
61,973 2,992 

$ 686,973 $ 2,992 

, (529,827) , (254,832) 

$ (296,971) $ {237,7861 
$ (826,798) $ (492,618) 

826,798 0 
$ 0 $ { 492,6181 



E-J 
IOF 3 

BREVARD COUNTY, f LORIDA 

PARKS AND RECREATIONAL FACILITIES 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENOI11JRES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER ]0, 2010 

Varionce with 
Final final budget . 

Budgeted Positive 
AmounlS Actual Amounl' (Ne8.0tfve2 

REVENUES 
Intergovernmental revenues $ 1,893,625 $ 292,875 $ (1,600,750) 
Miscellaneous revenues 3, 125,793 1,486,433 (1 ,639,360) 

Total revenues $ 5,019,418 $ 1,779,308 $ (3 ,240,110) 

EXPENDITURES 
Capital outlay $ 64,756,345 $ 15,872,805 $ 48,883,540 

Deficienc), of revenues 
under e;1.pend irures $ (59,736,927) $ (14,093,497) $ 4 5,643,430 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
AND (USES) 
Transfers in $ 200,000 S 715,840 S 515,840 
Proceeds oflhc sale of capital assets 174,000 174,000 0 
Insurance proceeds 0 3,000 3,000 

TOlal other financing sources $ 374,000 $ 892,840 S 518,840 

Net change in fund balances S (59,362,927) $ (13,200,657) $ 46, 162,270 

Fund balances· beginning 591552.716 59,5521716 0 

Fund balances - ending $ 189,789 $ . 46,352,059 S 46!162,270 
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BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 

GENERAL GOVERNMENT FACILITIES 

E·I 
20F3 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES· BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR TIlE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER )0, 2010 

Jfarionce with 
Finol final budget . 

Budgeted Positive 
Amounts Actual Amount f!:!.fI&Olivel 

REVENUES 
Charges for services $ 103,606 S 0 $ (103,606) 
Miscellaneous revenues 149,617 661655 (82,962l 

Total revenues S 253,223 S 66:655 S ~\861568~ 

EXPENDITURES 
Capital outlay S 4,369,232 S 822,883 S 315461349 

Deficiency ofre vcnues 
under expenditures S (4,116!OO9l $ (756!228l $ 3!359178 1 

OTHER FINANCING USES 
Transfers oul S (299,500l s (2991SOOl s 0 

Net change in fund balances S (4,415,509) $ ( 1,055,728) S 3,359,781 

Fund balances - beginning 4,407,324 4
1
407

1
]24 0 

Fund balances - ending S ~8 , 18S~ S 3,35 1,596 S 3,]59,78 1 
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BREVARD COUNTY, Fl.ORlDA 

ENVIRONMENTALLY ENDANGERED LAND PURCHASES 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDlT1JRES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES· BUDGET AND ACllJAL 

FOR TIlE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER )0, 20 10 

Voriance with 
Final final budget-

Budgeted Positive 
AmQunts A ctual AmOWlt (Ncgotivel 

REVENUES 
Miscellaneous revenues , 1,0)7,547 , ' 11991492 , 16 1,945 

EXPENDITURES 
Capital outlay $ 12,533,787 . , 21631 1997 $ 919OI z790 

Deficienc), of revenues 
under expenditures $ {l l,496,24Ol $ ~ 1 ,432,50S~ , 10,063,735 

Net change in fund balances , (11 ,496,240) , (1 ,432,505) $ 10,063,735 

Fund balances · beginning 11,481,589 11 ,481 1589 0 

Fund balances· ending , ~14.65 1 ~ , 10,049,084 , 10,063,735 
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Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 

Solid Waste Collection Services Fund - to account for service charge revenues and expenses 
associated with the provision of solid waste collection and recycling programs within the 
unincorporated areas of Brevard County. 

Space Coast Area Transit Fund - to account for revenues and expenses associated with the 
provisio~ of mass transit services, including the transportation of the handicapped and elderly, as 
provided in Chapter 427, Florida Statutes. 

Brevard County Golf Courses Fund - to account for fees and expenses associated with the 
operation of Spessard Holland Golf Course, the Habitat Golf Course, and Savannahs at Sykes 
Creek Golf Course. 
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BREVARD COUNTY, FLORJDA 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

NONMAJOR PROPRJETARY FUNDS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

Businus-Q!e.1! 

Solid Waste Space Coast 
Coffection Area 
Services Transit 

ASSETS 
Curren! assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents S 1,821,951 S 1. 
Accounts receivable (net of allowance 

for uncollcclibles) 39,984 16,290 
Accrued interest receivable 13,492 • 
Due from other governmental units 863,362 1,057,186 
Inventories • • 

Total current assets $ 817381789 $ 1,073,546 

Noncurrent assets: 
Capilal assets: 

um' $ • S 228,520 
Buildings and structures • 1,891,46 1 
Improvements to land • • 
Improvements other than buildings • 12,0 14 
Machinery and equipment • 17,444,871 

Less accumulated depreciation • (13 ,6 19, 139) 
Construction in progress • 4,581 

Unamortiud debt issue costs • • 
Total noncurrent assets S • S 5,962,308 

Total assets S 817381789 S 7,035,854 

L1ABILITTES 
CUJTenlliabililies 

(payable from CUJTenI assets): 
Vouchers and contracts payable $ 975,OH S 647,648 
Due 10 other funds • 168,468 
Due 10 other governmental units • • 
AccnJed interest payable • • 
AccnJed compensated absences • 41,378 
Revenue bonds • • 
Capital leases payable • • 

Total current liabilities (payable from 
current assets) $ 975 t035 S 857

t
494 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Revenue bonds payable (net of 

unamortized discounts and deferred 
amount on refunding) $ • $ • 

Capital leases payable • • 
AccnJed compensated absences • 301,373 
Other postemployment benefits • 412,168 

Total noncurrent liabilities $ • S 7 13,54 1 

Total liabilities S 975,035 S 1,571,035 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in capilal assets, net of related debt $ • S 5,962,308 
Unrestricted 7t7631754 (497,489l 

Total net assets S 7,763,754 S 5,464,819 
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Activities· Entererise Funds 

Brevard County 
Golf 

Courses 

$ 1,179,196 

2,381 
2,018 

520,611 
107,605 

$ 1,811,811 

$ 1,943,379 
2,961,155 
7,837,002 

13 1,718 
932,060 

(7,040,696) 
0 

20,736 

$ 6,785,354 

$ 81597, 165 

$ 73,915 
0 

7,932 
64,128 
12,006 

494,120 
191,228 

$ 843,329 

$ 4,493,831 
307,7 18 

90,831 
52,674 

$ 41945,054 

$ 5,788,383 

, 1,277,721 
11531 1061 , 21808,782 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

, 
$ 

Total 

9,001 ,217 

58,655 
15,510 

2,441,159 
107,605 

11,624 ,146 

2,171,899 
4,852,6 16 
7,837,002 

143,732 
18,376,931 

(20,659,835) 
4,581 

20,736 

1217471662 

24137 11808 

1,696,598 
168,468 

7,932 
64,128 
53,384 

494,120 
191,228 

216751858 

4,493,831 
307,718 
392,204 
464,842 

5,658,595 

8,3341453 

7,240,029 
817971326 

16,037,355 
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BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS 

NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

Business-type 

Solid Waste Space Coast 
Collection Area 
Services Transit 

Operating revenues: 
Service fees $ 11,428,906 $ 1,287,257 
Less cost of goods sold 0 0 

Total operating revenues $ 11,428,906 $ 1,2871257 

Operat ing expenses: 
Wages and benefits $ 0 $ 4,698,509 
Repair, maintenance, and other services 11,390,330 4,138,956 
Materials and supplies 0 1,194,286 
Depreciation 0 1,688,830 

Total operating expenses $ 11,390,330 , 11 172°1581 
Operating income (Joss) $ 38,576 , ~ 1 0,4331)24l 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses): 
Income on investments $ 168,409 , 3,326 
Interest expense 0 0 
Miscellaneous revenue 149,501 4,965 
Grants and matChing funds 495,920 7,259,797 
Gain (loss) on disposal of capita l assets 0 46,358 
Amonization of debt issue costs 0 0 

Total nonoperating revenue (expense) $ 813,830 , 7,314,446 

Income (loss) before contributions 
and transfers $ 852,406 $ (3,118,878) 

Capital contributions 0 1,523,885 
Transfers in 0 1,448,310 
Transfers out {t55!0 1 4~ 0 

Change in net assets , 697,392 $ ( 146,683) 
Net assets - beginning 7,066!362 5,611,502 
Net assets - ending $ 7,763,754 $ 5!464,819 
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Activities· Enrererise Funds 

Brevard County 
Golf 

Courses 

$ 3,017,168 
{ 11 5,685~ 

$ 2,901,483 

$ 753,830 
2,3 11, 130 

27,900 
453,775 

$ 3,546,635 

$ (645, 152) 

$ 40,998 
(276,015) 

802 
37,589 

(218,1 17) 

~6p5~ 
$ (420z9 18} 

, (1,066,070) 
961 

1,066,499 
0 

$ 1,390 
2,807,392 , 2,808,782 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

, 
S 

, 
, 

Total 

15,733,331 
{115,685~ 

15,617,646 

5,452,339 
17,840,416 

1,222,186 
211421605 

261657z546 

( I I ,0391900) 

212,733 
(276,015) 
155,268 

7,793,306 
(171,759) 

{6,175} 
7

1
707,358 

(3,332,542) 
1,524,846 
2,514,809 
{155z014} 

552,099 

15,485,256 
16,037,355 
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BREVARD COUNTY, FLORlDA 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

NQNMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 20 10 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Cash receipts for service fees 
Cash receipts from other sources 
Cash payments to employees for services 
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services 

Net cash from operating activi ties 

Cash flows from noncapital fi nancing activit ies: 
Grant receipts 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 

Net cash flows from noncapitaJ fmancing activit ies 

Cash flows from capital and related financ ing act ivities: 
Debt proceeds 
Principal payments 
Interest payments 
Capital grant receipts 
Payments to acquire, construct, or improve capital assets 
Proceeds from disposal of capital assets 

Net cash flows from capital and related fmancing activilies 

Cash flows from investing aclivities: 
Interest on investments 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents, October I, 2009 
Cash and cash equivalents, September 30, 20 I 0 

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash flows from operating activi ties 

Operating income (loss) 
Adj ustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash from operating act ivities: 

Depreciation expense 
Miscellaneous re~enue 
Changes in assets and liabili ties: 

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 
(Increase) decrease in due from other governmental units 
(Increase) decrease in inventories 
Increase (decrease) in accrued compensated absences 
Increase (decrease) in other postemployment benefits 
Increase (decrease) in vouchers & contracts payable 
Increase (decrease) in due to other funds 
Increase (decrease) in due to other governmental units 

Total adjustment 
Net cash from opentting activities 
Non-cash investing, capital, and financing activities: 

Aquisition of capital assets through lease-purchase 

116 

NO/'Imojor 

Solid Waste 
Colleclion 
Services 

$ 11,44 1,211 
124,985 

0 
~1 1 ,04 51064l 

$ 521,1)2 

$ 740, 189 
0 

~155,01 4 2 
$ 585, 175 

$ 0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

$ 0 

$ 172,299 

$ 1,278,606 

61543,345 
$ 7,82 1,951 

$ 38,576 

$ 0 
149,501 

(1 1,982) 
312,466 

0 
0 
0 

32,571 
0 
0 

$ 482,556 
$ 52 1,132 

$ 0 



Business-'1.ee AClivi/itS - Entere.rise Funds 

Space Coast Brevard County 
Area Golf 

Transit Courses 

S 1,261,944 S 3,017,942 
73,429 0 

(4,706,132) (770,264) 

~S!269.010l (2,S8S,474l 
s (8,633,829) S (337,796) 

S 6,936,288 S 4J 
1,602,553 1,066,499 

0 0 

S 8,538,841 S 1,066,542 

S 0 S 2,889, 184 
0 (J,41S,198) 
0 (266,985) 

1,234,220 0 
(1,234,220) (12,1123) 

IOz612 494 

S 10,612 S (808,328) 

S 51748 S 20,659 
S (78,628) S (58,923) 

78,698 1,238,119 

S 70 S 1, 179,196 

S (\0,433,324) S (645,152) 

S 1,688,830 S 453,775 
4,965 802 

9, 100 ( 1,736) 
0 0 
0 5,354 

(23, 139) (12,532) 
49,557 3,181 
55,957 (138,650) 
14,225 0 

0 {2!838} 

S 117991495 S 307,356 

S (8,633,829) S (337,796l 

S 0 S 577,923 

S 

S 

S 

S 

S 

S 

S 
S 

S 

S 

S 

S 
S 

S 
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T%f 

15,727,097 
198,414 

(5,476,396) 

~18t8991608l 
(8,450,493) 

7,676,520 
2,669,052 
~I SS10 14l 

10,190,558 

2,889, 184 
(3,4 18, 198) 

(266,985) 
1,234,220 

( 1,247,043) 
II zI06 

(797,716) 

198,106 

1,14 1,055 

7,860,162 
9,00 1,211 

(1 1,039,900) 

2,1 42,605 
155,268 

(4,618) 
312,466 

5,354 
(35,67 1 ) 
52,738 

(50,122) 
14,225 
~2,838l 

2
1
589

1
407 

(8,450,493) 

577,92) 
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Internal Service Funds 

Information Systems Fund - to account for service charge revenues and expenses associated with 
the provision of data processing support. telephone and other communication equipment for the 
various departments and agencies of Brevard County. 

Risk Management Fund - to account for the premiums and claims associated with the provision of 
self-insured and fu lly insured programs for the v<¢ous departments and agencies of Brevard 
County. 
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BREVARD COUNTY, FLORlDA 

COMBrNrNG 5T ATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

SEPTEMBER 3D, 2010 

In/ormation Risk 
Systems M(V1Qgemenl Total 

ASSETS 
Cutrell! assets: 

Cosh , 1,445,249 , 42,007,905 , 43,453,154 
Cash with escrow and paying agent 0 1,221 ,000 1,221,000 
Accounts receivable 23,387 13,652 31,039 
Accrued inlerest receivable 2,839 76,637 79,416 

Due from other funds 0 19,000 19,000 
Due from other govenunental units 0 506,74 1 506,741 

Prepaid items 121722 112051158 1,21'z880 

T atal current assets , 1,484,197 , 45,050,093 , 46,534,290 

Noncurrent assets: 
Capital assets: 

Machinery and equipment , 5,289,993 , 102,836 , 5,392,829 
Less accumulated depreciation (4,036,743) (8 1,462) (4,118,205) 

Advances to other funds 0 37,647 37,647 
Total noncurrent assets , 1,2531250 , 59,021 , 1,312,271 

Total assets , 2,737,447 , 45.109, 114 , 47,846,56 1 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities: 

Vouchers and contracts payable , 78,157 , 1,598,287 , 1,676,444 
Claims payable 0 9,833,850 9,833,850 
Accrued compensated absences 27,781 12

1
488 40

1
269 

Total current liabilities , 105,938 , 11,444,625 , 11,550,563 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Claims payable , 0 , \ 1,101 ,981 , 11 ,101,98 1 
Accrued compensated absences 288,817 110,261 399,078 
Other postemployment benefits 121,522 71 1°22 192,544 

Total noncurrent liabilities , 410,339 , 11,2831264 , 11,693,603 

Total liabilities , 516,277 , 22,727,889 , 23,244,166 

NET ASSETS 
Invested in capital assets, net of re lated debt , , 21 ,374 , 1,274,624 
Unrestricted 221359185 1 2313271771 

Total net assets , 22,381 1225 , 24,602,395 
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BREVARD COUNTY. FLORIDA 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES fN FUND NET ASSETS 

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

Information Risk 
Systems Manas..ement Total 

Operating revenues: 
Service fees S 5,334, 146 S 55,666,404 S 61,000,550 

Operating expenses: 
Wages and benefits S 3,379,659 S 1,056,077 S 4,435,7)6 
Repair, maintenance, and other services 3,8]3,452 7,502,851 11,336,303 
Materials and supplies 10,890 21,725 )2,615 
Depreciat ion 671,755 8,587 680,342 
Insurance claims expense 0 5219031303 52,903,303 

Total operating expenses S 7,895,756 S 61,492,543 S 69c388,299 

Operating income ([oss) S (2,561.6101 s !S,826cI39l s ~8,3871749l 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses): 
Income on investments S 30,265 S 714,87) S 745,138 
Miscellaneous revenue 313,288 1, 180,387 1,493,675 
Loss on disposal of capital assets {5,410~ !'OO! {5,9 10~ 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) S 3]8, 14] S 1!8941760 S 2,2]2,903 

Loss before contributions and lraJisrers S (2,223,467) S (3,93 1,)79) S (6,154,846) 

Capital contributions l22 ],550 4,072 
Transfers in 1,04 1,406 0 1,04 1,406 
Transfers out {218 j420l (316241°561 P1842,4761 

Change in net assets S ( 1,399,959) S (7,55 I ,885) S (8,95 I ,844) 

Net assets· begiMing 3,6211129 2919]31110 3]1554,239 

Net assets· ending S 2,221, 170 S 22,381,225 S 24
1
602,]95 
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BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 

COMBINING ST A YEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 3D, 2010 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Cash receipts for service fees 
Cash receipts from other sources 
Cash payments to employees for services 
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services 
Cash payments for insurance claims 

Net cash from operating activities 

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities: 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 
Interfund loans 

Net cash flows provided by 
noncapital and related fmancing act ivities 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: 
Payments to acquire, constnJct, or improve capital assets 
Proceeds from disposal of capital assets 

Net cash flows from capital and related 
fmuncing activi ties 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Interest on investments 

Net increase (deerease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents, October I, 2009 

Cash and cash equivalents, September 30, 20 10 

Information 
Spums 

$ 5,312,194 
313,289 

(3,257,070) 
(3,840,703) 

0 

S ,114n,290l. 

S 1,041 ,406 
(2 18,420) 

0 

S 822,986 

S (279,092) 
39. 

S {2781696~ 

S 33,602 

S (894,398) 

2
1
339,647 

S 114451249 

$ 

S 

S 

S 

S 

S 

$ 

S 

S 

Risk 
Managemtnt 

55,789,752 
1,060,777 

(1,097,196) 
(8,839,228) 

~48161319S3 l 

'11699!848~ 

0 
(3,624,056) 

231353 

p,6001703l 

0 
82 

82 

7601513 

(4,539,956) 

471768
1
86 1 

431228,905 

S 

S 

S 

S 

, 
s 

S 
S 

S 

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash flows from operating activities 

Total 

61, 101,946 
1,374,066 

(4,354,266) 
(,1 2,679,93 1) 
'4816 1 319S3~ 

p,I721138l 

1,04 1,406 
(3,842,476) 

231353 

p,777,7 1 7~ 

(279,092) 
478 

~278,614l 

7941115 

(5,434,354) 

50,108
1
508 

44 ,674, 154 

Operating income (loss) $ P1561,6 10>' S (51826, 139) S (8)87,749) 

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net 
cash from operating act ivities; 

Depreciation expense S 671,755 S 8,587 S 680,342 
Miscellaneous revenues 313,288 1, 180,387 1,493,675 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (2 1,952) 92,362 70,410 
(Increase) decrease in due from other 

governmental units 0 716,2 19 7 16,219 
(Increase) decrease in prepaid items 15,267 130,924 146,191 
Increase (decrease) in vouchers and contracts payable (37,083) (551,896) (588,979) 
Increase (decrease) in claims payable 0 2,586,745 2,586,745 
IncrellSe (decrease) in accrued compensated absences 119,954 (33,095) 86,859 
Increase (decrease) in other postemployment benefits 28,091 9,408 37,499 
Increase (decrease) in due to other governmental units 0 ~131350~ i 13 1350l 

Total adjustments S 11°89,320 S 4,126
1
291 S 5,215161 I 

Net cash from operating activities S ~ 1 ,472,290~ S (1.699,848l s p, I72, 1381 
Non-eash investing, capital, and fmancing activities: 

Capital contributed by developers, individuals, 
and governmental entities S 522 S 3,550 S 4,072 
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Agency Funds 

Board Agency Fund - to account for assets held by the Brevard County Board of County 
Commissioners as trustee or agent. 

Sheriff Agency Fund - to account for assets held by the Brevard County Sheriff as trustee or 
agent. 

Clerk Agency Fund - to account for assets held by the Brevard.County Clerk of the Circuit Court 
as trustee or agent. 

Tax Collector Agency Fund - to account for assets held by the Brevard County Tax Collector as 
trustee or agent. 
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BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

ASSETS 

Cuh 
Accounts receivable 
Accrued interest receivable 
Due from other funds 
Due from other governmental units 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 

Due to employees, individuals, and others 
Due to other funds 
Due to other governmental units 
Escrow and refundable deposits 

Total liabilities 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

, 

$ 

$ 

, 

124 

Board 
Agency 
Funds 

511,953 
0 

879 
0 
0 

512,8)2 

108,7 17 
0 

4,894 
399,221 

512,8)2 

Sheriff 
Agency 
Funds 

$ 172,838 
0 
0 

99 
0 

$ 172,937 

, 122,937 
50,000 

0 
0 

$ 1721937 



ClerJ: 
Agerley 

Funds 

, 16,748,141 , 
17,972 

0 
0 

54,734 
$ 16,820,847 $ 

$ 864,039 $ 
0 

2,073,945 
13[8821863 

$ 16,820,847 , 

T~ 

Collector 
Agen')' 
Funds 

9,979,308 
219,275 

0 
0 

2[ 176 
10,200,759 

8,441,998 
0 

1,758,76 1 
0 

10,2001759 

TOio/ 

, 27,412,240 
237,247 

879 
99 

56,910 
$ 27,707,375 

$ . 9,537,69 1 
50,000 

3,837,600 
14,282,084 , 271707,315 
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

Bafance Balance 
Oct. I, }OO9 Additions Deductions Sept. )0, 2010 

Board Agency 

ASSETS: 
c"h $ 853,784 , 286,810 , 628,641 , 511,953 
Accounts receivable 50,782 0 50,782 0 
Accrued interest receivable 21229 879 2z229 879 

TOTAL ASSETS . $ 9061795 $ 287;689 , 681 z652 $ 512z832 

LIABILITIES: 
Due to employees, individuals, and others $ 122,543 $ 42,015 , 55,84 1 ., 108,717 
Due to other governmental units 2,989 8,409 6,504 4,894 
Escrow and refundable deposits 181,263 2581928 64°1970 399/22 1 

TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 906,795 , 309,352 , 703,315 $ 512,832 

Sheriff Agency 

ASSETS: 
Cash $ 87,172 , 2,786,152 $ 2,700,486 , 172,838 
Due from other funds 99 99 99 99 

TOT At ASSETS $ 87,271 $ 2,786,25 1 $ 2,700,585 , 172,937 

LIABILITIES: 
Due to employees, individuals, and others $ 87,271 $ 2,753,303 $ 2,717,637 $ 122,937 
Due to other funds 0 501000 0 5°1000 

TOTAL LIAB ILITIES , 87,271 , 2,8031303 , 2,7171637 $ 172,937 

Clerk Agency 

ASSETS: 
C"h $ 16,27 1,331 , 96,047,673 $ 95,570,863 , 16,748, 141 
Accounts receivable 27,738 10,295,706 10,305,472 17,972 
Due from other governmental units 143,868 1015261756 1016151890 54,734 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 1614421937 $ 116/87°1 135 , 11 6/4921225 $ 16,820,847 

LIABILITIES: 
Due to employees, individuals, and others $ 724,599 , 8,671,024 , 8,531 ,584 $ 864,039 
Due to other governmental units 3,510,845 63,719,886 65,156,786 2,073,945 
Escrow and refundable deposits 121207,493 44,4791225 42,803,855 131882,863 

TOTAL LIABILITIES , 1614421937 $ 11 6/8101135 , 11 6/492,225 $ 16,8201841 
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BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES TN ASSETS AND LIAB ILITIES 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

Balance Balance 
Oct. 1,2009 AdditiollS Deductions Sept. 30, 2010 

Tax Collector AgellH 

ASSETS: 
C"h S 11,354,904 S 766,9)5,83] S 768,311,427 S 9,979,308 
Accounts receivable 116,201 11 0,793 7,719 219,275 
Due from other governmental units 8:886 8,873 15,583 2, 176 

TOTAL ASSETS S 11,479,991 S 167,055,497 S 768,33929 S 10!200,759 

LiABILITIES: 
Due to employees, individuals, and others S 10,147,297 S 48,354,975 S 50,060,274 $ 8,44 1,998 
Due to other governmental unilS 1,332,694 718,700,522 718,274,455 1,758,761 

TOTAL LIABILITIES S 11,479:991 S 7671°55,497 S 76813341729 S 1°120°:759 

TQT AI.. - AL!" EID:!.!C:JARY FUNDS 
ASSETS: 

Cash S 28,567,191 S 866,056,466 S 867,211,417 S 27,412,240 
Accounts receivable 194,721 10,406,499 10,363,973 237,247 
Accrued interest receivable 2,229 879 2,229 879 
Due from other funds 99 99 99 99 
Due from other governmental units 152,754 10,535,629 10,631,473 56,9 10 

TOTAL ASSETS S 28,9 16,994 S 886,999,5'~ S 888,209,19 1 S 27,707,375 

LIABILITIES: 
Due to employees, individuals, and others S 11,081,710 S 59,821,3 17 S 61,365,336 S 9,537,691 
Due to other funds 0 50,000 0 50,000 
Due to other governmental units 4,846,528 782,428,817 783,437,745 3,837,600 
Escrow and refundable deposits 12,988,756 44,738,153 43,444,825 14,282,084 

TOTAL LIABILITIES S 28,916,994 S 887,038,2B7 S 888,247,906 S 27,707,375 
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Component Units 

North Brevard County Public Library District Fund - to account for the operations of a public 
library system in Brevard County, which was established pursuant to Chapter 69-869, Laws of 
Florida. The Library District is presented as a governmental fund type. 

Menitt Island Redevelopment Agency Fund - to account for thle collection of incremental taxes 
pursuant to Section 163.387, Florida Statutes, in accordance with Ordinance 89-28, as amended 
by 90-188, for the provision of community redevelopment. The Agency is presented as a 
governmental fund type. 

Titusville - Cocoa Airport Authority Fund - to account for the operation ofthree general aviation 
airports in Brevard County pursuant to Chapter 63-1143, Spe,:ial Acts of Florida. The Airport 
Authority is presented as a proprietary fund type. 

Melbourne - Tillman Water Control District Fund - to account for revenues and expenses 
associated with the provision of a surface water management: system within an area of South 
Brevard County pursuant to ·Chapter 86-418, Special Acts of Florida. The Water Control District 
is presented as a proprietary fund type. 

Housing Finance Authority Fund - to account for the operating activities associated with the 
administration of the Brevard County Housing Finance Authority. The Housing Finance 
Authority is presented as a proprietary fund type. 

129 



1·1 
lOF2 

BREVARD COUNTY. FLORIDA 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

COMPONENT UNITS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

North 
Brevard County Merritt Island 
Public Library Redevelopment 

District A&:en2 
ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 5,296 S 3,054,786 
Investtnenu 0 0 
Receivables: 

Receivables (nel of allowance 
for uncollectibles) 0 0 

Accrued interest receivable 0 6,580 
Due from other governmental units 0 596,500 
Inventory 0 0 
Prepaid items 0 0 
Deferred charges 0 0 
Capital assets: 

Lond 0 0 
Buildings and structures 0 0 
Improvements to land 0 0 
Improvements other than buildings 0 0 
Machinery and equipment 0 0 
Less accumulated depreciation 0 0 
Construction in progress 0 0 

Total assets S 5,296 $ 3
t
657,866 

L1ABfLITIES 
Accounts payable S 0 S \56,145 
Accrued liabilities 0 0 
Accrued wages and benefits payable 0 0 
Advance payments 0 0 
Deferred revenue 0 55,878 
Noncurrent liabilities: 

Due within one year: 
Accrued compensated absences 0 0 
Loans and leases payable 0 0 

Due in more than one yeM: 
Other postemployment benefits 0 0 
Loans and leases payable 0 0 

Total liabi lities S 0 S 2!2,023 

NET ASSETS 

Invested in capital assets 
(net of related debt) $ 0 $ 0 

Restricted for Housing 0 0 
Unrestricted 51296 31445,843 

T ota! nel assets $ 5;296 $ 31445,843 
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TitUS\!ille- Melbowne-
Cocoa Tillman 
Airport Water Control 

AUlharily District 

S 3, 11 7,035 S 6,095,523 

• • 
]0',346 • '. • 
720,72 1 • • 48,494 
23 8,3 86 • 

2,627 • 
14,204,818 277,82 1 
12,677,965 373,789 

339,254 8,229,276 
19,337,689 • 
2,7 19,849 2,568,879 

( 15,093,867) (9,726,]01) 
312041"936 • 

S 41 ,575,259 S 7
1
867,68] 

S 225,595 S 4,261 
65,680 • • 48,053 

250,762 • • • 
92,683 133,442 

168,958 • 
• 306,582 

11386,889 ' • , 2, 190,567 S 492,338 

, 35,834,797 , 1,723,664 

• • 
3,549,895 51651 ,679 , 39,384,692 S 7,375,343 

HOUSing 
Fin(Ulce 

Authority 

S 3,971,807 
613,576 

63,235 

• • • • • 
• • • • • • • 

S 4,648,618 

S 28,657 

• • • 
46,023 

• • 
• • , 74,680 

S • 1,224,500 
31349!438 , 4,5731938 
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Total 

S 16,244,447 
613,576 

]69,08] 
6,580 

1,3 17,22 1 
48,494 

238,386 
2,627 

14,482,639 
13,05 1,754 
8,568,530 

19,337,689 
5,288,728 

S 4 14,658 
65,680 
48,053 

250,762 
101 ,90 1 

226,125 
168,958 

306,582 
1,3 86,889 , 2,969,608 

S 37,558,46 1 
1,224,500 

16,002, 15 1 
S 54,785! 11 2 
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BREVARD COUNTY. FLORIDA 

STATEMENT OF ACTIV ITIES 

COMPONa'T UNITS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

Expenses 

Program revenues: 
Charges for services 
Capital grants and contributions 

Total program Ttvenues 

Net program revenue (expenses) 

General revenues: 
Taxes: 

Ad valorem taxes 
OU", 

Interest income 
Miscellaneous 

Total general revenues 

Changes in net assets 

Net assets· beginning 

Net assets· cnding 

132 

North 
Brevard County 
Public Library 

District 

S 3,544 

$ 2,77 1 
0 

$ 2,771 

Functiorul 

$ (773~ 

s 

s 
$ 

$ 

o 
o 
o 
o 
o 

(713) 

6,069 

5,296 

Merrill/sland 
Redevelopment 

Agency 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

s 

1,269,844 

0 
596,500 

5%,500 

~673,344} 

o 
1,229, 187 

57,322 
1,379 

1,287,888 

6 14,544 

2,831,299 

S 3,445,843 



Pror!,ams 
Titus'l'ilIe- Melbourne-

Co<oo Tillman 
Airporl Waler Can/rot 

Authority District 

S 2,638,6 19 $ 2,890, 175 

S 1,985,425 $ 1,179,25 1 
2,242,901 0 

S 4,228,326 , 1,179,25 1 

S 1,589
1
707 S {1,1l 0,924l 

S 31 , 0 
0 0 

8,795 2 17,997 
0 0 

S 8,826 S 217,997 

S 1,598,533 S (892,927) 

37,786, 159 8.268,270 

S 39,384,692 S 7,375,343 

Housing 
Finance 

Authority 

$ 362,072 

$ 579,172 
0 , 579,172 

$ 217, 100 

S 0 
0 

65,725 
0 , 65,725 , 282,825 

4,291, 113 

, 4,573,938 

I3J 

S 

S 

S 

$ 

S 

S 
S 

S 

Total 

7, 164,254 

4,346,6 19 
2,839

t
40 1 

7, 186,020 

21,766 

31 
1,229,187 

349,839 
1,379 

1,580,436 

1,602.202 

53,182,910 

54,785,1 12 

1-2 
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BREVARD COUNTY, FLORJDA 

J. J 
IOFI 

CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

Governmental funds capital assets: 
Land 
Buildings and structures 
Infrastructure 
Improvements to land 
Improvements other than buildings 
Machinery and equipment 
Construction in progress 

Total governmental funds capital assets 

S 2]8,692,997 
282,596,926 
1)5,124,341 
48,833,838 
16,278,254 

141 , 139,593 
79,570,745 

S 942,236,694 

This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to governmental funds. Accordingly, the capilal 
assets reported in internal service funds are excluded from the above activities. Generally, the capital assets of 
the internal service funds are included as govemmental activities in the statement of net assets. 
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IOF2 

BREVA RD COUNTY, FLORlDA 

CAPlr AL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERA rIOH OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

SCHEDULE BY FUNCTION 

FUNCTION 

General government 
Public $8(ety 
Physical environment 
Transportation 
Economic environment 
Human services 
Culture and recreation 

Total governmental funds capilal assets 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

La,d 

S 8,361, 193 
6 13,758 

104,530,419 
39,660,959 

1,967,858 
) 

Buildings 
aM 

structures 

S 127, 183,909 
17,325,268 
10,282,088 
3,597,645 

177,086 
2, 11 2,247 

Infrastructure 

s 0 
11 7,909 

7,723,543 
122,262,233 

4,210,667 
o 

809,989 
$ 135, 124,341 

This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related 10 governmental funds. Accordingly, the capital 
assets reponed in internal service funds are excluded from the above activities. Generally. the capital assets of 
the internal service funds are included as governmental activities in the statement or ne! assc\s. 
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Improvements Improvements ,. other than MachiMT}' and 
Ic:md buildings equipment 

S 875,930 S 894,063 S 16,818,826 
682,434 160,737 69,961,943 

1,680, 190 59,880 2,769,532 
1,32 1,725 17,009 25,852,207 

143,020 57,903 280,429 
30,336 83,419 10,027,137 

44, 100,203 15,005,243 15,429,519 

S 48,833,838 $ 16,278,254 S 14 1,139,593 

137 

Construction 
in 

progress 

S 1,114,894 
583,463 

9,888,710 
37,605,400 

1,041,617 
0 

29,336,66 1 
I 79,570,74$ 

S 

S 

)·2 
20F2 

Total 

155,248,815 
89,445,512 

136,934,362 
230,3 17, 178 

8,478,580 
12,994,050 

)08,8 18,197 
942,236,694 



1·3 
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BREVARD COUNTY, FLORlDA 

CAPITAL ASSETS USED TN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES BY FUNCTION 

FUNCTION 

General government 
Public safery 
Physical environment 
Transponalion 
Economic environment 
Human services 
Culture and recreation 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

Total governmental funds capilal asselS 

138 

Governmental 
Funds Capital 

Assets 
Oct. 1,2009 

S 146,970,046 
83,29 1,438 

129,463,764 
215,395,596 

9,655,699 
12,734,537 



Additions Deductions 

$ 13,345,326 $ 5,081, 192 
9,997,374 4,040,252 

10,133,032 2,675,179 
21,198, 146 6,884,660 

1,285,699 676,093 
804,513 680,483 

31t2381140 13157°1704 
$ 88,002,230 $ 33,6081563 

139 

Transfers 

$ 14,635 
196,952 

12,745 
608,096 

(1,786,725) 
135,483 
818,814 

$ 0 

J-J 
20F2 

Governmental 
Funds Capital 

Assets 
Sept. 10, 1010 

$ I 5S,248,8 1 5 
89,445,512 

136,934 ,362 
230,3 11,118 

8,478,580 
12,994,050 

)08,818,197 
$ 942,236,694 
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The Supplemental Section includes tables and schedules to provide a 
more detailed picture of the financial condition of Brevard County, 
Flc;> rida, than those presented in the financial statements. 
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TABLE I 
I OF II 

BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
SCHEDULE OF BONDED DEBT AND rNTEREST TO MA TURJTY 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

ENTERPRlSE 

I. Brevard County Utility Revenue Refunding Bonds. Series 2002 

Fiscal Principoi TOial y,,,, Interest T",aJ D" Debt 
~nding Rate Interest March I Service 

2011 5.25% S 1,299,244 $ 6,465,000 $ 7,764,244 

2012 5.25% 950,906 6,805,000 7,755,906 

2013 5.250/. 584,194 7, 165,000 7,749,194 

2014 5.25% 198,056 '!545 j OOO 7,743,056 

TOTALS $ 3,032,400 $ 21,980,000 $ 31,012,400 

2. Utility Revenue Bonds (Barefoot Bay Utility System), Series 2000 

Fiscal Principal Total 
Year Interest Tatal D., Debt 

Ending Rale Interest OClo/ur I Se",ice 

20 11 4.40-4 .50"/0 S 683,993 S 415,000 $ 1,098,993 

2012 4.50"/0 665,075 435,000 1, 100,075 

2013 5.25% 643,344 455,000 1,098,344 

2014 5.25% 618,931 475,000 1,093 ,93 1 
2015 5.25% 593,3]8 500,000 1,093 ,338 

2016 5.25% 566,300 5]0,000 1,096,300 
2017 5.25% 537,819 555,000 1,092,819 

20 18 5.25% 501,894 585,000 1,092,894 

2019 5.25% 416,394 615,000 1,091,394 

2020 SJ)O% 444,000 . 650,000 1,094,000 

202 1 5.00% 410,150 680,000 1,090,150 
2022 5.00% 375,875 715,000 1,090,815 

2023 5.00% 339,250 750,000 1,089,250 
2024 5.00% 300,150 790,000 1,090,150 

2025 5.00% 260,375 825,000 1,085,375 
2026 5,00"10 2 18,000 870,000 1,088,000 

2027 5,00% 173,500 910,000 1,083,500 
2028 5.00"10 126,875 955,000 1,08 1,875 

2029 5.00% 71,875 1,005,000 1,082,875 
2030 5.00% 26,375 1,055,000 1,081 ,375 

TOTALS $ 8,046,713 S 13,710,000 $ 21,816,113 
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TABLE 1 
20F II 

BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 

SCHEDULE OF BONDED DEBT AND rNTEREST TO MA TIJRlTY 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

3. Subordinated Sales Tax Revenue Bond, Series 2009A 

Fiscal Principal TOlal 
Yw Interest TotDI Du, Debt 

Ending Rate Interest December I Service 

20 11 4 .18% S 63,745 S 44,000 S 107,745 

20 12 4 .18% 61,739 52,000 113,739 

2013 4 .18"1. 59,502 55,000 114,502 

20 14 4.18·/0 57,162 57,000 114,162 

20 15 4 .18% 54,716 60,000 114,716 

20 16 4.18% 52, 166 62,000 114,166 

20 17 4.18% 49,5 12 65,000 114,512 

2018 4.18% 46,732 68,000 114,732 

2019 4.18% 43,827 71 ,000 114,S27 

2020 4. IS% 40,797 74,000 114,797 

202 1 4 .18% 37,641 77,000 114,641 

2022 4 . ISY. 34,360 80,000 114,360 

2023 4 .18% 30,932 84,000 114,932 
2024 4.IS% 27,337 88,000 115,337 

2025 4 . IS% 23,596 91 ,000 114,596 

2026 4 .18% 19,709 95 ,000 114,709 

2027 4 .18". 15,654 99,000 114,654 

2028 4. 18% 11 ,411 .104,000 115,411 

2029 4. 18". 6,98 1 10S,000 114,981 

2030 4 . IS·;' 2,362 l 13 tooo 11 5,362 

TOTALS S 739,881 S 1,547,000 S 2,286,881 

4. Capital Lease Commibmnts 

Present Value 
Fiscal ofFulure Total 
Year Interest Totof Minimum Lease Debt 

Ending Rate In/erest Payments Service 

201 1 1.25% S 5,144 S 191,22S S 196,372 
2012 1.25% 2,740 193,632 196,372 
2013 1.25% 47. 114,086 114,562 

TOTALS S 8,360 S 498,946 S 507,306 
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TABLE I 
3 OF II 

BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
SCHEDULE OF BONDED DEBT AND INTEREST TO MATURITY 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNPS 

I. Limited Ad Valorem Tax Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 1996 

Fiscal Principal Total 
y,~ Interest Total D" Debt 

Ending Rate Interest September I Service 

201 1 5.375% , 67,188 $ 1,250,000 $ 1,3 17,188 

TOTALS $ 67,188 $ 1,250,000 $ 1,317,188 

2. Limited Ad Valorem Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 2002 

Fiscal Principal Total 
Year Interest To/a/ D., Debt 

Ending ROle Interest September I Service 

2011 4.10% $ 51,045 $ 1,245,000 $ 1.296,045 

TOTALS $ 51,045 $ 1,245,000 $ 1,296,045 

3. Limited Ad Valorem Tax Bonds, Series 2004 

Fiscal Principal Total 
Year Interest Tolal 0., Debt 

Ending Rale Interest September I Service 

2011 3.00% , 81,000 $ 2.700,000 $ 2,781,000 

TOTALS $ 81,000 $ 2,700,000 $ 2,78 1,000 

4. Limited Ad Valorem Tax Bonds, Series 2005 

Fiscal Principal TOlal 
Year Interest Total D., Debt 

Ending Rale Interest September I Service 

20 11 3.25% $ 1.484,244 $ 1,970,000 $ 3,454,244 

2012 3.50% 1,420,219 2,035,000 3,455,219 

2013 3.625% 1,348,994 2,105,000 3,453,994 

2014 5.00% 1,272,688 2,180,000 3,452,688 
2015 4.00% 1,163,688 2,290,000 3,453,688 

2016 4.00% 1,072,088 2,380,000 3,452,088 

2017 4.25% 976,887 2,475,000 3,451,887 
2018 4.25% 871,700 2,580,000 3,451,700 
2019 4.25% 762,050 2,690,000 3,452,050 

2020 4.25% 647,725 2,805,000 3,452,725 
2021 4.20% 528,512 2,925,000 3,453,512 

2022 4.25% 405,661 3,050,000 3,455,661 

2023 4.25% 276,037 . 3, 180,000 3,456,037 . 
2024 4 .25% 140,887 3,315,000 3,455,887 

TOTALS $ 12,371,380 $ 35,980.000 $ 48,351,380 
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TABLE 1 
40F II 

BREVARD COUNTY, FLORJDA 
SCHEDULE OF BONDED DEBT AND INTEREST TO MATURITY 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

,. Nonh Brevard Recreation Special District, Limited Ad Valorem Tax Boods, Series 200 I 

Fiscal Principal Tou,} 
y,~ Imerest Total f)" Debt 

Ending Rate Interest July I Service 

2011 '.00% S 499,250 S 705,000 S 1,204,250 

2012 5.WI. 464,000 735,000 1,199,000 

2013 5.Qoe/. 427,250 775,000 1,202,250 

2014 5.00"/. 388,500 8 15,000 1,203,500 

2015 5.00% 347,750 855,000 1,202,750 

2016 5.Qoe/o 305,000 895,000 1,200,000 

2017 5.QoeAl 260,250 940,000 1,200,250 

20 18 5.00% 2 13,250 990,000 1,203,250 

2019 5.00% 163,750 1,040,000 1,203,750 

2020 5.00% 111 ,750 1,090,000 1,201,750 

2021 5.Qoe/. 57,250 1,145,000 1,202.250 

TOTALS S 3,238,000 S 9,985,000 S 13,223,000 

•• North Brevard Recreation Special District, Limited Ad Valorem Tax Bonds, Series 2007 

Fiscal Principal Ta/al 
Year Interest Total f)" Debt 

Ending Raft Interest July I Service 

20 11 3.625% S 429,244 S 450,000 S 879,244 

20 12 3.625% 412,93\ 465,000 877,931 
2013 4.000% 396,075 485,000 881,075 

20 14 5.625% 376,675 505,000 881,675 

2015 5.625% 348,269 530,000 878,269 

2016 4.000% 318,456 560,000 878,456 

20 17 4.000% 296,056 585,000 881,056 
20 18 4 .000% 272,656 610,000 882,656 

2019 4.000% 248,256 630,000 878,256 
2020 4 .125% 223,056 655,000 878,056 
202 1 4. 125% 196,038 685,000 881,038 
2022 4.250"~ 167,781 715,000 882,781 

2023 4.250"AI 137,394 745,000 882,394 
2024 4.300% 105,731 775,000 880,73 1 
2025 4.375'1. 72,406 810,000 882,406 
2026 4.375% 36.969 845,000 881,969 

TOTALS S 4,037,993 S 10,050,000 S 14,087,993 -
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TABLE I 
5 OF II 

BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
SCHEDULE OF BONDED DEBT AND INTEREST TO MA TURJTY 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

7. South Brevard Recreation Special District, Limited Ad Valorem Tax Bonds, Series 2001 

Fiscal Principal Total 
Year Interest Total 0", Debt 

Ending Rate Imerest July I Service 

2011 4.30% $ 1,424,610 $ 2,110,000 $ 3,534,610 
2012 4.50% 1,333,880 2,205,000 3,538,880 
2013 4.60% 1,234,655 2,300,000 3,534,655 
2014 4.70% 1,128,855 2,405,000 3,533,855 
2015 4.80% 1,015,820 2,520,000 3,535,820 
2016 4.90% 894,860 2,640,000 3,534,~60 

2017 5.00% 765,500 2,770,000 3,535,500 
2018 5.00% 627,000 2,910,000 3,537,000 
2019 5.00% 481,500 3,055,000 3,536,500 
2020 5.00% 328,750 3,205,000 3,533,750 
2021 5.00% 168,500 3,370,000 3;538,500 

TOTALS S 9,403,930 $ 29,490,000 $ 38,893,930 

8. South Brevard Recreation Special District, Limited Ad Valorem Tax Bonds, Series 2007 

Fiscal Principal Total 
Yeor Imerest Total D" Debt 

Ending Rote Imerest July I Service 

2011 4.000% $ 2,406,456 $ 2,250,000 $ 4,656,456 
2012 4.000% 2,316,456 2,340,000 4,656,456 
2013 5.000% 2,222,857 2,435,000 4,657,857 
2014 5.000% 2,101,106 2,560,000 4,661,106 
2015 5.000% 1,973,106 2,685,000 4,658, 106 
2016 5.000% 1,838,856 2,820,000 4,658,856 
2017 5.000% 1,697,857 2,960,000 4,657,857 
2018 4.000% 1,549,856 3,110,000 4,659,856 
2019 4.000% 1,425,456 3,235,000 4,660,456 
2020 4. 125% 1,296,056 3,365,000 4,661,056 
2021 4.250% 1,157,250 3,500,000 4,657,250 
2022 5.000% 1,008,500 3,650,000 4,658,500 
2023 5.000% 826,000 3,835,000 4,66 1,000 
2024 5.000% 634,250 4,025,000 4,659,250 
2025 5.000"10 433,000 4,225,000 4,658,000 
2026 5.000% 221,750 4,435,000 4,656,750 

TOTALS $ 23,108,812 $ 51,430,000 $ 74,538,812 
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TAB LE I 
60F I I 

BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
SCHEDULE OF BONDED DEBT AND INTEREST. TO MA TIJRlTY 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

9. Merritllsland Recreation Municipal Service Taxing Uni!, Limited Ad Valorem Tax Bonds, Series 2001 

Fiscol Principal Tou" 
Year Interest Totol 0.. Debt 

Ending Rate Imerest Jllly I Service 

2011 4.375'1. S 413,206 S 610,000 S 1,023,206 

2012 4.500-/. 386,519 635,000 1,021 ,5 19 

201l 4.625% 357,944 665,000 1,022,944 

2014 4.750';' 327,187 695,000 1,022,187 

2015 4.750';' 294,175 730,000 1,024,175 

20 16 5.000% 259,500 765,000 1,024,500 

2017 5.000% 221,250 800,000 1,021,250 

20 18 5.000% 181 ,250 840,000 1,021,250 

2019 5.000% 139,250 885,000 1,024,250 

2020 5.000% 95,000 925,000 1,020,000 

2021 5.000% 48,750 975,000 1,023,750 

TOTALS S 2,724,031 S 8,525,000 S 11,249,031 

10. Merritt Island Recreation Municipal Service Taxing Unit, Limited Ad Valorem Tax Bonds, Series 2007 

Fiscal Principal Total 
Year Imerest Total 0.. o.b, 

Ending Rate Imerest Jllly I Service 

20 11 5.000% S 525,509 S 510,000 S 1,035,509 

2012 5.000% 500,008 535,000 1,035,008 

20 13 5.000% 473,259 560,000 1,033,259 
2014 5.000'/. 445,259 590,000 1,035,259 

2015 5.000% 415,759 620,000 1,035,759 
20 16 5.000% 384,759 650,000 1,034,759 

20 17 4.00CW. 352,259 685,000 1,037,259 

20 18 4.000% 324,859 710,000 1,034,859 

20 19 4.000% 296,459 740,000 1,036,459 

2020 4.200% 266,859 770,000 1,036,859 
202 1 4.250% 234,519 800,000 1,034,519 

2022 4.375% 200,519 835,000 1,035,5 19 

2023 4.375% 163 ,987 870,000 1,033,987 

2024 4.375% 125,925 910,000 1,035,925 

2025 4.375% 86,112 950,000 1,036, 112 
2026 4.500-/. 44,550 990,000 1,034,550 

TOTALS S 4,840,601 S 11,725;000 S 16,565,601 
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TABLE 1 
7 OF 11 

BREVARD COUNTY, FLORlDA 
SCHEDULE OF BONDED DEBT AND INTEREST TO MATURITY 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

11. Sales Tax Refunding & Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 200 I 

Fiscal Principal Total 
YIOT Interest Total D.. Deb, 

Ending Rate Interest December I Service 

201 1 4.00(W. S 987,763 $ 2,475,000 S 3,462,763 
2012 4.00CI'/. 889,762 2,425,000 3,314,762 
2013 5.250% 775,113 2,520,000 3,295,113 
2014 5.250% 639,400 2,650,000 3,289,400 
2015 5.250% 496,731 2,785,000 3,28 1,73 1 
2016 4.500% 402,58'8 935,000 1,337,588 
2017 4.500% 359,500 980,000 1,339,500 
20 18 4.625% 313,747 1,025,000 1,338,747 
20 19 4.750% 264,750 1,065,000 1,329,750 
2020 4.875% 227,147 505,000 732,147 
2021 4 .875% 201,919 530,000 731,919 
2022 5.000% 175,125 555,000 730,125 
2023 5.000% 146,625 585,000 731,625 
2024 5.000% 116,750 610,000 726,750 
2025 5J)00% 85,375 645,000 730,375 
2026 5.000010 52,375 675,000 727,375 
2027 5.000% 171750 7 101°00 727,750 

TOTALS $ 6,152,420 $ 21,675,000 $ 27,827,420 

12. Sales Tax Refunding &. Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2003 

Fiscal Principal Totol 
Year Interest Total D., De., 

Ending Rote Interest December 1 Service 

2011 3.75o/~.00% S 302,7 19 S 1,335,000 $ 1,637,719 
2012 4.00% 249,887 1,390,000 1,639,887 
2013 4.00% 193,088 1,450,000 1,643,088 
201 4 4.00"/~.IO% 133,988 1,505,000 1,638,988 
2015 4.10%-4.25% 99,480 2 15,000 314,480 
2016 4.25%-4.35% 90,291 225,000 315,291 
20 17 4.35o/~.50% 80,399 235,000 315,399 
2018 4.50"10 69,775 245,000 314,775 
2019 4.50% 58,525 255,000 313,525 
2020 4.50% 46,825 265,000 311,825 
2021 4.50'/...-4.75"-. 34,562 280,000 3 14,562 
2022 4.75% 21,375 290,000 311,375 
2023 4.75% 7,244 305,000 312,244 

TOTALS S 1,388,158 $ 7,995,000 $ 9,383,158 
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TABLE 1 
80F I I 

BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
SCHEDULE OF BONDED DEBT AND fNTEREST to MA TURlTY 

SEPTEMBER 30, 201 0 

lJ. Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2005 

Fiscal Principal Total 
Year Interest Total Due Debt 

Ending Role Interest December I Service 

2011 3.25% S 509,095 $ 475,000 $ 984,095 

2012 3.50% 490,264 635,000 1,125,264 

2013 3.50"10 467,689 655,000 1,122,689 

2014 4 .00% 442,626 680,000 1,122,626 

2015 3.50% 416,601 710,000 1,126,601 

2016 3.60"/0 391,036 730,000 1,121,036 

2017 4.00% 362,696 760,000 1,122,696 

2018 4.00"/0 331,696 790,000 1, 121,696 

2019 4.00% 299,496 820,000 1, 119,496 

2020 4 .00% 265,996 855,000 1,120,996 
2021 4.10% 230,652 890,000 1,120,652 
2022 4.125% 193,328 925,000 1,1 18,328 

2023 4.25% 153,850 960,000 1,113,850 
2024 4.25% 112,094 1,005,000 1,1 17,094 

2025 4.25% '68,531 1,045,000 1,113,531 
2026 4.25% 23.163 1,090,000 1, 113, 163 

TOTALS $ 4,758,813 $ 13,025,000 $ 17,783,813 

14. Subordinated Sales Tax Refunding Revenue Bond, Series 2009B 

Fiscal Pr,incipal Total 
Year Inferest Towl 0" Debt 

Ending Rate Interest December 1 Service 

2011 2.93% $ 165,691 $ 2,264,000 $ 2,429,691 

2012 2.93% 122,2 10 704,000 826,210 

2013 2.93% 102,726 626,000 728,726 
2014 2,93% 84,048 649,000 733,048 

2015 2.93% 64,138 710,000 774,138 
2016 2.93% 43,026 731,000 774,026 
2017 2.93% 27,044 360,000 387,044 
2018 2.93% 16,379 368,000 384,379 
2019 2.93% 5,494 375,000 380,494 

TOTALS $ 630,756 $ 6,787,000 $ 7,417,756 

15. Fourth Cent Tourist Development Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2001 

Fiscal Principal Total 
y,~ Interest Total 0" Debt 

Ending Rale Inferest March J Service 

2011 4 ,25% $ 79,925 , 680,000 $ 759,925 
2012 4 ,50% 49,500 710,000 759,500 
2013 4.50% 16,763 745,000 76 1,763 

TOTALS $ 146,188 $ 2,135,000 $ 2,281,188 
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TAB LE I 
90F I I 

BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
SCHEDULE OF BONDED DEBT AND INTEREST TO MA 1lJRlTY 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

16. Constitutional Fuel Tax Revenue Bonds, Series 2005 

Fiscal Principal Total 
Yw Intuest To<ol 1M Debt 

Ending ."" Interest August / Service 

201 1 5.000";' $ 1,112,187 $ 2,005,000 S 3,117,187 
2012 5.000";' 1,011,937 2,105,000 3,116,937 
2013 5.000";' 906,688 2,210,000 3,116,688 
2014 5.000% 796,188 2,325,000 3,121 , 188 
2015 5.000% 679,938 2,440,000 3,1 19,938 
2016 4.000% 557,938 2,555,000 3, 11 2,938 
2017 4.000:% 455,738 2,660,000 3,1 15,738 
2018 4.000% 349,338 2,770,000 3,1 19,338 
2019 4.000% 238,538 2,880,000 3,118,538 
2020 4. 125% 123,338 2,990,000 3,113,338 

TOTALS $ 6,231 ,828 $ 24,940,000 
~ 

S 31,171,828 

17. Local Option Fuel Tax 2005 

Fiscal Principal Total 
Y'M InterQt Total 0., Debt 

Ending Rate In/erest August I Service 

2011 5.()()(W, $ 1,842,806 $ 1,765,000 $ 3,607,806 
2012 3.7500/, 1,754,556 1,855,000 3,609,556 
2013 4.000% 1,684,994 1,925,000 3,609,994 
20 14 4.000".1. 1,607,994 2,000,000 3,607,994 
20 15 4.000"/. 1,527,994 2,080,000 3,607,994 
2016 4.000% 1,444,794 2,165,000 3,609,794 
20 17 5.000% 1,358,194 2)50,000 3,608,194 
20U 5.000% 1,245,694 2,360,000 3,605,694 
2019 5.000";' 1,127,694 2,480,000 3,607,694 
2020 4.375% 1,003 ,694 2,605,000 3,608,694 
2021 5.000% 889,725 2,720,000 3,609,725 
2022 4.500% 753,725 2,855,000 3,608,725 
2023 5.0000/, 625,250 2,980,000 3,605,250 
2024 5.000% 476,250 3, 130,000 3,606,250 
2025 5.000% 319,750 3,290,000 3,609,750 
2026 4.500% 155,250 3,450,000 3,605,250 

TOTALS $ 17,8 18,364 $ 39,910,000 $ 57,728,364 -
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TABLE I 
100F II 

BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
SCHEDULE OF BONDED DEBT AND rNTEREST TO MATURJTY 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

18. Local Option Fuel Tax 2007 

Fiscal Principal Total 
Year Interest Total Du, Debt 

Ending Rate Interest Augustl Se,...,icc 

20 1'1 5.00% $ 2,421,750 $ 0 $ 2,421,750 

20 12 5.00"10 2,421,750 0 2,421,750 

2013 5.00"/0 2,421,750 0 2,421,750 

2014 5.00% 2,421,750 0 2,421,750 

2015 5.00"10 2,421,750 0 2,421,750 

2016 5.00% 2,421,750 0 2,421,750 

2017 5.00% 2,421,750 0 2,421,750 

2018 5.00% 2,421,750 0 2,421,750 

2019 5.00% 2,421,750 0 2,421,750 

2020 5.00% 2,421,750 0 2,421,750 

2021 5.00% 2,421,750 0 2,421,750 

2022 5.00% 2,421,750 0 2,421,750 

2023 5.00% 2,421,750 0 2,421 ,750 

2024 5.00% 2,421,750 0 2,421,750 

2025 5.00% 2,421,750 0 2,421",750 

2026 5.00% 2,421,750 0 2,421,750 

2027 5.00% ~,421 ,750 3,410,000 5,831,750 

2028 5.00% 2,251,250 3,580,000 5,831,250 

2029 5.00% 2,072,250 3,760,000 5,832,250 

2030 5.00"/0 1,884,250 3,945,000 5,829,250 

203 J 5.00% 1,687,000 4,145,000 5,832,000 

2032 5.00"10 1,479,750 4,350,000 5,829,750 

2033 5.00% 1,262,250 4,570,000 5,832,250 

2034 5.00% 1,033,750 4,795,000 5,828,750 

2035 5.00% 794,000 5,035,000 5,829,000 

2036 5.00% 542,250 5,290,000 5,832,250 

2037 5.00"10 277,750 5,555,000 5,832,750 

TOTALS $ 54,454,250 $ 48,435,000 $ 102,889,250 

19. Conunercial Paper 

Fiscal Principal Total 
Year Interest Total Du, Debt 

Ending Rale Interest Various Se,...,ice 

2011 0.98% $ 62,840 $ 38],000 $ 445,840 

2012 0.98% 43,181 2,349,000 2,392,181 
2013 0.98% 6,908 3,904,000 3,910,908 

TOTALS S 112,929 S 6,636,000 $ 6,748,929 

20. Capital Lease Conunitments 

Fiscal Present Value Of Total 
Year Interest Total Future Minimum Debt 

Ending Rate interest Lease Payments Service 

2011 4.43% $ 3,474 $ 86,488 $ 89,962 

2012 4.43% 54 10,171 10,225 

TOTALS $ ],528 $ 96,659 $ 100,187 
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TABLE I 
II OF II 

BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
SCHEDULE OF BONDED DEBT AND rNTEREST TO MATURITY 

SEPTEMBER 30, 20 10 

COMPONENT UNITS 

I. Note Payable - Titusville-Cocoa Airport Authority 

Fiscal Principal Total 
Year Interest Total D" Debt 

Ending Rate Interest Monthly Service 

20 11 4.370% $ 61,920 $ 161,052 , 222,972 
2012 4.3700'10 54,691 168,281 222,972 

2013 4.370% 47,188 175,784 222,972 
20 14 4.370% 39,350 183,622 222,972 

20 15 4.370% 31,163 191,809 222,972 

2016 4.370% 22,6 11 200,36 1 222,972 
2017 4.370% 13,678 209,294 222,972 

2018 4.370% 4,286 199,670 203,956 

TOTALS S 274,887 $ 1,489,873 $ 1,764,760 

2. Note Payable - Titusville-Cocoa Airport Authority 

Fiscal Principal Total 
Year Interest Total 1)", Debt 

Ending Rale Interest Monthly Service 

20 11 2.500% $ 1,559 $ 7,906 $ 9,465 
2012 2.500% 1,359 8,106 9,465 
2013 2.500% 1,154 8,31 1 9,465 
2014 2.500% 94' 8,521 9,465 
2015 2.500% 129 8,736 9,465 
20 16 2.500% 508 8,957 9,465 
2017 2.500% 28 1 9, 184 9,465 
20 18 2.500% 51 6,253 6,310 

TOTALS $ 6,591 $ 65,974 $ 72,565 
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STATISTICAL SECTION 

This part of Brevard County's comprehensive annual financial report presents 
detailed infonnation as a context for understanding what the infonnation in the 
financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary infonnation says 
about the government's overall financial health. 

Financial Trends 

These schedu les contain trend information to help the reader understand how the 
government's financial performance and well-being have changed over time. 

Revenue Capacity 

These schedu les contain information to help the reader assess the government's 
most significant local revenue source, the property tax. 

Debt Capacity 

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of 
the government's current levels of outstanding debt and the government's ability 
to issue additional debt in the future. 

Demographic and Economic Information 

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader 
understand the environment within which the government's financial activitie~ 
take place. 

Operating Information 

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader 
understand how the infonnation in the government's financial report relates to 
the services the government provides and the activities it performs. 

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the infonnalion in these schedules is derived from the 
comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year. 
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2010 2009 

Govemnumw ..,tiyiti .. , 

In_ted in capill.llSSCIS, 
net of Klated debt S 451,~ 14 ,5l S S 414,792,821 

Restricted 203,103,652 232,528,570 
Unrestricted 26,350,488 36,760,646 

Total govcrnm.nw ""ivin., .... use\3 S 636,9681618 $ 684,0&21°31 

D ... inus-oype ..,1iYibCS 
Invested in capial lSsets, 

net of related d<:bc $ 1&2,539,539 S 179,938,805 
Re:ltricled )3,178, 114 n,OH,8s) 
UnKstricted 42,464, 150 42,803,907 

~ 
~ Total busir'l<$>-t)'pe actiyilia ... t ....... $ 258.781 18(;3 $ 25417781565 

l'rimuy_n. 
Inve~(ed in capill.l lSSrtS, 

.... of rel • • ed deb! S 640,05-4,077 $ 594,731,626 
Restricted 236,881,&26 264,564,423 
Unrestricted 68,814,638 79,564,553 

ToW pnomry go .. """"n!"., .... 11 $ 945,750,541 $ 9)8,860,602 

200. 

S 374,045,514 
238,771,991 
53,639,095 

S 666,456,660 

S 174,307,331 
30,822,983 
46,749,207 

S 251,8791521 

$ 548.352,905 
269,594,974 
100,38&,302 

S 918,336;18l 

BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
NET ASSETS BY COMPONENT 

LAST TEN FISCAl YEARS 

2007 2006 

S )25.252,032 S 213,403,121 
241,047,075 223,845,927 
68,490,]17 65,702,595 

$ 634,789).84 S 562;951 1643 

$ 161,409,8&3 S 146,410,947 
28,701,257 30,035,221 
55,344,723 58,008)51 

$ 2451455,863 $ 234,454.519 

$ 486MI,915 $ 419,814,068 
269.748.312 253,881.148 
123,834,900 123,710,946 

$ 88°12451147 $ 7971406;162 

Table I 

Fi$Ca1 Year 
200, 200< 200) 2002 2001 

S 236,99 1,969 S 221,191,523 S 200,449,964 S 158,366,))4 S 144,114,264 
156,678,644 ]21,668,781 91,834,5]4 85,343,377 72,&27,624 
45,916,052 20,678,597 12,055,744 12,~8,964 21,269,426 

$ 4391586M5 $ 3(411385)0 1 S 3(4)4°1222 S 2761258,675 $ 244,211)14 

$ 134,132,019 $ 12l,908,511 $ 118,518,962 $ 113,088,582 $ 101,505,540 
29,062,459 27,755,710 . 29,558,810 30,817,188 29,759,976 
50,011,043 52,393,072 44,222,323 39,542,972 40,932,998 

S 213,205,521 $ 204,057,293 $ 192,300,095 $ 183 .. 4481742 $ 178,198,514 

$ 311,123,988 $ 345,700,034 $ 318,968,926 $ 271,454,916 $ 251.619,804 
185.741.](13 149.42","91 121.393.324 116.160,565 102,587,600 
95,927,095 13,011,669 56,278,067 72,091,936 68,202,424 

$ 652.792,186 $ 5681196,194 $ 496,640,3 17 S 459,707,411 $ 422,4091321 



Tab!e 2 

BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

f iscal Year 
2010 "'" "". "'" , ... "'" """ """ "., '''''' Elptasa 

~rnmental Activi,~ 

Gene~ lo ... m"",n' S 9'1.522)58 S 108.002.509 
, 

110.574.906 S 106.172,376 S 96,68 2,297 S 89.997,926 S 86,370,772 S n,963,06O s 78,421,836 S 76,202,503 
Public safety 171,S88,S60 172,002,673 116):21,887 161,719,457 146,183,608 136,380,175 126,390,702 115,244,446 107)89,676 94,$43,856 
Physial en viron"",n, 12,880.096 7,778.655 " I.1n,778 8,411.598 4,551,562 8,326,257 5,921,673 1,582,089 
TlUSportll,iOll 35,410,193 34,319,606 32,990,3% 38,431.190 23,152)60 22,164,786 
Eeooomic environment 17,537,958 21):21.106 15,509,627 
HIIJI\aIlS<1"ii«$ 33,15 1,&40 42,533):16 45,121,671 
Cuhu,e and ,caealion 50,289,9<17 67.935,340 54,156,711 
In,t"$! on Iong·,um debt 14,89<I,3J4 15,795,&49 13,308,795 

Total govm>m.ntal "",;vilies exporues S 435,515,326 S 450,880,728 S 

Business-lype •• ".nses; 

~ 
SoI,,1 WIlSIe S 33,375):47 

'" Wa1cr Rcsoun:es 30,762,352 
TlonS;1 Services 11,793,629 
Counly . ...;,x gelf COIIf'SoQ 4,061,313 

TOtal busi.nCS$·!ypc .. tivitie, •• pon= S 79,992,601 

TotaIl"imary government .~"ses S 5 15,561,927 

Pr"" am reveftu"" 
Go ... mmtnllJ ac,ivilles: 

Char"", for ""rvitts 
Genua! 8ovemmen, S 37,834,740 S 49,904,817 S 59.024.702 S 65,714,568 S 69,006,706 S 65,522,606 S SO,2]l,867 S 46,867,304 , 39,828,388 S 36,307,694 
Public ",rely 44,135,970 41,595,460 46,519.294 44,801,651 38,662.327 44.269,156 42,235,033 34,175,418 31,120,186 26):49,724 

T ....... pona'ion 9,997,235 12,666,629 15,501.505 12,210,302 12,241,878 9,986,389 10,694)50 10,224,]65 7,607,614 5,910,644 
Hum .. servias 4)38,0]4 8,937,228 15,659,506 137,411 645,106 105,013 39<1,100 
Other .. ,i.i,i .. 8,258,610 6,86],062 6)31)56 6,187,894 5,&04,97S 

Opt""in, ~IS O<Id ""nlribution> (6)00,248 34,981,618 
Capi,al "anlS and contributioru 26271 ,113 6,331,96] 

Total Kov<mmental "",ivitie> pro""", .. venu .. S 171,136030 S 152,062,302 



Business-type ..:1ivit~: 
0..,., .. for S<1Vices 

Solid Wl$te , 36~(}2,71 9 , 36,390)78 , 31.081, 187 36,514,71 4 lI,092~20 , 33)81,132 , 32,776,740 30,000,816 , 21,262,588 , 26,916,439 
Willer ResoIIr= 29,~S7)39 19,)58.823 21,828,552 26,S21,187 26,021,61 4 24)39,J.60 H,01),606 22,916,096 22,3l4)00 21,nS,6S3 
Other activities 4,188,740 4,622,7]<1 4.606,444 5,144,135 5,091,417 4,792~81 5~68,176 6,053,91) 6~5),634 6,205.760 

Opo""in, trmU and COIIttibutions 7.959.947 6.532.552 7)62.629 6.723.361 , 10,743,031 2,591,151 2,476.IIS 2.519.91l 
c.,illl trm" and COIIttibutions 3,507,1Kl4 S,473,945 9.050,S75 10,935.462 1~,321,121 15,617,726 12,9l4 568 12,450,529 

Total b\!s;ness-type ""tivit~ program re""n ... , , 8 1 <!16~49 , 82,378,332 , 35,9J0287 , 85,838,660 , 87,122,6&6 , 77 181,702 , 72~61~OS 
, 69,928~ 

Total primary lOOW\men, program """Rues , 259M2,579 , 242,129)41 , 257)44
1
391 , 27 1$)4.0S4 , 239,184,988 , 214?16)l1 , lt9,295,132 , 171 1201,586 

NOI([Iptn..,) R ... nue 
Qo""mIMRlIllICtiviti .. , (1S7,8J9~96) , (287,032,011) (29S,718,468) , (165)15,534) , (114,954)28) , (17S,91 8,745) , (168,112,195) 
Busi....",..type aclivil;" I,J23,948 (1,111,9301 Q~06,641l 1,572,600 S,240,688 114,285 2,196,441 
Total primary COWTIlIMnt net e~p""'" , (2S6,5IU48) , \288,804,968) , (:198 12S,I(9) , F6M42,934) , (I79? 13,640) , {l7S18()o\146O} , (16S,916)41) 

G<n. rat Rt""nu .. Ind O'horChug .. 1. Nff A'''II 
Qo""rnmenlll aclivi,i .. : 
,~ 

Ad valor.m Wl .. , levied for ,eneral purp»eS 176,218~55 , 201,415,673 , 214,164,082 , 223,220,998 , 193,979,413 , 167,436,179 , 155,(92)75 , 1l9,2H,67S , 125,739,657 , 112)88,979 
Ad valorem lUes, levied for debe semce 16,225,677 22,232,699 13,SOl,006 16,964,702 16,700,533 21)5 1,123 20,716,835 lMn,53O 17,)00,433 1,0<13,979 
Communi<a1im service IU 8,163,244 8)75,783 9,H5,706 9,605,175 8,988,619 7)11,546 2,177,102 2)63.697 2,171,190 1,760,314 
Local option gas II>< 7,~90,170 7.521, 127 7,S41,75S 8,088,415 1,970,851 8,22J,931 7,742,001 7,$4],60] 7,291.900 7)04,195 
TO)IIriSi IU 7,925,&66 8,001,683 8,513,461 8,721,852 8,SII,892 7,335,377 6,1l1,S98 S,451,4S3 5,312,656 5,483,150 

"' .. 526,~88 S61~32 599,825 , , , , , , , 
Star. shared .. """ues(unrcsttiaedj 27,917,n6 28.053)70 3O,S73.1 07 33,205)97 3S,668)23 34,816,1t6 31,S28,611 29.SII,OSI 28,130,318 26,91),9)0 
In'erest income 5,952,622 10,941,426 19,161,675 27,543,450 11,702,480 7,349,)43 ),79(,491 5,255,302 8)35,082 14,701,112 

~ MiKellon..,... 10,612,029 17,157,315 16,814,169 16,192,969 11, 191,159 10,}70,106 1,lll,0}} 6,841,351 4,010,499 6,658,141 
~ Gain On Ill. oak of capital ....u , , , , , , , , , 

Tran.fers ( I 153,5001 349,476 
Toto.! ",..,mmental oocUvi,ies , 197,L3U3S , 183,.\.04 036 

Ousin""type activiti .. : 
In .. ,... i_ , 1,198,118 , 2.140~44 , 4,636,661 , 6,3 17.203 4.932,633 , 2,224)46 , 1,49S.681 , 2,107,078 , 3,~84)40 , 7,85S,009 
Miscellaneous U4,J42 429,331 782,602 8S2,44) 922.632 1~19,265 796,)47 536,289 498.203. 391)88 
Gain OR Ill. sal. of capilli 8S$dS , , , ~78,960 , , , , , , 
Transfm 396,190 2,322,830 },411,036 1,925,057 20171109 1,151,'00 (l49,476) 

Totalbusineu-type act;";lies , 2,679,150 .,892,4(}S , 8,830~ 
, 9,513,661 , 7,873,074 , 5,135 ,943 , 7,902,921 

Total primary 10000ment , 263 ,4051287 , 309.549:800 , 336,2161143 , 351 1904,464 , 307.568.605 , , 202,2741"8 , 191,406,957 

Chnlq in Nff AudJ 
Governmental ICliv;li .. , 2,886,641 , 17,625.]77 , 31,667,)76 , 77,llS~67 , 83,1109,797 , 75,447.164 , S5,582,742 , 28,817,256 , 21)20,090 , IS,391,241 
BU$i~.type aclivities , , 9,148228 12,225,403 8,851 ,353 
Total poimary ,o""mment , 84159S:992 , 67,8()8.1~5 , J7l'>681;lR 



2010 2009 
FunClionlProgram 
Governmenlal Activities : 

General government S 66,2~6,945 S ~6,928,749 S 
Public $3.fety 52,304,154 48,075,978 
PhYJical envirorunent 21,533,343 6,929,159 
TranspofbtiQII 16,593,717 25,414,)45 
E«Inomic enviroruru:nt 5,957,258 5,723,983 
Human services 8,765,231 9,052,913 
Culture and rlXTClltion 6,325,382 7,625,782 

~ 
~ T "lal govemm~ntallCtivitiC$ S 171,736,030 S 159,150,909 S 

BusinC$'·type ,ctivit;C$: 
Solid Waste S 37.251,]66 S 37,141,068 S 
Waler Resources 31,054,41 I 32,743,344 
Transit Services 10,070,939 9,072,489 
County-wide golf eour$C$ 2,940,033 3,421,43 1 

Tota! business-type activil;C$ S 81,316,549 S 82,378,332 S 

Total primary government S 259,052,579 S 242,129,241 S 

BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
PROGRAM REVENUES BY fUNCnONIPROGRAM 

LAST leN ASCAL YEARS 

Fisul Year 
200. 2007 2006 200' 

62,3~6,577 S 68,567,555 S 70,756,037 S 76,097,631 
52,L93,590 48,5 18,909 44,575,496 48,890,820 
8,047,48S 10,604,306 10,939,949 ]3,989,349 

26,220,416 21,924,528 22 ,6 19,317 19,356,947 
6,813,921 12,687,756 13,542,626 5,160,976 

10,913,224 17,926,588 26,275.755 11,725,370 
5,268,78S 5,435 ,552 6,010,141 

171,814,004 S 135,665,]94 S ]8 1,23 1,234 

39,061,814 S 38,220,174 S 41,176,543 S 48,838,235 
32,.146,121 36,0 15,831 40,279,524 35,068,65 I 
11 ,098,812 8,109.551 8,663,549 7,744,083 
3,323,640 3,493,304 3,768,428 2,964,687 

85,930,387 S 85,838,860 S 93,888,044 S 94,61!i,656 

257,744.391 S 271,504,054 S 290,367,019 S 275,84M90 

Table 3 

200< 2093 2002 200 1 

S 55,742 .032 S 48,004,8 11 S 41,408,521 S 37,942,941 
48,699,129 37.401,OL8 34,641.124 30,804,139 
4,3]6,402 9,437,]22 7,463,659 5,815,917 

23,856,344 29,333,OSl 15,753,677 13,979,732 
7,874,0]4 5,846,120 7,060,246 6,671.949 
5,397,134 2,721,493 2. 129,840 1,671 ,683 
6,177,247 4,791,420 8,576,860 4,386,931 

S 152,062)02 S 137,535,035 S 117,033,927 S 101,273,292 

S 4 L,505,103 S 3 L,692,3 12 S 30,0] 1,446 S 28,771,688 
33,38],289 32,424,204 31,001,54 1 29,314,889 

9,3IH65 10,430,661 8,407,409 8,817,979 
2,920,629 2,634,525 2,840,809 3.013,738 

S 87,122,686 S 71,181,702 S 72,26 1,205 S 69,928,294 

S 239, 184,988 S 2 14 ,716,731 S 189,295,132 S 171,201,586 



2010 2009 
General fund: 
Reserved • 3,982,9~~ • 4,443,2~8 • Unreserved , 34, 153,423 
Total General fund • 38,596,681 $ 

All Other Governmental Funds: 
~ R=rv~d • 4,526,869 • 4,436,542 • '" Unreserved, reponed in 

Special revenue funds 193.977.328 216,198,961 
Debt service funds 6,943,666 13,995,990 
Capital projects funds 59,752,739 75,441,629 

Total all other 
governmental funds • 265,200,602 • 310,0731122 • 

BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Fiscal Year 
200' 2007 2006 200. 

4,211 ,464 • 3,4~9,98} • 2,317,38~ • 2,~4J,828 

49,565,902 49,675,230 45,406,695 3 1,690,470 
53,777,366 • 53,135,215 $ 47.724,080 • 34,234,298 

4,173,446 S 3,172,996 • 2.329,024 • 3,512,845 

223,719,243 232,559.061 186.881,423 1 18,985,469 
13,497,7 19 11,802.985 10.914,378 9,211,938 
91,003,389 166,715,060 101,554,410 130,073,129 

333,3931797 • 414115°1102 • )01 16791235 • 261 17831381 

Table 4 

"'" 2003 2002 200 1 

$ 2,880,444 • 1,910,508 • 3,748,808 • 4,142,505 

10,214,323 9,324,1~0 13,089,758 19,869,306 

• 13.094,767 • 1l,234,6~8 • 16,8]8,566 • 241°11,811 

• 3,483,536 • 3,80 1.333 • 3.335,9 16 • 2,861,205 

97,880,186 91,280,951 90,535,230 84,~66,218 

9,9 19,313 5,347,462 5,489 ,4~4 8,637,164 

71,277,623 79,407,470 91,010,739 82,397,OlJ 

• 1821560,658 • 1791837,216 • 190,371 1339 • 178
1
461 1620 



2010 200' 
R\'V.p~ •• 

7u~ • 217,226,691 • 246,171,402 • 
Penn its, fees and ",,:cia! 

~mtnts 4ti,108,164 S2,3&4,517 

Inlergovt'mmenWl\'V.n.....s 88,621,547 69,160,685 
Owges for ~ .... ices 55,018,218 61,597,501 

Fi .... and fOOeits 1,441,235 4,951,609 

Misocllaneout .cvt'n,.., 16,294,I2{I 19,Oll, l40 

'" 
Tout re>'cnutS S 426,777,175 S 45 3,480,874 • 

0 
E.pondilu ... 

(Jcne,al Ito"emrncn! • 9 1,109,108 S 102,I3J,510 S 
Public ufel)' 170,134,961 169,258,120 

PJ.ysicat .nyilon""",! 18,201,664 ll,7ll,746 

T"""'porIalion 41,989,047 48,488,228 

Ecor.omic ClWironrnent 13.532,70 1 12,951,456 

Humansc: .... ica 2l,1S6,372 22,998,737 

Culture and f«I'Ution ~1,03],294 52,R7l,8J5 

tntergovt'rIInIffital 14,618,2&4 8,276,992 

Capital ouU")' 19,327,685 22,IJJ ,042 

Debt sc: .... icc' 

Principal 25,686,254 24,859,888 

tntel~ 15,757,811 16,844 ,098 

ToLa! e~pend;ture5 S 478.$51,161 S 492,531,652 • 
Excess (deficiency) of """"»e5 

over (under) e"penditurcs • (5I,n},9S6) S (39,050,778) • 

BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Fisc;l l Ycar 

2008 2007 2006 2005 

263,803,844 5 266,601, 141 5 236,15 1,377 5 211,459,$62 • 
63,OI8,~9 68,294,511 70,184,916 SI,718,&40 

65,930,&46 73,524,663 aD,964,769 n,778,872 

61,027,522 71,34 1,382 74,093,620 82,386,918 

S,9SI,829 6,034,243 6,087,778 2,OaD,246 
29,933,566 36,678,048 30,769,396 15,379,318 

496,665,956 S 522,473,9!8 S 498,151,856 S 446,803,5$6 • 
106,659,131 5 106,792 ,480 S 95,806,070 • 9O,Jl3,495 • 
175,756,046 167,563,m 150,112,395 141,407,787 

ll ,974,163 11 ,188,127 0,870,324 29,479,490 
50,128,588 Sl,I22,I07 48,569,515 40,986,138 

17,172,9016 22,772,702 16,903,757 10,376,895 

21,723,200 21,487,454 21,120,538 19,427,709 

5~,816.579 55,274,713 47,aD2,383 42,3JO,607 

18,314,717 21,6lS,564 23,695,982 0 
83,512,115 19,2J4,I87 44,15.,897 30,025,304 

26,282,361 26,843,4)3 22,327,S44 20,189,051 

17,953,069 13,507,816 11,403,043 

586,292,9!5 • 497,871,221 S 435,959,519 S 

(89,626,959) • ( 18,870,936) • 9aD,635 S 10,844,0)7 S 

Table 5 

2004 2003 2002 200 1 

192,1 19,911 • 173,117,978 S 158,039,321 S 134,S8 1,3 17 

37,805,284 J4,339,30l 3O,O22,164 ' 1',904,622 

63,277,289 54,242,352 60,710,765 $6,576,507 

62,984 ,179 57,921,420 49,818,7&4 46,379,945 

5,oJ5,027 5,333,944 4,873,687 3,5(7,005 

10,261,636 11,011,344 14,630,556 19,503,704 

371,683,326 S 336,028,}46 S 318,095,457 S 285,763,100 

86,5&4,539 S 84,39 1,262 S 76,932,173 S 69,570,336 

127,298,m 117,272,996 107,878,916 901,999,654 

7,5 18,385 8,479,107 11,722,485 1],9016,157 

32,239,329 ll,48 1,J89 27,630,103 JO,775,09O 

12,725,355 11,652, 116 10,202,005 10,481,869 

19,515,009 17,407,272 17,659,05} 14,]41,429 

37,847,900 35,680,930 JJ,269,460 29.5n,037 
0 0 0 0 

16,721,2901 19,899,699 2 1,680,199 9,603,734 

17,162,091 17,962,068 13,711 ,390 11,650,384 

9,288,328 10,505,371 11,765,308 8,963,326 

366,881,002 S ]56,732,0 10 S 332,451,092 S 293,909,016 

4,802.324 • (20,703,664) S (1 4,155,635) S (8,1 45,9 16) 



0 1bor Fiua<iac Sou. en ud (tisa) 

Transfers in , 42,146,212 , 47,966,Sn , 60,635,610 , 64.124,163 , 41,958,276 , 45,687,~21 , 25,901,212 , 31,484 ,503 , H,862,228 , 20,386,45 1 

Transfers out (39,741,352) (50,219,401) (S7,199,~36) (66,249,820) (43,976,085) (46,613,(42) (26,867,H7) (30,261.410) (33,233,622) (20,036,915) 

Proceeds oftbe sale of 
capital_IS 3.341,OSl 2,017,917 444,801 690,8&3 943.022 3.)70,129 0 0 0 0 

lnsuranee ",ocecds 265,142 21S,216 444,615 769,810 319.229 1,001,066 0 0 0 0 
C. pitallcucs i=ed 0 0 0 414,750 210,518 786,nO 0 1.100,000 14,068 21.013 
Refunding bonds issued 3.897,816 0 0 0 0 25,525,000 0 16,370,000 34,899.5S] 1,070,000 
Capital relaled debt issued 0 0 3,313,019 Ill,an,OOO 52,176,000 8],8]0,000 3,179,415 2,176,000 17, 192,911 1S,820,000 
Bond premi"'" 0 0 0 4,128,60 986,980 1,850,808 0 116,605 882,209 ,";<n 
Bond di$COunl 0 0 0 0 0 (9,743) 0 0 0 (m,ll1) 
Plym('l'l( lO bond ",funding 

acr"", ogonl p,880,618) 0 0 0 0 (26,441,841) 0 (16,105,8631 (34,829,595) (1,24 1,259) 

Total othet financing 
sourc"" (uses) , 6.034,213 , (89,631) , 1,638,675 , 131,956,029 , 52,678.000 , 88,980,828 , 2.919,400 , 4,879,8lS , 18.787,758 , 75,541 .380 

Spo:<:iol item: 
Proceeds nom sal. of land 0 0 0 1,60<1,125 0 0 0 0 0 0 

~ Net change in fund bIolancc. , (4S.7)9,n3) , fl9 .1 4O,(15) , (81,988.284) , 120.689.818 , 5),658,635 , 99.824,865 , 7.721.724 , (15,82J,a29) , 4,432, 12] , 67.)95,464 

D<bt ~rvicc .. . percentage 
of non capital expellditures 9.8% 9.5% 9.6% 9.4% 8.6% 8.4% 7.8% ' '''' 8.m 7.8% 

C"f)ilal.xpetldi ...... , 51,929.825 , 54,495,3 17 , 126.432.112 , 80.6n.840 , 81,774,298 , 61,3lS,014 ,. 29,876,759 , 40,167,883 , 37,936, 196 , 28,8S7,850 
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BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
TAX. REVENUES BY SOURCE (I) 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

General. Saies Motor Franchise 
Fiscal Property And Fuel FeeslService 
y,~ Tax (2) Use Tax (2) Tax (3) Tax (2) 

2001 $ 112,388,979 $ 12,688,045 $ 7,379,171 $ 8,896,829 
2002 125,739,657 12,604,556 7,526,175 9,505,334 
2003 139,235,675 12,996,056 7,712,965 10,470,515 
2004 155,492,375 13,873,600 8,099,826 10,73 1,975 
2005 167,436,879 15,559,309 8,506,595 19,743,734 
2006 193,979,483 16,482,743 8,348,642 24,726,195 
2007 223,220,998 16,810,267 8,336,871 25,092,675 
2008 2 14,164,082 16,062,223 8,002,409 24,338,340 
2009 199,675,058 15,522,810 7,792,301 24,239,238 
2010 193,111,708 15,416,037 7,719,502 22,336,079 

(I) This table includes General and Special Revenue Funds only. 

(2) The ad valorem property taxes, sales and use taxes, and communications services 
tax were combined "for financial statement presentation and disclosed by fund type as taxes. 
Franchise fees are reported as penn its, fees and special assessments. 

(3) The motor fuel tax is disclosed in the Special Revenue Fund entitled County Transportation Trust 
as intergovernmental revenues. 

Table 6 

Total 

$ 141,353,024 
155,375,722 
170,415,211 
188,197,776 
211,246,517 
243,537,063 
273,460,811 
262,567,054 
247,229,407 
238,593,326 



Table 7 

BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 

ASSESSED PROPERTY VALUATION 

LAST TEN YEARS 

(Unaudi ted) 

ToW Residential Non-Residential Taxable ToW Pertmtagc Of 
A-=d Tax Exempt Sa~ Our Homes o.ha ToW Taxable Taxable A...- Direct Taxable Value To 

y~ Valuation ~ l l Pro~ies Pl EllemE!ions Pl Exeml!tions ~4 1 ElIemE! Valuation Valuation Valuation Tax Rille ~51 Assessed Valuc 

2001 S 34,704,7&4,463 S 11 ,423,7H,810 S 1,231,34~,5 1 0 S 3,733,351,689 S 16,381,413,009 S 12,416,OS9,99O S S,900,3 11 ,464 S 11,3 16,371 ,454 14.7888 '2.8% 
2002 37,939,112,996 12,465,716,300 1,864,829,6 10 3,865,259,077 18,195,804,987 13,67' ,170,660 6,068,137,349 19,743,308,009 14.9450 52.0% 
2003 4 1,999,813,364 12,754,590,682 3,159,84~,030 1,997,94 1,733 19,9 12,377,445 IS,'38,38 I,900 6,S49,054,0 19 22,087,435,9 19 14.7397 52.6% 
21104 46,718,362,194 11,890,393,490 5,364,496,990 4,128,S I2,374 21 ,383,402,854 18,293,380,360 7,041 ,578,980 2S,334,9S9,340 14.0977 54.2% 

200' ~9,H2,6 1 6,688 13,475,89 1,630 10,759,83 1,530 4,276,649,5 18 28,5 12,372,678 23,445,902,400 7,614 ,341,6 10 31,060,244,010 13.2880 52. 1% 
2006 72,615,041 ,333 14,082,163,410 14,584,756,080 4,S72,19O,597 33,239,110,087 30,324,900,480 9,051,030,766 39,375,93 1 ,2~6 13.1045 54.2% 
2007 71,40S,674,842 14,S6O,958,49O 11,167,29S,930 4,703,9 12,648 30,432,167,068 31,S 11,715,280 9,46 1,722,494 40,973,507,774 12.6023 57.4% 

'" 200. 68,54 1,534,744 13,816,343,500 8,277,7~6,69O 8,434,018.823 30,~28.119,O13 28,072,936,6 13 9,940,479,118 38,0 13,4 15,731 12.7875 55.S% 
w 

2009 59,186,483,459 13,243,055,074 4,334,280,660 8,278,538,866 25,855,874,600 24,144,455,260 9,186, 153,S99 33,330,608,859 12.6S84 56.3% 
2010 5 1 ,669,4~9,081 12,708,133,950 1 ,851 , 10~,830 8,021 ,209,609 22,~80,449.389 21,2}0,358,280 7,858,651,4 12 29,089,009,692 13.3282 56.3% 

( I) The B/tVard County Property Appraiser shall assess all property at markel Of just value. In arriving at just valuation U K:qu im:! under s. 4 Aniele VII of the Stale ConstilUtion, 

the property Appniser lakes into CQI1Sickration the factors enumerated in Section 193.011, Florida Statute$.. 
(2) Govemmcntal, Institutional and Economie Development ElIemptions. 
(3) "Save 0Uf Homes" (FS 193.155), limits annual inaeases in property value assc.wnents on rea.l property qualify inSIllld ru:eivin& the homestead CJ>Icmption. 
(4) Other exemptions (ic, $SO,OOO homc:sIead acmption -in~ from 525,000 in 2008, DisabilitylBlind, WidowsIWidowcrs, and age 65 &. older). 
(5) InI;ludes only the Countywide Tax Rm from Table 8. 

Source: Brevard County Properly Appraiser 



Table 8 

BREVARD COUNTY, FLORlDA 
PROPERTY TAX RATES - ALL DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS 

(MILLS PER $1,000 OF ASSESSED VALUE) 
LAST TEN YEARS 

(Unaudited) 

2010 200' 2008 2007 2006 200' 2004 2003 2002 2001 

County-Wide 
Brevard Counl)' 5.2249 4.5211 4.6762 4.62 10 4.9370 4.8245 5.4032 5.8342 5.8395 5.6 143 
Brevard County School District 7.6530 7.6870 7.6610 7.53 10 7.6670 7.9630 8.1940 8.4050 8.6050 8.6740 
SI. Johns River Water Management 0.4158 0.4] 58 0.4158 0.4]58 0.4620 0.4620 0.4620 0.4620 0.4620 0.4620 
F]orida Inland Navigation District 0.0345 0.0345 0.0345 0.0345 0.0385 0.0385 2·Q~85 0.0~85 2·2~8~ 0.0385 

Total County-Wide 13.3282 12.6584 12.7875 12.6023 13.1045 13.2880 14.0977 14.7397 14.9450 14.7888 

Qi~tri£1:i (Ex~lugin& Ci!i~l (!) 
~ District I 4.1446 3.7449 3.7642 3.8564 3.9600 5.8702 6.2778 6.5301 6.53 18 6.5153 
~ District II 3.0268 2.7488 2.6433 2.6470 2.6555 4.3888 4 .3295 4 .7024 4 .7076 4.7678 

Dislri t t HI 2.9026 2.65 12 2.5546 2.6065 2.5865 4.3537 4.6863 4.9205 4.7075 4.7780 
Distritt IV 6.4259 3.2494 3.1528 3.2455 3.3304 5.1777 5.6049 5.7899 5.7928 5.8769 
Distritl V 2.9745 2.6787 U821 2.6374 2.7039 4.4641 4 .7984 4.9963 4.7833 4.8491 

Ci.Jl£! 
Capc Canaveral 4.0739 3.067 1 3.067 1 2.78 16 3.0000 3.0000 3.3740 3.4564 2.7064 2.0040 
C~. 4.9662 4.4891 4.4891 4.489 1 4.5705 4.8026 4.8074 4.5228 4.4068 4.4068 
Co<:oa Bead\ 4.5000 4.0000 3.7 186 3.4642 3.5800 4.1000 4.5000 4.7800 4.8900 5.0374 
Grant,Vlllkaria 1.0000 1.0000 0.4976 0.426 1 0.0000 00000 0.0000 00000 0.0000 0.0000 
Indialantic 6.0698 5.5374 4.9810 4.33 13 4.3313 4.6203 4.845\ 5.0089 5.0089 4.3451 
Indian Harbour Beach 5.4077 4.7697 4.2037 4 .0118 4.3675 4.7050 4.9733 4.9765 4.8545 4 .6900 
Malabar 1.6630 1.66)0 1.4676 L2693 1.3970 1.5994 1.7642 1.7642 1.7642 1.7642 
Melbourne 5.9223 5. ]287 4.4" 1 4.475 I 4 .5081 4.74 15 4.7856 4.7856 4.5228 4.5228 
Melbourne Beach 4.5005 3.9950 2.9543 2.7920 2.7808 3.0443 3.2774 3.7676 3.7959 3.9336 
Melbourne Village 7.0759 6.1796 5.5656 4.5384 4.5384 4.5890 4.5221 4.5224 4.3529 4.0360 
Palm Bay 7.5000 6.8 165 5.3000 4.7429 4.6000 5.9804 6.9900 7.5301 7.6394 7.6563 
Ro<:kledge 5.6500 5.)500 5.3500 4.8 105 4.9500 5.2900 5.7000 5.7000 5.7000 5.7000 
Satellite Beach 8.1439 7.8193 7. 1207 6.1742 '9000 6.3596 6.38 12 6.5953 6.6404 6.5265 
Titusville 6.9] 19 6.3301 5.2694 5.0263 5.1990 6.0591 5.8504 5.8504 5.8504 6.8403 
West Melboume 2.2915 2.2975 1.5899 1,5899 1.5899 1.9344 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 

(I) Brevard County has numerous millage code districts which an: included within Brevard County Commissioner districts. A tax may apply to specific millage codes or may be levied district wide. 

Soun:c: Brevard County Till Collector 



Table 9 

BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS 

CURRENT YEAR AND NfNE YEARS AGO 
(Unaudited) 

2010 2001 

Percentage Percentage 
Taxpayer Tu" orTolal Taxes JUnk Tu" orTolal Taxes .. "" 

Florida Power & Light Company , 7,624,402 1.13% , 6,169,937 1.84% 
Oleander Power Project Ltd 3,282,850 0.49"10 2 
Harris Corporation 2,939,204 0.44% 3 2,750,060 0.82% 3 
AT&T Florida 2,354,264 0.35% 4 4,273,263 1.27% 2 

~ Watmart Stores, Inc. 1,608,872 0.24% , 993,879 0.30% 6 ~ 

Bright House Networks 1,303,924 0.19% 6 
The Viera Company 983,076 0.15% 7 
Florida East Coast Railroad 959,043 0.14% 8 615,401 0.18% 9 
The Home Depot 90 1,557 0.14% 9 
Cape Caribe, Inc. 891 ,614 0. 13% \0 
Reliant Energy Indian River llC 1,803,474 0.54% , 
tnlersit Corp. 2,063,938 0.62% 4 
Canaveral Port Authority 749,390 0.22% 7 
John Hancock Mutual Insurance 625,8 11 0.1 9% 8 
KMC Telcome, Inc. 572,379 .0.17% 10 

Total , 22,848,806 3.40% , 20,6 17,532 6.15% 

Total Taxes , 672,804,957 $ 335,441,678 

Source: Brevard County Tax Collector 



Fiscal 
You 

2001 
2002 
2003 
2004 
200' 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 

S 

Total Levied 

335,44 1,678 S 
370,463,826 
400,800,760 
446,527,253 
546,405,148 
629,314,232 
738,570,256 
750,404,495 
736,464,106 
672,804,957 

BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS (I) 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

Collected within the 
Fiscal Year of the Levy 

Percentage of 
Amount L<"l' 

332,988,082 99.27% 
368,5 I 3,827 99.47% 
397,848,790 99.26% 
445,029,555 99.66% 
545,813,320 99.89% 
628,231,980 99.83% 
736,289,706 99.69% 
748,303,769 99.72% 
730,542,090 99.20% 
670,643,768 99.68% 

Collections in 
Subseguent Yean; 

S 2,447,649 
1,942, 144 
2,942, 197 
1,480,379 

454,894 
93.0,286 

2,027,599 
1,728,900 
4,276,49 1 
N/A ' 

Table 10 

Total Collections to Date 
Percentage of 

Amount L<"l' 

S 335,435,73 1 100.00% 
370,455,971 lOO.O()O/o 
400,790,987 100.00% 
446,509,934 100.00% 
546,268,2 14 99.97% 
629,162,266 99.98% 
738,317,305 99.97% 
750,032,669 99.95% 
734,818,581 99.78% 
670,643,768 99.68% , 

(1) Property taxes are due and payable as of November I and become delinquent on April I. A tax certificate sales is held at the end 
of May on all delinquent real estate taxes, and a lien is placed on the property. 

Source: Brevard Counl}' Tax Collector 
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BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 

RATIOS OF OUTSTANDrNG DEBT BY TYPE 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(Unaudited) 

Governmental Activit ies Bus iness-type Activit ies 

General 
Fi~al Obligation Revenue Capital Revenue 

Y'M Bonds B,,,," Notes L<M~ Bonds Notes 

2001 , 103,825,000 , 108,986,166 , 8,552,000 , 177,141 , 122,730,000 , 1,520,000 
2002 98,225,000 11 6,168,695 12,332,000 92,070 11 7,15S,531 75,000 
2003 91,360,000 112,27 1,096 8,082,000 1,145,425 106,649,825 50,000 
200' 84,170,000 105,103,742 9,202,000 6 13,892 99,287,292 25,000 
200' 136,7 15,000 112,660,929 14,826,000 706,830 9 1,605,287 
2006 127,855,000 151,009,5 12 15,380,000 676,065 83,380,488 
2007 200,660,000 190,335,662 10,556,000 761,232 74,499,338 
2008 188,385,000 180,653,808 9,788,000 460,804 64,706, 192 
2009 175,645,000 170,492,89 1 8,10 1,000 188,833 55,007,109 
2010 162,380,000 (2) JS9,746,739 6,636,000 96,659 48,452,261 

(I) Refer to Table 14 for details of population. personal income, and per capita income, 

(2) Details regarding Brevard County's outstanding debt can be found in Note 13 of the fmancial statements. 

(3) Data unavailable. 

Florida Statutes do nOt provide a legal debt margin for Florida counties. 

, 

Table 11 

Percentage 
Capital of Personal p" 
L=~ Total Inc.ome{12 CaEl:ita 11l 

172,808 , 345,963,115 2.60% , 7Il 
122,5 14 344 ,373 ,810 2.49% '" 69,714 3 19,628,060 2.190/. 629 

14,284 298,4 16,210 1.89% '" 440,098 )56,954,144 2.\00/. '" 430,711 378,73 1,782 2.08% 697 
302,8 16 477,11 5,048 2.53V. 864 
169,039 444,162,843 2.240/. 799 
48,190 409,483,023 2.08% 737 

498,946 377,8 10,605 (3) 679 



General 

Fiscal Obligation 
Y,u Bonds 

2001 , 103,825,000 

2002 98,225,000 

2003 91,360,000 

2004 84, 170,000 

200' 136,715,000 

2006 127,855,000 

2007 200,660,000 

2008 188,385,000 

2009 175,645,000 

2010 162,380,000 

BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 

RATIOS OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(Unaudited) 

Ratio Of Net 

Less: Amounts General 

Available in Debt Net General Bonded Debt To 

Service Fund Bonded Debt (I) Assessed Value (2) 

, 7,122,326 , 96,702,674 0.53% 

3,835,640 94,389,360 0.48% 

6,853,821 84,506,179 0.38% 

8,457,962 75,712,038 0.30"/0 
8,790,427 127,924,573 0.41% 

9,597,779 118,257,221 0.30% 

9,683,575 190,976,425 0.47% 

11,579,221 176,805,779 0.47% 

12,478,413 163, 166,587 0.49% 

6,004,965 156,375,035 0.54% 

Table 12 

Net Bonded 

Debt Per Capita (3) 

, 199.3 1 

191.03 

166.4 1 

145 .20 

240.47 

217.76 

345.90 

317.87 

293.65 

280.90 (4) 

(I) Net General Bonded Debt consists of bonds secured by and payable from ad valorem taxes less amounts available in the re lated 

debt service funds for retirement of those obligations. 

(2) See the Schedule of Assessed Property Valuation for property value data. 

(3) Population data can be found in the Schedule of Demographic Statistics. 

(4) Estimated. 



Table 13-1 

BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
PLEDGED-REVENUE COVERAGE 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Solid Waste Revenue Bonds 
Solid I.e" No< 

Fiscal Waste Operating Available Debt Service 
Yw Revenues Expenses Revenue Prindpal · Interest Coverage 

200 1 , 25,472,374 , 15,239,497 , 10,232,877 , 1,935,000 , 1,064,738 3.41 
2002 24,253,901 16,914,819 7,339,082 2,025,000 975,749 2.45 
2003 24,823,180 16,161,287 8,661,893 3,013,588 763,002 2.29 
2004 27, 182,023 15 ,862,954 11,319,069 2,255,000 708,06 1 3.82 
2005 28,986,917 20,494, 161 8,492,756 2,345,000 609,100 2.87 
2006 31,001,004 22,292,652 8,708,352 2,435,000 503;883 2.96 
2007 31,210,514 23,621,246 7,589,268 2,535,000 395,212 2.59 

'" 
2008 31,172,862 23,280,908 7,89 1,954 2,780,000 251,577 2.60 

~ 2009 27,442,768 20,382,427 7,060,341 2,890,000 112,431 2.35 
2010 26,998,442 16,946,556 10,051,886 1,155,000 22,395 8.54 

Note: Bonds were retired in fiscal year 2010. 

Utili!l: Revenue Bonds 
Waterl ,-,,, No< 

Fiscal Wastewater Operating Available Debt Service 
Year Revenues Expenses Revenue Prindpal Interest Coverase 

2001 S 26,215,113 , 10,409,198 S 15,805,915 , 5,711,700 , 4,062,420 1.62 
2002 27,062,431 10,255,989 16,806,442 4,090,000 3,864,619 2. 11 
2003 27,0 17,703 11,651 ,593 15,366, 110 4,033,996 3,859,491 1.95 
2004 27,641,479 13,724,049 13,917,430 4,345,000 2,875,776 1.93 
2005 27,856,495 13,681 ,967 14,1 74,528 4,545,000 2,649,324 1.97 
2006 3 1,217,294 15,586,66 1 15,630,633 4,765,000 2,398,5 12 2. 18 
2007 28,535,840 18,790,134 9,745,706 5,280,000 2,199,660 1.30 
2008 28,908,428 20,411,676 8,496,752 5,550,000 1,950,3 12 1.1 3 
2009 27,875,048 19,558,899 8,3 16,149 5,840,000 1,494,1 40 1.13 
2010 28,243,590 19,525,92 1 8,7 17,669 6,145,000 1,405,470 Ll5 



Table 13-2 

BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
PLEDGED-REVENUE COVERAGE 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Barefoot BaX Utili!l: Revenue Bonds 
Waterl Less .Net 

Fiscal Wastewater Operating Available Debt Service 
Yw Revenues Expenses Revenue Principal Interest Coverage 

2001 , 2,85 1,272 , 1,397,174 , 1,454,098 , 285,000 , 817,369 1.32 
2002 2,840,872 1,274,543 1,566,329 295,000 808,008 1.42 
2003 2,959,144 1,319,87 1 1,639,273 305,000 797,579 1.49 
2004 2,929,702 1,433 ,673 \,496,029 315,000 786,416 1.36 
2005 3,193,386 1,520,55 1 1,672,835 325,000 774,493 1.52 

~ 2006 3,144,560 1,543,724 1,600,836 340,000 761,688 1.45 
0 2007 3,112,041 1,771,728 1,340,3 13 355,000 751,456 1.21 

2008 3,216,485 2,030,994 1,185,491 365,000 736,268 1.08 
2009 3,356,566 2,065,035 1,291,531 380,000 720,448 1.17 
20 10 3,334,751 1,739,001 1,595,750 400,000 103 , 153 1.45 



fisca l 

Y'M 

2001 
2002 
2003 
200' 
2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 

BREVARD COUNTY, fLORlDA 
PLEDGED-REVENUE COVERAGE 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Guaranteed Entitlement Revenue Bonds 
Guaranteed Lm No< 
Entitlement Operating Available Debe Service 
Revenues EX]2!nses Revenue PrinciEal 

S 1,807,775 , 0 S 1,807,775 , 250,000 , 
1,807,775 0 1,807,775 390,000 
1,807,175 0 1,807,175 4 10,000 
1,807,775 0 1,807,775 425,000 
1,801,175 0 1,807,175 445,000 
1,807,775 0 1,807,175 455,000 
1,807,115 0 1,801,775 480,000 
1,807,175 0 1,807,175 500,000 
1,801,175 0 1,801,175 525,000 
1,807,775 0 1,801,175 5,215,000 

Note: Bonds were refunded by sales tax bonds in fiscal year 20 10. 

Interest 

429,08 1 
417,493 
400,23\ 
382,213 
363,437 
343,73 1 
323,25 1 
30 1,52 1 
218,266 
200,649 

Table 13-3 

Coverage 

2.66 
2 .24 
2.23 
2.24 
2.24 
2.26 
2.25 
2.26 
2.25 
0.33 



Table 13-4 

BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
PLEDGED·REVENUE COVERAGE 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Sales Tax Revenue Bonds 
Less Not 

Fiscal 112 cenl Operating Available Dt:bt Service 
Year Sales Tax Ex~enses Revenue Princi~al Interest Coverase 

2001 , 18,169,982 , 0 , 18,169,982 , 4,035,000 , 3,355,767 2.46 
2002 19,49 1,156 0 19,49 1,156 4,205,000 2,739,142 2.81 
2003 20,595,025 0 20,595,025 6,515,000 3,129,13 1 2.14 
2004 21,694,254 0 21,694,254 5,025,000 2,699,426 2.81 
2005 24,157,449 0 24,157,449 5,565,000 2,630,932 2.95 
2006 24,622,157 0 24,622,157 5,770,000 2,987,688 2.81 
2007 22,644,094 0 22,644,094 5,440,000 2,771,130 2.76 
2008 20,873,214 0 20,873,214 5,915,000 2,573,389 2.46 
2009 19,382,661 0 19,382,661 6, 130,000 2,349,595 2.29 

~ 
N 2010 19,108,808 0 19,108,808 8,445,000 . 2,174,990 1.80 

Note: Bonds were issued in fiscal year 201 O. 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Tourist Tax Revenue Bonds 
Lm Not 

Fiscal Operating Available Debt Service y,,, Tourist Tax Ex~enses Revenue PrinciEa1 Interest Coverage 

200 1 S 1,370,962 S 0 , 1,370,962 , 275,000 , 391,282 2.06 
2002 1,328,164 0 1,328,164 320,000 287,318 2.19 
2003 1,363,113 0 1,363,113 510,000 258,668 1.77 
2004 1,532,900 0 1,532,900 525,000 242,870 2.00 
2005 1,736,56 1 0 1,736,561 545,000 224,806 2.26 
2006 1,702,378 0 1,702,378 560,000 205,3i5 2.22 
2007 1,744,370 0 1,744,370 585,000 183,030 2.27 
2008 1,702,694 0 1,702,694 605,000 159,815 2.23 
2009 1,600,337 0 1,600,337 630,000 134,800 2.09 
2010 1,585,173 0 1,585,173 655,000 108,130 2.08 

Note: Bonds were issued in fiscal year 200 1. 



Table 13-5 

BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
PLEDGED-REVENUE COVERAGE 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Constitutional Gas Tax Revenue Bonds 
L= No< 

Fiscal Constitutional Operating Available Debt Service 
y", Gas Tax EXl!enses Revenue Princi~al Interest Covera,!!;e 

2001 $ 5,033,109 $ 0 $ 5,033,[09 $ 1,180,000 $ 2,048,373 1.56 
2002 5, 11 2,714 0 5,112,7 14 1,230,000 1,995,273 LS9 
200] 5,246,230 0 5,246,230 1,290,000 1,939,923 \.62 
2004 7,385,858 0 7,385,858 1,345,000 1,881 ,873 2.29 
2005 5,819,859 0 5,8 19,859 1,410,000 1,546,458 1.97 
2006 5,647,092 0 5,647,092 1.585,000 1.532.980 1.81 
2007 5,679,062 0 5,679,062 1,660,000 1,458,143 1.82 
2008 5,449,799 0 5,449,799 1,740,000 1,378,988 \.75 
2009 5,3 16,556 0 5,316,556 1.825,000 1,294,288 1.70 

~ 
2010 5,253,028 0 5,253,028 1,915,000 1,205,438 1.68 w 

Note: New bonds issued in fiscal year 2005. 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Local Oetion Gas Tax Revenue Bonds 

",,' No< 
Fiscal Local Option Operating Available Debt Service 
y,~ Gas Tax Exeenses Revenue Principal Interest Coverage 

2001 $ 6,894,103 $ 0 $ 6,894, 103 $ $ 
2002 6,971,848 0 6,971 ,848 
2003 7,215,728 0 7,215,728 

200' 7,385,858 0 7,385,858 
2005 7,795,768 0 7,795,768 
2006 7,540,589 0 7,540,589 2,165,000 1,444,904 2.09 
2007 7,672,914 0 7,672,914 1,525,000 2,309,477 2.00 
2008 7,177,345 0 7,177,345 1,590,000 4,441 ,506 J.J9 
2009 7,187,117 0 7,187, 117 1,640,000 4,389,831 1.19 

.20 10 7,163,994 0 7,163,994 1,705,000 4,324,23 I 1.19 

Note: New bonds were issued in fiscal year 2006 and 2007. 



Table 14 

BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS 

LAST TEN YEARS 
(Unaudited) 

Personal 
Income Per Capita Median School Unemployment y,,, Population ( I) (in thousands) (\) Income (I) Age (3) Enrollment (2) Rate (I) 

2001 485,178 , 13,327,7 16 , 27,432 41.9 (4) 69,793 4.4% 
2002 494,102 13,853,189 28,028 42,2 (4) 70,926 5.7% 
2003 507,810 14,586,155 28,999 42.6 (4) 71,700 5.2% 
2004 521,422 15,785,327 30,597 42.8 (4) 72,704 4.4% 
2005 531,970 16,974,760 32,266 43 .0 (4) 73,491 3.7% 
2006 543,050 18,244,516 34,]61 4].] (4) 74,110 3.4% 
2007 552,109 18,839,369 35,213 43.5 (4) 73,887 4.4% 
2008 556,213 19,862,655 37,035 4].9 (4) 7],480 6.5% 
2009 555,657 19,734,348 (3) 36,793 (3) 44.9 (4) 7],0]0 12.1% 
2010 556,700 (5) (5) 44.9 (4) 72,712 11.9% 

(J) Source: State of Florida Bureau of Labor Market Infonnation. 

(2) Source: Brevard County School Board and Florida Department of Education. 

(3) Source: Brevard County Economic Development Commission. 

(4) Estimated. 

(5) Data Unavailable. 



Employer 

Brevard County School Board 
Harris Corporation 
Health First 
United Space Alliance 
Walmart 
Publix Supermarkets 
Brevard County Board of County Commissioners 
Wuesthoff Health System 
NASA 
U.S. Department of Defense 
Northrop Grumman Corporation 
Boeing Company 

Total 

Total Employees 

BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
PRfNCIPAL EMPLOYERS 

CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO 
(Unaudited) 

2010 
Percentage 

of Total County 
Employees R>nk Employment 

8,800 1 3.73% 
6,300 2 2.67% 
6,300 3 2.67% 
5,100 4 2.16% 
3,400 , 1.44% 
2,800 6 1.19"10 
2,500 7 1.06% 
2,500 8 1.06% 
2,300 9 0.97% 
2,100 I. 0.89% 

42,100 

2~5,94 J (1 ) 

Source: Brevard County Economic Development Commission's most current data 

( I) Preliminary data. 

Table 15 

2001 
Percentage 

of Total County 

Employees 10ml< Employment 

8,127 1 3.61% 
5,000 , 2.22% 
5,456 4 2.42% 
6,300 2 2.80% 

2,336 7 1.04% 
1,980 9 0.88% 
1,871 I. 0.83% 
5,900 3 2.62% 
2,000 8 0.89% 
2,430 6 1.08% 

41.400 

i!:2~ .J44 



Table 16 

BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
FULL TIME EQUIVALENT EMPLOYEES BY PROGRAMJFUNCTION (1) 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Fiscal Year 
2010 2009 20<)8 20<)7 2006 2005 2004 20<)J 2002 20<)1 

ProgramlFunction: 

General Government 
Legislalive and Executive 25.00 27.00 24.00 25.00 27.50 27.00 26.00 29.00 29.00 28.00 
Financial and Administrative 455.00 452.00 459.50 513 .00 515.75 491.00 459.75 461.75 458.25 455.25 
Legal Counsel 12.00 12.00 12 .00 13.00 14.00 14.00 11.00 \4.00 14.00 14.00 
Comprehensive Planning 27.00 33.00 46.00 52.00 56.00 47.00 48.00 48.00 47.00 49.00 
Facilities Maintenance 53.00 53.00 60.00 65 .00 65.00 74.00 70.00 72.00 72.00 72.00 
Court-Related 344.75 373.50 436.50 424.50 407.75 411.50 392.75 427.00 399.75 355.25 

Pubic Safety 
Law Enforcement 
Sworn 821 .00 829.50 8 13.50 740.00 745.00 701.00 675.00 658.00 609.00 558.00 

~ Civil ian 354.00 365.00 342.50 337.00 353.00 340.00 251.00 255.00 256.00 263.00 ~ 

FireIRescue 529.00 534.00 523.00 513 .00 490.50 482.75 467.75 462.50 437.50 433 .25 
Code Enforcement 38.00 45.00 63 .00 75.00 82.00 86.00 73.00 68.00 58.00 57.00 
Emergency Management 14.00 7.00 7.00 8.00 7.00 10.00 11.00 10.00 9.00 9.00 
Medical Examiner 10.50 10.50 10.50 8.50 6.25 8.25 7.00 8.00 6.50 8.25 
School Crossing Guards 18.00 21 .50 21 .00 22.75 18.25 19.25 20.75 19.75 18.75 16.00 

Physical Environment 74.50 79.25 81.75 82.25 93.25 81.25 72.50 70.50 65.25 60.75 
Transportation 216.25 222.75 235.75 231.75 237.75 249.75 240.75 234.75 235.25 225.25 
Economic Environment 24.25 3 1.25 31.25 34.00 34.25 27.50 26.50 28.00 31 .00 31.00 
Human Services 136.50 151.00 145.75' 144.75 151.50 145 .00 132.00 137.25 132.75 110.00 
CulturelRecreation 

Libraries 199.50 231.50 254.50 265.50 277.50 270.50 263.50 263 .75 252.50 239.00 
Parks and Recreation 331.75 350.25 374.50 386.75 346.50 318.75 302.50 298.75 270.00 '240.75 

Solid Waste 137.75 136.50 146.50 146.50 144.50 138.25 136.50 138.00 134.50 136.50 
Water/Wastewater 149.50 155.00 159.25 155.25 150.50 148.50 150.50 155.50 152.25 146.00 
GolfCoUIses 16.00 24.00 24.75 22.50 23.50 20.50 19.75 22.50 18.75 23.75 
Transit Services 96.00 103.75 102 .50 98.75 90.00 79.00 73.50 78.00 65 .50 63.75 

Total 4,083.25 4,248.25 4,375.00 4,364.75 4,337.25 4,190.75 3,931.00 3,960.00 3,772.50 3,594.75 

(1) Source: County payro!! records 



2010 

General Government: 

Number of Building Pmnil5 Reviewed and Issued 9,866 

NumberofRegistered Voters 356,nO 

Public Safety: 

Physical Am:s15 by Sheriff's Department 14,713 

In<:ic!enl5 responded to by FirelReseue Dept 60,512 

AmbulancefRescue Transports 41,661 

~ Human Services: 
~ 

Households receiving assistance 8,527 

Number of acres sprayed by Mosquito Control 1,012,420 

CullurelReereatioo: 

Media items circulated in County Libraries 5,464,785 

Solid Waste: 

Tons of Solid Waste processed at landfill 626,981 

Water Resources: 

Wastewater IRated, in millions ofgallOfls 5,078 

Drinking water IRIted and delivered, in millions of gallons 464 

Transit Services: 
Revenue miles-fixed routes 1,554,341 

Vanpool miles 2,011 ,561 

GolfCourscs: 
Number of rounds played ]22,322 

(I) SouTce: Various County departments 

(2) Data unavai lable. 

BREVARD COUNTY, FLORlDA 
OPERATING INDICATORS (I) 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

200' 2008 2007 

9,S62 10,783 11,76S 

353,872 357,511 l 12,21S 

15,192 16,272 19,099 

57,63 1 57,525 73,707 

39,678 39,305 39,880 

5,998 5,938 (2) 

1,507,140 2,266,213 2,011,192 

5,132,773 5,048,856 4,818,573 

831,223 919,362 1,006,016 

5,275 5,413 4,996 

486 ", ", 
1,494,229 1,958,005 1,827,561 

1,907,020 1,933,235 2,059,598 

140,594 '142,538 137,143 

Table 17 

Fiscal Year 
2006 200' 2004 2003 2002 200' 

17,027 22,837 12,341 12,341 11,862 10,021 

320,422 339,468 342,008 308,630 310,299 293,666 

23,078 23,S17 30,788 31,342 24,842 21,744 

74,444 70,872 68,827 65,341 55, 190 55, 188 

41,623 40,41 1 39, 197 36,036 3),845 35,500 

(2) (2) (2) (2) (2) (2) 

2,185,000 2,348,820 1,997,142 (2) (2) (2) 

4,S77 ,48 I 4,466,6 13 4,500,469 4,317,262 4,039,051 3,837,154 

1,169,488 1,419,4 13 1,101,725 963,500 828,127 811,484 

5,074 5,413 5,~91 5, 178 5,122 4,739 

'" 483 493 ." 436 438 

1,669,828 1,737,559 1,686,821 1,802,047 1,633,430 1,436,159 

2,068 ,567 2,250,186 2,315,341 2,603,534 2,633,759 2,533,074 

m,936 126,295 127,483 121,879 135,526 14 1,53 1 



2010 2009 

Public Safety: 
Fire/Rescue vehicles II' 113 
Fire Stations 21 21 

Transponation: 
Miles of road maintained: 

Unpaved 201 201 
Paved 9J2 929 

CultureIRecreation: 
Parks and Campgrounds: 

~ Developed acreage 17,700 17,700 ~ 

Undeveloped acreage 10,233 10,044 
Libraries 17 17 

Solid Waste: 
Pennitted landfill acreage 214.1 210.9 
Refuse vehicles 18 18 

Water Resources: 
Gravity mains in miles 53' 53' 
Force mains in miles 184 184 
Water mains in miles 117 117 
Reclaimed mains in miles 10O 99 
Lift stations 273 273 

Transit Services: 
Transit vehicles 218 187 

Golf Courses: 
Nwnber of golf courses 3 3 

( I) Source: Various County departments 

BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
CAPITAL ASSETS (I) 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Fiscal Year 
2008 2007 2006 2005 

I\J 112 113 I I ' 
21 21 21 21 

201 212 212 21\ 
929 940 98' 98' 

17,444 17,483 17,243 17,129 
10,009 1,911 1,692 1,699 

17 17 17 17 

270.9 270.9 270.9 270.9 
18 18 18 18 

'6' m '" '28 
222 183 183 180 
124 117 110 106 
109 99 86 83 
270 266 256 249 

193 199 233 2IJ 

3 3 3 3 

Table 18 

2004 2003 2002 2001 

11 0 I I ' 113 112 
21 21 21 20 

211 21 1 210 209 
979 97J 967 960 

16,643 17,612 NA NA 
7,768 5,390 NA NA 

17 17 17 16 

270.9 210.9 270.9 210.9 
\8 16 17 17 

'16 '07 '97 486 
176 172 166 164 
10' 10' 10' 10' 
80 74 69 6' 

243 236 23\ 228 

201 204 187 212 

3 3 3 3 
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BREVARDCOUNTI, FLORlDA 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDIruRES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 
SEPTEMBER 30, 20 10 

F,lkrtJI vr_IOr/1'1US ""'OWI" vr_ 
I'rogr_ Till,. CONroel N~ , WI'/ N" .• .Job N". 

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 

DEPARTMENT Of .... GRICULTURE: 
Pas.sed throup Ihr FloricII Deputmenl of Education 

Scbool BrukfasllLunch Pn:Jcoam 
hllltl\ff food Se/V~ Pn:Jcoam 

Paned throw&h 1M OMsion of Forcsl/y 
forest Protection B",u u 

Volunteer f ire MS;$WIOe Orant 

T,,1I1 DepN1mCnt of Apiculture 

DEPARTMENT Of 1I0US INC AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT: 
Community P ..... nin' &nd Development Neig/lbofhoocl Sl&biliz.ation (NSP) 
CommlUlit)' Development BkKk Grlnl (COBO) 
HOME ln~almtntl'armelShip Provam 
Passed thlouih Ihe Department of CommuilY Afr, i'J 

COBO Supplemenl&l Oi$l5 le. Recovery·WIlMA 

TOIII Depanment of HOUl in ,.,,1I Urban Devdopment 

DEPARTMENT Of TilE INTERIOR: 
In_ive/El(olic Plant Removal 
Max K Rocks P.,k 

TOtIl Depll1mCnt of lhc Interior 

DEPARTMENT Of JUSTICE: 
Passed throw&h the f~ OffICe oftM Attomey Generll 

VOCA 
Pas$lld tlU"ou&h 1M fIoricll Department of Llw Enforwmnl 

ProjO:;I S.fe Nci&hborhoocl Anli-Ganl <l Gull V~ RalIICt ..... In iliatr.c 
Proja;1 Safe Neipborbood Anfi.Oanl <l 0 ..... Violence RalIICtir.>n Initiali .. 
Projccl S.f. Nti&hborhoocl Outtcach 
ByrM Llw Enforeemcnt Vehide Pu •• 1I&K II 

COPS M.tlIampl>c ..... inc Iniliatm 
Fedmol J., Unmatkc4lnvutiptio!o Vehic les 

TOI&I Depanment of Jll$lict 

DEPA RTM ENT Of TRA NSPORTATION: 
Passed Ihrou&h the Florid. Departmc~t orTranspoNtioa 

Rchabilil&tion of Airf .. 1d MirkinI' 
PL112 09110, PL-026}(46) 
Pll12 Hlt' '' , PL-0263(4') 
Safe Rou.tcs to School Tucher Trlini~1 Fcci NOI Fuel 
Chain ort.aka Trlill>ead 
Kings Parlt Trlilhead 
FI...8G--XOI9 
Child Possen.e. S. f.1Y Issues 
Si fety Bell Enfor~ment Propam 

fWcrll Trusil Adminisltllion 
fL90-X69. 
FL90-X644 
FL90-X670 
FL90-XSS8 
FL90-XSI' 
FL9G.XSI9 
FLl7-X039 JARC 
A.S7_XOI 4 New Freedom 

TOIII Dep.,tmc," ofTn.MportItioll 

DEPARTMtl10T OVTH£ TREASURY: 
fedual Asset Shat;'" • 

GENERA.L SERVICES ADMINISTRATION: 
PassecIlhrooi&h the FloricII BltreIU of Federal Proptny Ass~ 

FodcnI Swrpl", Property Donation f>rocram 
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0 1.(1221 
04-0614 

NlA 

B.(II-tm-12-OO1 
B]20011 

M04·DC-1M200 

IODB-K4..(l6.]S.(lI.K04 

1441-401.1-2-J .... 2 
LW~5 

V09IU 

20 100PSNM-BRfV- ]-A 1-003 
2009-PSNM-BREV-I-V,.()O ] 
20 IO-PMAO-BREV-I-R6001 1 
20lO-JAOC-BREV-I-4X.(IS5 

2007CK.WX0211 
2009-DJ-BX-12j() 

3-12.(1144-001-2010 
4163S04·'-1 4 ~1. A.S064 
417951- 1-1 4.(12, A·S064 
422214·544.(1 1. APG79 

41 S04H- I·1I·2 
415435-1-lS- 1 

(206)$-1.14.19, AOJS3 
APS56 

K4PT-10-2] .(I1 

FTA o. lS 
FTAO· 14 
FTA 0· 14 
FTA 0.14 
FTAo.I3 
FTA 0. 12 
FTAo.lS 
FTAG-IS 

''''" ... 

CfOAl 
CSFA 

N"",btr 

10.555 
]00$59 

]0.664 

14.2 ]8 
14.2 ]1 
14.219 

14.22' 

15.230 
1'-916 

16.575 

16.609 
16.609 
16.609 
16.711 
16.710 
16.731 

20.106 
20.205 
20.205 
20.205 
20.205 
20.205 
20.j()5 
20.602 
20.609 

20.j()7 
20.507 
20.j()7 
20.507 
20.j()7 
20. j()7 
20.$16 
20.521 

11 .FLOOSOOOO 

39.003 

, 

, 
, 

, 
, 
, 

, 

, 
, 

, 
, 
, 

II,S26 
19,66l 

4,105 

55,994 

2.'51.622 
96-1,585 

1,478.624 

577,696 

5,179,527 

5.039 
200,000 

205,039 

109.174 

123.393 
]0,297 

'" 271;34] 
69,404 

116,]95 

700.216 

]22,699 
504,'97 
2]7.339 

57,224 
D.534 

'" ]72,86S 
20,763 
4.767 

2.493,751 
UI.909 
610,152 
174,7)) 
116,65-4 
94,732 

260,274 
193,175 

5,91 1,326 

95,4)4 

'" 
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BREVARD COUNTY, FLORI DA 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITlJRES OF FEDERAL A WARDS 

AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

G,anttw CFDAI 
Fttk, g/ GrQII/(Jr/PQ# nw",h G,anttN' CDltlracl CS" F~tk,a/ 

f>rovam Till~, CDltITtlCI No., WPI No., .Job No, N_IN, _b<, E:qN",;IillinJ 

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY: 
PANed III_a/! SL Johns Waccr Ma.uo~""'M Dislrict 

MIIirime Ma.uoaemcm Mu\tt PIIII 1$126 66.456 S LL.224 
Paned Ih_&h 1M FloI'ida Dcpanmut of Environmental f'roIedioa 

Sykes CRdI: and Banana Ri_ W,"r QulliI)' Retrofol Project 0026. 66.460 1!J5,6&O 

Total Environmental ProICC:lion AJeIlCy S 206,904 

OE),ARTMF.NT o r ENU GY: 
Pused throup tile F10ridI Dcp&l1mcnt of Commllnil)' Aff.irs 

Wutllcfilation (WA),) 09WX-7W-06-15-0 1~ 11.042 • S 72,4S4 

U. S. ELECTION ASSISTANCE COMMISSIOS: 
Pused tllrou&h 1M Florida Dcpul ..... nl of SIioIC 

Military.rod Oversus EmpO ..... nn¢nt Att Implemenllotion MOA 2009·2010.00011 90.40 1 S 12,92!J 

DEPARTMENT OF IlEALTII ANO IIUMA N SERVICES: 
Substl/lcc Abuse and Mental He. lth Services Admin 

Adult OnI, COlIn Pn:rri. llntnvencion PrOJrUll ITlO21901-01 !J3.243 S 180,821 
Drul Court Exp & Enllanccmcnt orsubs,1anCe AbII.!e (EESAD lH791l0219O I-O i 9) .24) 155,814 

Passed 1II'0<Ia/! the: Florida Dcpattmcnt of State 
Division orElections 

fY 06 Poll in, Place Acceuibilil)' NIA 93.617 10,321 
Passed III rO<l'" the Florida Dcpatt ..... nt of Revenuc 

Child Suppon Enrorwnent COl05 93.563 315,019 
SC1Vice of Process CS"" 93.56] 55.177 

Passed III_a/! the Florida DcpanrMnt orCommunil)' Afflirs 
Low \rIcomc EIICfI)' As,isWlcc: (LDIEAP) 09EA, 7K-06-1 s.ol-OOl 93.561 1,07 1,OS3 
Low ~ "-I)' AuisWlcc: (1..IHEAP) l0EA4f.()b.1 S-O 1-003 93.561 129,914 
W ..... -UHEAP 09LH-7K-06-ls.ol~ 93.$6.1 102, 161 
Communii)' Action AJency (CS BO) IOSB-7Q-06- ls.o l -002 93 ,569 25 1,114 

Pused til_a/! thc: floridJ Dqlartnwnt of Child reA and f .... ilics 
Oi!deare l..ieensiD, Grant OJ"" 93.$75 21,322 
Oildcare Ucmsinl Grant OJU, 9J ,S75 9,431 
FOSler Care W'M:r Tille rv-E nXOT 93,651 15',577 
FomrC:are Tide rv·E{CBC) RCOO9O' 93.6S' 11l.'5!J 
foslCf Care Title rv,E{CBC) ROO IOO4 9) .6S' 52.456 
Social SeMtcs BJoc:k Gr.nt RCOO9O' 93.667 119,5S2 
Social Servitc:s Block Granc ROOIOO4 93.667 41,656 

Total Depar1mC:nt of H~!th and Hun'\In Services S 3,565.211 

DEP A RTM E/IoT Of HOM ELA ND SECURITY: 
Major Disaster Relief 

Hurricane Wilma ()6. Wl-&K-06- 1 5-01. 71 0 97 ,036 S 1,243,711 
Tropical Storm FlY 0',1' A·B9.()6.15· 1 )·57) 97 ,0)6 150,723 

Pused tllroutll thc: Florid. Department of Law Enforcement 
CaRNE C'Pflbll: Re,ionaJ forensic: RClpOIIse Tum 2009,SHSP,BREV-4-V1-037 97.067 131,664 
Enhance SWAT &; ECD Rc,ion,l Tum CIPflbilil)' 2009,SHSP-BREV.1-V1-044 97.(167 54,404 
SWAT & EOD Sustainment 2009.SHSP.BREV. I.S4-07 1 97 ,067 41,314 
AvilliD:l Response and Support 20()9..SHSp.a REV.2. Vl-Oll 97.067 14,41S 

Passed thrO<ltll the Division of Emer,eney Ma.uogen>c:nt 
.... blic: S.fety InlClOpUIIblc Communications 10-0S·31-06-1 s.o l-016 IU55 935,997 
Crane Creek Drailllie implO'nlCM (Lamplitllte:r) OJ.HM·3G-06-15-O 1-031 97.039 423 ,1 71 
Hazard Mi!icacion Shullt" ar.d alY 000" 09-HM-23-06- ls.ol-004 97.039 179.7BS 
Sarno Lalcu-DrlilllJc 01.HM. IG-06-1 s.o 1~24 91.039 92,972 
Emttpncy MIIIIJcment Prcplledness and Assistance Grant (SLO.) I I·fG- I,S-06. 15.oI-l)24 97.042 21,nl 
WMO H.u. Mit Equip, &: Tra.ininl Da-OS-6O-11-OO-16-173 97.067 23.149 
Homeland Security Iss~ 06 01,DS,5N-06- 15-OI-02' 97.067 21,499 
Cilium Corps and CommuniI)' Eme' ,mer Response Team Provam 1O-C).<43-06- 1 s.ol-400 97.067 1,641 

Total o"pattment of IIomcIand Security S · 3.116,260 
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BREVARD COlMfY, FLORIDA 
SCHEDULE Of EXPENDITIJRES OF FEDERAL A WARDS 

AND STA TI: FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 
SEPTI:MBER 30, 20 ]0 

O'l2nlor 
F,d",1I0rtlnlorIPan nvo..,1t OrtllllOr CQltUQt;1 
Protrl"" Till,. C{III/rfJCf NI). , 1f11'I NI).. Job NI). 

_ .. , 
AMERICAN RECOVERY AND REINVESTMENT ACf (ARRA) 
DEPARTMENT Of !lOUSINC AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT: 

ARItA-Communily ~Iopmtfll Block Granl B-01-lIC- 12-OO11 
ARItA-Homdeu Prevenlion and Rapid R~Housinl!'nlpanl S-W-UY-12-OO12 

Total Dcpanment of H_ina and Urban Developmenl{AIUlA) 

DEPARTM ENT OF ~USTICE: 
Pa$$ed throu", 1M F\orio;iI DcpanmI:nl of uw Enfottemenl 

AlUlA-Byrne Recovay uw EnfORCmenl Vchio;Jc Purclwe 2010-ARRCBREV·l·W1-092 
AlUlA-Byrne Recovery I'rlsor>erTlUl$pMalioftlBookinl SYSlem Imp Pros IX 2010-AR.RCBREV.2.W7.2S9 

AlUlA-Byrne Justice AssisWlCe Grant 2009-SB-B9-191' 

TotaJ Dcpanmc:nt of Justice (AlUlA) 
FEDERAL IIICIiWAY ADMINISTRATION: 

D.plrtmn t afTrallfpO rutioll 
Passed 1111l1li'" Ihc I'\oridl Oepartmc:nl ofTlUI$fl'O'lIli<NI 

AIUlA.134-B-SissOll Rd. APRI0-426299-1·5I-O t 
ARItA·1360B.Wickham Rd . APR01 .... 26101-1 ·S.-O 1 
ARRA-23J·B-Cox Rd. APQIS-426197-1-SI-Ol 
ARRA-103·B·Pionccr T,.iVChIK Hlmmock APQ77-42S40S. I.SI-01 
ARRA-27S-B-Sylr:es Cr"k Plrkway APRI 1-426521· 1·51-01 
ARRA-223-B-Murrcll Rd. APQ71-426271-1 ·51-01 
ARItA·221-B-Samo Rd. APR04-4262U-I -5a-O I 
ARRA-227-B-Shclidln Rd, APR07-426284. I·SI-O I 
ARItA-2 tO-B.N. Rivenide Dr. APS20-426260-2-,.-O I 
ARItA-144·8-Micco Rd. APROI-426109· 1 .51-0 I 
ARItA-24()..B-Oki Dbtit Hi&hwlY APR00-42610S-I -Sl-O 1 
AIUlA-22()"6-Oak S~ &. Driftwood APR(l6.-42627J. 1 ·51-0 I 
AIUlA~S06·8-ApOIIo Blvd. APx.'I2-421S62·1 ·51-0 1 
AIUlA.23()"8-Rivenide Dr, .t SWUCI APRO'-426290-1-5a-O I 

Fedelal TlUl$it Admiaistnuion 
ARRA·A,.96--X021-OO FTAG-IS 

TOIIl DcplltmCM ofTranspOnalion (ARRA) 

DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY: 
Pased throu", Ihc F\orio;iI Dcpll1mml ofCommullity Aff.irs 

AIUlA-WcatllcriWiorI Aui_ Prop-.m 10WX· 7X-D6-1 S-OI. 704 
ARR,A.WatMrlzaliool Assis\l:w:e /'J0IfMI IOWX_7X-D6-1 S-O 1-104 

ARRA·Enc'lY EfT'ocimcy aIId Cor\setvf,tioll BIocJ< Granl OE-EEOOOO712 

Total Ocp&nment of£ncrl)' (ARRA) 

DEPARTME"''TOfIlEALTII '' II UMAN SERVIC ES ADMINISTRATION 
ADMINISTRATION FOR CIlILDREN " fAMILIES: 

Pti5ed IhrouCh the flotidl Dcpartmellt ofComm~nil)' Atr.ill 
AIUlA-Comm~lIil)' ServiceJ Block Grant I05B-IB-06-1 S-OI· 101 

TOTAL EXPENDrruRES Ott f EDERAL AWARDS - PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 

COMPONENT UN ITS · TITUSVILLE-COCOA AIRPORT AUTIIORITY 
DEPARTMENT OF ACRICULTIlRE: 

RUrll Business En'Clpfi$l: Granl 09-005-59 1(161002 
DEPARTMENT Of TRA NSPORT A nON: 

Fed.:rli Avillion AdminiJu.,ion 
Improvemenl J>ro&ram 

SC East Ramp/Apron 31200100 161111182(0) 
SC-ATCT Equipment 31200800202009 
AD R/W, TfW PhqeA 3121l11l10122009 
AD R/W, Trw PhutcB 3120 11110132009 
TIX R/W , SireI)' Areal 3 J 200&002220 10 
COl NW TlXi\anelSo AprOn 31200 130162010 
SC 52.Aclt UncI Pllldwe 312008002 12009 
COl RSA Elwiommenlll 31200 130162011l 
TIX Sip! Panel Repllce 31200100192009 
MI M.JIcr Plan 31200 130152006 

Total Ocputmml or TrlnSponation 
TOTAL EXl'ENDITURf.S OF FEDERAL AWARDS· COMPONENT UNITS 

TOTAL EXPENDITURf.S Of fEDERAL AWARDS - REPORTING £1I,'TITY 
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CFDAI 
<SF< F.dutll 

NllJllbt, &ptrtdiNr'~ 

14.2$4 S 69,9" 
14.262 360,463 

S 4)0,422 

16.103 S 996.108 
16.103 1l4,977 
16.S()4 471,127 

S 1.609.112 

2O.20S S 614,327 
20.20S 472,177 
20.205 450,701 
20.20S 317,660 
20.205 300,957 
20_20S 288,610 
20.20S 286,452 
20.205 26 1,984 
20_20S 173,SI7 
20.21l5 70,316 
20.20S 49,24) 
20.]:0' 4 1,550 
20.20S ]0,299 

lO.lO' 24,'30 

20_507 S an".. 
S 4,130,))6 

'1.042 S 409,924 
81.042 10,461 
11.121 171,1-67 

S 599,152 

91.710 S 399,680 

S 271411 ,502 

10,769 S 83,SI 2 

21l. 1 (16 S 130,156 
20.1(16 19,936 
21l.106 52,600 
20.106 44,231 
20.106 21,312 
21l.106 15,541 
21l,106 12,Sn 
20.106 8,39. 
20.106 3,212 
20.106 2, 101 

S 110,847 

S 464,3S9 

S 27.I7S,861 
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BREVARD COUNTY, FI.ORJDA 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDIl1JRES OF FEDERAL A WARDS 

AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 
SEPTEMBER 3D, 2010 

Grattl Qf' CFDAI 
SIDle Gratt~/POSJ 11vo",h (j'QJtIOT . CtmlrOCI CSFA SIDtt 
Progrwn Tille NumlHr NumMr ~ndlt"rtl 

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION: 
Brevard County North and Soulll Reach BeKb Re$lontion Project 01B£2 11.ClOl S 2.694,99 1 
Brevard County Beach ReslOnlion Project OSBEI ]1.C1Ol 26,~25 
Soulll Brevard County Buch Restoration 07BEI 37.003 m 
Petroleum Contamination Site Clean up S0471 37.024 222,21 4 
!.eakin, Utlde'sround Stora,e TMb 00621 37.024 76,799 
Nonh Merrin Island We Geo.ge-Cbm: Hammoc:k LPI952 37.039 130,906 
VctetaII's Memorial Center La70' n07l 211,142 

TOIaI Dcpwtment of Environmental Protection S l,~,&04 

DEPARTMENT OF STATE: 
Oj~ision of Library and lnfonTlltion Scrvicts 

Library State Aid IO-ST.(I2 45.030 S 4",402 

DEPARTMENT Of COMMUNITY AFfAIRS: 
Florida Communities Tru$t 

Stan Mayfltld WOfkin, Watufi"on1 09..cT-EI.(II-fl-A 1-002 S2.011 S 1,146,716 

DIVISION OF EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT: 
Emergncy M_SCmcnll'rcparedncss ud Assistanec: G .... t (EMPA) I 0BG-2s.06- 1 ~1.()96 $2.00. S 160,97' 
Hazardous Material Plannin, AnisW>a: IOCP-04-06-IS-OI-1 IS Sl.On 10,144 

Total DivUiofI of Emcr,erq M~mcnt S 171,122 

fLOR IDA HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION: 
Housing and Human ServKcs Departmcn! 

Stale Hoosinl lnililli~~ Program Trusl Futld RESOLUTION 2009-73 S2.901 S 1,375.196 
State Hoosin,lnitillivc Program TruSl Fund FHOP S2.90] 213,640 

TOIa] Florida Housinl Finance Corporation S ],519,S:16 

DEPARTMENT or TRANSPORTATION, 
Commission for the TrMJportIlion Disadvantaged 

TriplEquipmen1 Granl API09 5~.00 1 S 774.342 
T.iplEquipmcn1 G.IUII APm 5$.00 1 263.35S 
T'lUISportatiOfl OisadvanlaJed Pl.anning 0&11)9 AP145 55.002 21.210 
Tn.nsportalion DisadvlUlta,ed Plannin, 1011] AQOS9 SHl02 1.(162 

Commuler Assi$\at\U APOO 5~.001 75,085 
Counl)' Inccn.ive G_ Program AlfCC"'Cnl 

Pirlelb Causcw.y ex.cnsion 1.0020 S5.00. 616.97~ 
OOTBkdtGrul1 AP013 55.010 1.2$).991 
Minulm\IJI Causeway Shunk SctYicc APL90 SS.OIl 72,'53 
Transit CorridorGnnt SR 520 AOES' SS.OU )SO,OOO 
Fixed Rook BtU Strnce SR AlA AD'" 55.013 3SO,OOO 
Transportati()ll Re,iotI"l~nlive Program 

Pineda CallSCway EKlclISion AOQI1 55.026 ],220.634 
Pineda CllUCway RCilisnmcnt AOQIl 5S.026 22 1 ,77~ 

Total Department ofTransportllion S S,247,217 

DEPARTMENT or CHI1.DREN AND FAMILIES, 
otr~orHomclenACu 

Homtkss Assistance Challcnsc Gm, 60.0]4 S 51,600 
Horrocks. HOlIsm, AuisWIU Gtutt GFZK4 60.015 92.375 
Granl in Aiel GFLO) 60.021 1I.9S9 
G .... t in Aid GFKO) 60.021 1,087 

PI1tl1 W Hom~ II. Clothin, (Countty Aeres) RCO]OO4 " ... 60,] 70 
ParCJItal Home II. CioIhinS (Countty Acres) RCO"" " .... 5 1 ~31 

ToW Depwtmenl ofChild~ and Families S 216.421 

183 



TABLE I 
S OF6 

BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

AND STATE FINANClAL ASSISTANCE 
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Stalf Granl(N/Pa.u Throllgh GralflM 
Program Till, 

D£PARTMEr« OF IlEALTH: 
EmetgCl>(:)' Medical Servioes County Trust 

DEPARTMENT OF ELDER AFFAIRS: 
fall Prtvenlion for Senion 
Community Can: for !he Elderly 
Community Can: for !he Elderly 
Martin Andersen Senior Genler 

Total Depar1menl ofEldel Afflin 

DEPARTMEr« OF UW ENFORCEMEr«: 
Operllion Mobile Detail 
Operltioo Free Bird 

Total Depanmcnl of Law EnforeemcnI 

DEPARTMENT OF II1GIIWAYSAFETY" MOTOR VEHICLES: 
Caribbean Conservation Corporation Sea Tunle 

FLORIDA FISII AN D W ILDLI FE CONSER VATION COMMISSION: 
South County Boal Llunch-Pbase III 
M",;na P.,k BoIIt Launch Facility 

Total florid. fish and Wildlife Conservl lion Commission 

Gran/or 
CQIflrQCt 

Number 

0900' 

XQ014 
CCP-SCAT~-!o 

CCP-SCAT-Io-ll 
XQ87 1 

lD-003C 

fWC07069 
fWCO&OSl 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF STATE FINA NCIA L ASSISTANCE - PRIMARY C OVERNMEr« 

COMPONENT UN ITS _ TITUSVILLE-COCOA AIRPORT AUTHORITY 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION: 
Transporta1 ion Sys1ems Developmen1 

AL874 SCCorporaie TerminallAdmin Bldg 
A0227 SC-Sec:urity "'ojcci 
APD6S COl])Orlie HlIlpr 
APD64 (MI fuel Farm) 
APX14 TIX T Hangar COJlSlnlClion 
APXl6 MI f ac ilities Rehab 
APD64 (MI fuel Tank) 
APX I5 COl Bolt Hanpr Construction 
AU74 SC.cOrpDrltc TerminallAdmin Bldg 
APX I7 Xli Flcilities Rehab 
APG57 SC-ATCT Equipment 
APGS9 (AD PJW, Trw Phase A & B) 
AQIS8 COl RSA Environmen111 
AQI57 nx PJW 9 Safety Areas 
APG58 (TIX Sign Panel Replau) 
AQ]59 COl NW TaxilanclSOIApron 

Total Department ofTrI1lSponaiion 

4 131S(1 
41 9117 
414428 
41 6332 

""" 409787 
42397] 
409459 
247353 
416333 
4 11 941 
4239)9 
421965 
409469 
426212 
4290 17 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF STATE f INANCIAL ASSISTANCE _ REPORTI NG ENTITY 
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CFDAI 
CSFA Stall 
Num~r E.xpendillln~ 

64.ooS , 153,662 

, 12,S<IO 
6S,01O 48,762 
65.010 22,235 
65.013 27,945 , 111 ,442 

71.005 , 13,657 
7l.00S 11,599 , 15,156 

76.070 , 5,S5) 

77.006 , )2 1,526 
77.006 69,387 , 390,9 1) 

, 131640.421 

55.004 , 6(18,859 
55.(1()( 143,962 
55.00t 256,045 
S5.0I)4 2OS,692 
55,004 26,253 
55.(104 24, 11 . 
SHI()4 22,400 
55,004 1&,484 
SHl04 16,000 
5S.004 '.60< 
55.004 2,185 
55.004 1,893 
55.004 ' 50 
5HlO4 '" 55.004 " SS.OO4 " , I,S33,9 IS 

, 15,1 74,336 
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BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL A WARDS 

AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditu res of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance 

TABLE I 
60F6 

The Schedule ofExpendilllTCS offed.nol Awards ond Slate finllllCial Aslis!ance p""cnl.'l the acliviTyof ,II fedenol program. I.I>d 5tal. proj«u of 
BrevII'd County, Florida. The reportina enliTy of Brevard County it defined in !lie IIOte, 10 financial $tatem.nU. 

2) aui. of Mtountint: 

Tk Schedule of ExpcndilllTCS of Fed enol Financial AWirds Ind State Financial As$;stan~ is mainl4ined OIl a modiflCd ICCrual basis ofaecounting 
for Govcmmental Fund types ex~pI for donated items l/Id the full 1=1 basis of loCCOuntina for the Propr~tary hod types wllil:h it described in 
the IIOte, 10 financial $l4t.menlS. 

l) T!}~dm to SybrtripitnU;: 

Dur;ng the)"«or ended September 30, 2010. the folLowina amounts we", provided 10 subrecipi.nlS from each Fedenol P,o""m and Stile Project. 

Amount 
Name of Fe<knol ?rolfBIT': em. Iunl(GIWl 

COBG 14.21& , 177.359 
HOME 14.2)9 , 9S5,066 
HP,", 14,262 , 344.610 
Byrne R~ry Law EnfOTCement Vehicle Purclwe 16,80] , 582)34 
NcwFrcedom 20,521 , 184,801 
CSBG 9),569 , 17.489 

Amount 
Name or Stlte Proje<:l: rnA :W~lf~Jm1 

Byrne I..Iw Enfor~ment V.hil:le Purehase 11 16.138 , 155.661 
FHOP 52.901 , 242,896 
SHIP 52,901 , 219.020 

.) Nan_n<" Awudt: 

Durin8 the year ended September )0, 20 10, the Coun!)' received the following non-ash ass istance (commooilies) from the Department of Agricuhure 
(passing through Florida Dep&rtmenl'of AgricullUrt:). 

Name of Fedcnol Program, 

Nalional Lunch Program 
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Gongl Nymber 

24,003 "'"" 10.555 

AmO<lnl 
WOOlh 

S 1,1l6 
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BREV ARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 

REPORTS REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS, 
THE SINGLE AUDIT ACT, AND 

CHAPTER 10.550 RULES OF AUDITOR GENERAL 

Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting And On Compliance 
And Other Matters Based On An Audit Of Financial 

Statements Performed In Accordance With 
Government Auditing Standards 

Report On Compliance With Requirements That Could Have A Direct And 
Material Effect To Each Major Federal Program And State Project And 

On Internal Control Over Compliance In Accordance With OMB 
Circular A-133 And Chapter 10.550 Rules of the Auditor General 

Schedule Of Findings And Questioned Costs 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

The following component units, which are of various degrees of significance to the reporting entity of the 
Brevard County Board of County Commissioners, have been audited by other auditors: 

Titusville - Cocoa Airport Authority 
Melbourne - Tillman Water Control District 

Housing Finance Authority 

The separate auditors' report for these component units may be obtained directly from the appropriate entity. 
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8035 Spyglass Hill Rosel 
Melbourne, FL 32940 
Phone: 321-757-2020 
Fsx: 321-242-4844 

BERMAN 
WRIGHT 

www.bermanhopklns.com 

AM 
255 S. Orange Ave. Suite 745 

Or1ando. FL 32801 
Pnons: 407-841-8841 

Fax: 407-841-8849 

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON 
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MAnERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Board of County Commissioners 
Brevard County, Florida 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of Brevard County, Florida as of and for the year ended 
September 30, 2010, which collectively comprise Brevard County, Florida's basic financial 
statements and have issued our report thereon dated March 16, 2011 . Our report includes a 
reference to other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with a,uditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Govemment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States. Other auditors audited the financial statements of Titusville-Cocoa Airport Authority, 
Melbourne-Tillman Water Control District, and the Brevard County Housing Finance Authority, as 
described in our report on Brevard County, Florida's financial statements. This report does not 
include the results of the other auditors' testing of internal control over financial reporting or 
compliance and other matters that are reported on separately by those auditors. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered Brevard County, Florida's internal control 
over financial repqrting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of 
expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of Brevard County, Florida's internal control over financial reporting. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Brevard County's internal 
control over financial reporting . . 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of Brevard County's financial statements will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described 
in the first paragraph of this section and was not deSigned to identify all deficiencies in internal 
control over financial reporting that might be defICiencies, significant deficiencies, or material 
weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that 
we considered to be material weaknesses, a~ defined above. 
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However, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over financial report ing, described 
in the accompanying ·Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs· that we consider to be 
significant defICiencies in internal control over financial reporting. (Find ing number(s) 10·01 , 10· 
02 and 10'()3) A significant deficiency is a defICiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control Ihat is less severe than a material weakness , yet important enough to merit 
attention by those charged with governance. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Brevard County, Florida's financial 
statements are free of malerial misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which 
could have a direct and material effect on the determinalion of financial statement amounts. 
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our 
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no 
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government 
Auditing Standards. 

We also noted certain matters that we reported to management of Brevard County, Florida in a 
separate letter dated March 16, 2011 . 

Brevard County's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the 
accompanying ·Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs'- We did not audit Brevard 
County's response and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of County Commissioners 
of Brevard County, Florida, management and appropriate federal, state and other awarding 
agencies and pass·lhrough entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone 
olher than those specified parties. 

March 16, 2011 
Melbourne, Florida 
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD HAVE A 
DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT TO EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND STATE 

PROJECT AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMS 
CIRCULAR A-133 AND CHAPTER 10.550 RULES OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL 

Board of County Commissioners 
Brevard County, Florida 

Compliance 

We have audited the compliance of Brevard County, Florida, with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 
Complianca Supplemant and the requirements described in the Department of Financial Services' 
Stale Projects Compliance Supplement. that could have a direct and material effect on its major 
federal programs and state projects for the year ended September 30, 2010. Brevard County, 
Florida's major federal programs and state projects are id.entified in the summary of auditors' results 
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs . Compliance with the 
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major federal 
programs and state projects is the responsibility of Brevard County, Florida's management. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on Brevard County, Florida's compliance based on our audit. 

Brevard County, Florida's basic financial statements include the . operations of the Titusville-Cocoa 
Airport Authority, which received $464,359 in federal awards and $1 ,533,915 in state financial 
assistance that are included and separately presented in the schedule .during the year ended 
September 30, 2010. Our audit, described below, did not include the operations of the Titusville­
Cocoa Airport Authority because the component unit engaged other auditors to perform an audit in 
accordance with Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General, State of Florida. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing St8nd8rds, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; OMB Circular A-133 , 
Audits of St8tes, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations; and Chapter 10.550, Rules of 
the Auditor General, State of Florida. Those standards, OMB Circular A-,33 and Chapter 10.550, 
Rules of the Auditor General, State of Ftorida, require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program or state 
project occurred. 
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An audit includes examining , on a test basis, evidence about Brevard County, Florida's 
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered 
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our 
opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on Brevard County, Florida's 
compliance with those requirements. 

In our opinion, Brevard County, Florida complied, in all material respects, with the requirements 
referred to above that coutd have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal 
programs and state projects for the year ended September 30, 2010. 

Internal Control Over Compliance 

The management of Brevard County, Florida is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
effective internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grants applicable to federal programs and state projects. In planning and performing our audit, 
we considered Brevard County, Florida's internal control over compliance with the requirements 
that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program or state projects in order 
to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over 
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveriess of Brevard County, 
Florida's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control 
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect- and correct, noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in intemal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type 
of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected, on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described 
in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal 
control that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or malerial weaknesses. We did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance thai we considered to be material 
weaknesses, as defined above. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of County Commissioners 
of Brevard County, Florida, management and appropriate federal , state, other awarding 
agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone 
other than those specified parties. 

March 16, 2011 
Melbourne, Florida 

191 

2<""""" ';?I~ ~ & La?I"", 
(?p/I< ad /I~ . .t.e'P 



BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

SECTION I· SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS 

Financial Statements 

1. Type of auditors' report issued: 

2. Intemal control over financial reporting: 

a. Material weakness(es) identified? 
b. SignifICant deficiency(ies) identified 

that are not considered to be 
material weakness(es)? 

3. Noncompliance material to financial 
statements noted? 

federal Awards 

1. Intemal control over major programs: 

a. Material weakness(es) identified? 
b. SignifICant deficiency(ies) identified 

that are not considered to be 
material weakness(es)? 

2. Type of auditors' report issued on compliance 
lor major programs: 

3. Any audit findings disclosed that are required 
to be reported in accordance with section 
510(a) of Circular A-133? 

4. Dollar threshold used to distinguish between 
type A and type B Programs 

5. Auditee Qualified as a low-risk auditee? 

Identification of major programs Federal: 

Unqualified 

No 

Yes 

No 

No 

None reported 

Unqualified 

No 

$822.345 

Yes 

CFDA Number Name 01 Program 

11 .555 

14.218 & 14.254 

14.262 

Public Safety Interoperable Communications Grant 
Program 

COBG • Entitlement Grants Cluster 

Homeless Prevention and Rapid Re·Housing 
Program Technical Assistance 
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BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

SECTION I· SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS (continued) 

Identification of major programs Federal (continued): 

CFDA Number 

16.803 

20.205 

20.507 

81.042 

93 .569 & 93.710 

State Financial Assistance 

Name of Program 

Recovery Act - Edward Byrne Memorial Justice 
Assistance Grant (JAG) 

Highway Planning and Construction 

Federal Transit Formula Grants 

Weatherization Assistance for Low-Income Persons 

CSBG Cluster 

1. Type of auditcn' report issued on compliance 
for major projects: Unqualified 

2. Internal control over major projects: 

a. Material weakness(es) identified? 
b. Significant deficlency(ies) identified 

thaI are not considered to be 
material weakness(es)? 

3. Any audit findings disclosed that are required 
to be reported under Rule 10.5577 

4. Dollar threshold used to distinguish between 
type A and type B Projects 

Identification of major projects Slate: 

No 

No 

No 

$409,213 

CSFA Number Name of Project 

37.039 

37.071 

77.006 

55.010 

52.013 

Statewide Surface Water Restoration and 
Wastewater Projects 

Special Recreation Assistance Projects 

Florida Boating Improvement Program 

Public Transit Block Grant Program 

Stan Mayfield Working Waterfront Program 
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· BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

SECTION I · SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS (continued) 

Identification of major projects (continued): 

C$FA Number 

55.001 

55.008 

55.026 

Name of Project 

Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged 
(CTD) Trip and Equipment Grant Program 

County Incentive Grant Program 

Transportation Regional Incentive Program (TRIP) 

SECTION II· FtNANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 

10-01 Accurate reporting of future committed funds 

Signific8nt Deficiency 

Criteria: GAAP requires that material commitments, such as construction contracts, be 
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 

Cond'tion : During testing of the construction and other significant commitments footnote 
disclosure, it was discovered that a project listed as being committed in the future had been 
completed. 

Cause: At September 30th, the Purchasing Department zeroes out all purchase orders and 
then re-issues new purchase O(ders in the following fiscal year. However, County Finance 
prepares the footnote disclosure based on the amounts of the purchase orders that were 
re-Issued by the Purchasing Department and that do not include paid invoices for the 
previous fiscal year paid subsequent to September 301h

• 

Effect: The Mure committed funds disclosed in the footnote is not an accurate amount of 
the remaining balance of Mure committed funds which could impact decisions about future 
projects and funds available. 

Recommendation: We recommend that County Finance and the Purchasing Department 
implement a procedure to ensure that all commitments are accurately being disclosed in 
the notes to the financial statements. 

Views of responsible officials and planned corrective actions: The County Finance ' 
Department, Central Services Office, and Budget Office will implement a procedure to 
ensure that the significant commitments are captured and disclosed in the notes to the 
financial statements. Staff believes that the reference to the five-year Capital Improvement 
Plan (CIP) can be utilized to meet GAAP requirements as the Plan takes into account prior 
year and anticipated future year expenditures .. 
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BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

SECTION II· FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS (continued) 

10-02 Tracking receivables 

Significant Deficiency 

~: Under GAAP, if a receivable is reasonably determined to be uncollectible Ihen the 
receivable must be written off from the accounting records in order to accurately present 
lolal assets on the balance sheet. 

Cond'tion: During testing, it was noted that there are receivables relating to FEMA (Federal 
Emergency Management Agency). that have not been tracked as to whether the funds will 

. be collected. 

~ Reimbursable claims, approved by FEMA and submitted for payment are not 
tracked and documented as to the status of the payment. 

~: Receivables are in the accounting records that could be uncollectible which would 
overstate assets. 

Recommendations: We recommend that a process be implemented that tracks and 
documents the status of FEMA receivables and receivables over a year should be followed 
up with FEMA to detennine if the receivable is uncollectible in order to ensure accurate 
presentation of total assets on the balance sheet. 

VIeWS of resDODsible officials and planned corrective actions: There is currently a process 
in place Ihat allows for the tracking and follow-up of FEMA reimbursables and any 
outstanding receivables. Status reports are available for County Finance. Staff will provide 
lhese status reports to County departments and the County Finance department on a 
quarterty basis. 

10.()3 Recording of receivables and allowances 

Significant Deficiency 

Criteria: Under GMP, balances owed by customers are deemed receivables until collected 
and are presented as assets net of an allowance on the balance sheet. 

Condition; During evaluation of department-level receivables, it was noted that there have 
been no receivables and allowances recorded for the Planning and Development 
department. 

~ The Planning and Development department accepts partial payments for Gode 
Enforcement and Contractor Licensing citations and has not provided 10 County Finance 
the detail of the receivable balance at September 30111 to evaluate for collectability and 
recording. 
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BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

SECTION II · FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS (continued) 

10-03 Recording of receiyables and allowances (continued) 

Effect: Code Enforcement receivables prior to evaluation of coIlectability, have not been 
recorded thus understating assets. 

Recommendations: We recommend that all departments accepting partial payments, 
provide to County Finance, at least on an annual basis, the detail of the unpaid balances for 
evaluation of coIlectability and reporting. 

Views of resPOnsible officials and planned corrective actions: A specific report is being 
developed for the system utilized within the Planning and Development department. 
Additionally, the Budget OffICe in conjunction with the Information Technology department 
and County Finance will develop a standardized excel spreadsheet and create a database 
to allow departments to track partial payments and update the County Finance department 
on an annual basis on any outstanding amounts. II is anticipated that such spreadsheets 
will be provided to County Finance by the middle of November for the recently completed 
fiscal year. 

SECTION III • FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS· MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAMS AND 
STATE PROJECTS 

None reported. 

SECTION IV· SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

09-01 Solid Waste Closure and Postclosure Care - Corrected 

Internal control significant deficiency 

Condition: The liability and expense accounts were overstated by $785,587. 

Recommendation: The organization should put special emphasis on the review of the 
executive summary of the engineer's report as most signifICant changes are highlighted 
there. It may also be of additional assistance to tie capacity amounls on the survey directly 
to the working paper calculation. Additionally, we recommend the departments 
communicate at the time the annual calculation is performed about key elements to ensure 
any changes are reflected. 

Current Status: The 2010 executive sunvnary of the engineer's report was in agreement 
with the capacity amounts included in the calculation of the Solid Waste Closure and 
Postclosure Care liability and expense amounts reported. 
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BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2010 

SECTION IV - SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS (continued) 

09-02 Recordinq of unpaid/delinquent property taxes· Corrected 

Internal control signifICant deficiency 

CQndijion; The Brevard County Tax Collector issues tax certificates for aU unpaid property 
taxes as of June 1· for an parcels on which taxes have not been paid. Any tax certificate 
that was not purchased at the annual tax certificale sale is assiqned to Brevard County. 
While documenting the property tax process from the Brevard County Tax Collector's 
process to County Finance's process. we discovered that unpaid property taxes were not 
being recorded. The amount of the unpaid taxes for the tax certificates assigned to Brevard 
County were not recorded as deferred revenue and property taxes receivable on the 
government wide financial statements. 

Current Status: County Finance obtained from the Brevard County Tax Collector the report 
of unpaid property taxes and evaluated the balance for proper recording . 
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